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 Dedicated to
Spartan Ancestors,

Loving and Supportive Family  

(Seen and Unseen),
and a host of neighbors and friends, who through the years

have helped to make Farr West City 
our Home with a Heart

Special thanks to my daughter Karma Taylor Lattin for her frequent visits and steady 
encouragement and editorial assistance throughout this lengthy project.  Also, to my 
grandson  Jordan  T.  Hipwell  I  owe  deep  gratitude  for  his  awesome  ability  to 
accomplish  "photo  reconditioning"  so  some  final  products  have  a  more  pleasing 
appearance.  And yet some other photos are beyond human help.

Deep appreciation must be expressed to Weber State University's Art Department for 
sharing photos of artist Farrell Collett's paintings of the early forts that were used 
during the pioneer era in Ogden.

Disclaimer:   The  contents  of  this  publication  come  from  a  number  of  different  sources, 
publications, people, and personal recollections.  No claims of accuracy or inaccuracy are to be 
construed as definite.  Every effort has been made to keep information accurate so far as possible; 
however, personal recollections of a 92-year old author and some of his contact in bygone years 
with Farr West residents of equal vintage must at  times miss the mark.   All  names and events 
references have been made with positive intention and with the deepest respect and admiration to 
convey the information as being accurate.
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INTRODUCTION

On 10 April 2012, the curtains of time opened to reveal a fascinating scene from pioneer history 
in Farr West City. On that morning Randy K. Chambers came to visit the author and announced that 

while he was tearing out the contents of this older home in Farr West, planning to convert the place into 
offices for his construction business, he made a remarkable discovery.  Right within that home he found 
a pioneer log cabin!

                                             

The events that followed during the next two days unfolded into something that resembled the plot in a 
movie thriller!  As each detail evolved, the author became so enamored with the chain of coincidences 
that he wrote the story and contacted the local Standard Examiner newspaper to inquire whether the 
editor  was  interested  in  printing  the  unusual  details.   When  a  promised  return  contact  had  not 
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materialized within two weeks, the author decided to phone the Deseret News office in Salt Lake City.  
That phone call was transferred to a KSL Television representative, who announced he would come 
with his camera later in the day to capture the story.  Grasping the significance of the recent find in the  
middle of a rapidly growing city, this eager newsman shot photos of Mr. Chambers inside his recent 

"dig" and then hurried to the home of this author. 
Here he took some shots of the historian pointing 
to his 1980 History of Farr West with its details of 
land  ownership  from earliest  land  patents  until 
about  1940.   Later  that  very evening numerous 
residents in Utah who turned on the evening news 
were astounded to learn how the relic of pioneer 
days  had  been  "unearthed"  in  such  an  unusual 
manner.

Then the Associated Press picked up those 
historic  details  and  circulated  the  story  locally 
and elsewhere in the country.  Relatives from as 
far away as Jerome, Idaho promptly notified the 
author of reading the story. He joked with Randy 
K. Chambers about becoming "famous."  

However, other details associated with the 
remarkable discovery pique the interest of history 
lovers even more.  Back on the morning of  10 
April 2012 when Bishop John D. Chugg, instead 
of sending his hired man as usual to work in the 

young cornfield behind the Chambers property, came himself to do the job.  As Randy emerged from 
the blue home, he asked John who might help him determine who had built the unusual log cabin.  John 
just  happened to know that his cousin (this author) had written a history of Farr West about three 
decades earlier, so he passed on that information to the inquirer.   Randy could not resist the urge to 
come at once to the author's home.  Randy's full story needs to be recounted here to understand its 
significance. 

            Back in July 2010 when Randy K. Chambers was looking for some property on which he could 
build some offices for his R. Ray Ward Construction Company, he found a couple of adjacent run-down 
homes  in  Farr  West  City  that  looked  promising.   When  he  decided  to  buy  the  properties,  he 
unknowingly unlocked the door of some interesting Chambers family history.

            After purchasing the reddish brick home at 2389 North 2000 West in September 2010 and 
completing  extensive  remodeling,  he  had an  attractive  building  that  accommodated  his  immediate 
needs for office space.  The place was soon equipped with office furniture and humming with activity.

            Later  in December 2011 Randy was able to purchase the house and property just south of his  
office and then turned his attention to remodeling that adjoining older blue frame home at 2375 North 
2000 West.  Off came interior lathe and plaster, exposing old adobe which lined 
the exterior walls in part of the house.  Then the workers made an amazing discovery.  One of the 
interior  rooms  of  the  house  was  actually  an  old  log  cabin  with  three  walls  still  intact  after 
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approximately 135 years!   Since  this  sort  of  discovery seldom happens  in  a  construction  project, 
Randy's curiosity almost got the best of him.

            Thus Randy met Bishop Chugg 
as mentioned earlier and learned where 
he might  get  some help to satisfy his 
curiosity  about  who  might  have  built 
the newly discovered relic.  He hurried 
to the author's residence and introduced 
himself  to 91-year old Brian (Randy's 
niece had married Brian's grandson just 
about three years earlier).  Relating his 
recent  find,  Randy  asked  if  Brian 
happened to have information about the 
early  settler  who  might  have 
constructed  the  old  log  cabin.   Brian 
replied  that  his  1980  history  of  Farr 
West had included a listing of all real 
estate  transactions  in  Farr  West  from 
1940  on  back  to  the  earliest 

government land grants about 1870.  He promised to dig out his copy of the community history and 
determine who first owned the property where the cabin had been erected.

            Beginning his records search with the name of Lewis A Jensen, who had owned the now-
famous blue home at the author's earliest recollection, he found that Jensen had bought he property 11 
Sep 1916 from Daniel B. Rawson.  Rawson had in turn purchased the land from John E. Larkins on 21 
Mar  1913.   Larkins  had obtained that  land parcel  from William J.  Larkins  5  Jun 1906,  who had 
purchased the property 2 Dec 1876 from Leonidas Alfred Pritchett.  Pritchett had obtained the land on a 
USA patent 1 Mar 1875.
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Entries from Taylor's 1980 " History of Farr West"

            The author's great-grandfather Joseph Taylor, the first settler in Farr West, had arrived in 1858,  
and he was among the earliest settlers to obtain a land patent in 1870.  From these facts alone one could 
not be certain that Pritchett's family was the first to occupy the land and build the log home.  We could  
only say that he was the first settler on record that we can be certain occupied the land on which the 
"discovered" log cabin was built.

            A second surprise came when Randy sent his brother Reid and his wife on 11 April 2012 to  
bring this author to view the newly discovered log cabin.  While looking over the old log cabin with 
remnants of brittle plaster on the inner walls, plus a partially burned joist where a fireplace or stove had 
been located, the Chambers brothers recalled that their likable Grandfather had the name Leonidas. 
Incredible!  How often does a name like that appear in one's pedigree!

            Confident that the LDS New FamilySearch program on the internet probably held the full  
answer to the Chambers' partially solved puzzle, the author accessed the program soon after returning 
home.  He learned that  Alfred Leonidas  Pritchett  (given names reversed)  had a daughter  Catherine 
Letitia Pritchett who married a William Pollock Chambers and named their first son William Leonidas 
Chambers.  He later learned that William Leonidas was Reid and Randy's GRANDFATHER! Randy 
had also given his firstborn son Nathan the middle name of Leonidas as well.
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            When the author e-mailed Randy the results of his research, the message found an ecstatic 
recipient.   Randy  had  unknowingly  bought  the  very  same  real  estate  on  which  his  second-great 
grandfather had received a patent 136 years earlier!

            To recap the incredible chain of events, consider the fact that Randy had been at the right place 
and time to meet Bishop Chugg.  The latter was able to refer him to Farr West historian Brian Taylor,  
who  in  turn  solved  the  puzzle  through  use  of  his  early  Farr  West  record  AND  the  LDS  New 
FamilySearch program--just how unlikely is such a chain of events to occur again in a place that used 
to be primarily a farming community!

In  October  2012  the  author  remembered  having  heard  that  the  Westergard  and  McEntire 
families in early Farr West also had Pritchett ancestors. He phoned Lurlene Westergard to learn whether 
she had additional historical information about the family of Leonidas Alfred Pritchett.  Lurlene, in 
searching through family records, discovered that her brother Len (now deceased) had found a copy of 
the 1875 Pritchett land patent, which she shared with the author.  Then when the author searched an 
early section  of  his  1980  History Farr  West,  he  noticed  a  map he had obtained from the  County 
Surveyor's  office.  This map,  dated April  19,  1869, revealed that  Alfred Leonidas Pritchett  actually 
claimed his quarter-section of land at that early date.  Since Farr West was first settled in 1858, it 
appeared possible that Pritchett was the original owner of his 160 acres.

This  interesting chain  of  events  seems to be a  link with early Farr  West  and its  residents. 
Contractor Randy K. Chambers' arranging an open house and "dedication" of this monument to our 
early settlers  on 30 November 2012 was another coincidence, for it was the anniversary on which the  
Farr West Ward was organized in 1890.  See program below:

Attached to the dedication program was a copy of a family biography, as follows:
The year was 1865 when Leonidas Alfred Pritchett and Elizabeth Ann Heninger Pritchett said good-
bye to their beloved Virginia home and embarked on the long journey to Zion.  Along the way, they 
stopped in Ohio just long enough to welcome their first baby daughter, Catherine Letitia Pritchett, into 
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the world.  It was the autumn of 1865 before they finally reached Salt Lake City with few belongings: a 
feather bed, an iron kettle, and two wool blankets.  In the spring of 1866 the little family obtained 160 
acres of land, built a log home, and settled down in what is now known as Farr West City,

One hundred forty six years later, Randy Chambers 
was looking for a place to store large equipment for 
his newly acquired business.  Through a series of 
uncanny coincidences Randy was drawn to, and 
eventually able to purchase, a piece of property that 
would serve his business needs.  While renovating 
this new house, amazingly, an old log cabin was 
discovered behind the sheetrock.  What a thrilling 
find this was!  Imagine our astonishment when 
records revealed the name of who had built this 

1866 log home--Leonidas Alfred Pritchett, Randy's great-great grandfather!!! 
Coincidence or miracle?  (written by Mrs.Randy (Karla) Chambers)
 

Participants who 
solved the puzzle of 

the Leonidas Pritchett 
log cabin

L to R:  John D. 
Chugg, Brian L. 
Taylor, Karla & 

Randy K. Chambers  
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H I S T O R Y  O F  F A R R  W E S T

Ancient History

          Historians  really  snapped  to  attention  in 
November 2004.  While bulldozing in a gravel pit near 
Fillmore,  Utah  (near  the  southern  shore  of  old  Lake 

Bonneville)  workers  found  a  four-foot  mammoth  tusk 
(See  photo  on  left).   This  find  really  "stoked"  the 
imagination of historians in this part of the world.  This 
discovery,  along  with  that  of  the  dinosaur  skeletons 
unearthed  in  Eastern  and  Southern  Utah,  fires  the 
imagination of historians everywhere. Elsewhere in the 

United  States  researchers  have  unearthed  mammoth  bones  that  they  indicate  come  from 
animals living before the end of the last  ice age,  11,000 B.C.  11  Such findings make one 
wonder what interesting forms of life existed in the area we now call Farr West.

         The average citizen who thinks of earliest Utah history mentally envisages early pioneers 
arriving  in  these  valleys  to  find  them  occupied  here  and  there  with  groups  of  Native 
Americans. Little thought enters the mind concerning other peoples or events related to earlier 
history of this area.  The author decided to begin this historical record with some of the earliest 
recorded data which helps us to understand what it was like "’way back when."  In addition to 
enlarging our understanding, earlier history actually piques our imagination and excitement.  

 From our homes today we can observe telltale signs of an 
ancient lake shoreline along the Wasatch range. Known as 
Lake Bonneville  (see figure at  left),  the body of water 
covered  Northern  Utah  and  spilled  over  into  Eastern 
Nevada and Southern Idaho.  Geologists  have estimated 

that 15,500 years ago the lake reached its greatest depth of 
980 feet.  Climate changes over the years brought varying 

rates  of  shrinkage  (e.g.,  14,500  years  ago  the  level  had 
dropped to 344 feet.)  Great Salt Lake is the main remnant of 

Lake Bonneville today.

  No human beings could inhabit the area which became Farr 
West until the waters of Lake Bonneville receded.  This history 

will touch briefly upon two separate groups of the human race 
whose influence was felt directly or indirectly by those who 
became the earliest "permanent" settlers of Farr West.
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Early Influence of the Native Americans and Fur Traders 

Two  major  groups  of  people  had  roamed  the  territory  before  the  arrival  of  the 
Mormons.  The  first  of  these  groups,  the  American  Indian,  began  to  inhabit  the  area 
approximately 1,000 years ago.  Two separate groups or tribes, the Utes and Shoshones, had 
favorite routes of travel through this valley and along foothills and mountainous areas.  Here 
they harvested fish and game for their subsistence.  Their activities which affected some of our 
Farr West settlers will be treated in a later section of this history.
 

The second group, whose influence may have actually led our first Mormon settlers to 
begin settling in the Farr West area, consisted of the fur traders/trappers. Beginning  about 
1810, a growing number of trappers and traders passed through the area which later became 

Weber  County.   The  earliest  of  these  were  French-
Canadians  who  belonged  to  the  Hudson  Bay  Fur 
Company.  Nomadic  Shoshone,  Ute,  and  prehistoric 
Indians favored the area for centuries, hunting in the 
mountains  and  foothills  and  fishing  in  the  streams. 
Mounds near the confluence of the Weber and Ogden 
Rivers  contain  remains  of  their  camps5.  An 
independent  fur  trader,  Miles  Goodyear,  a  native  of 
Hamden, Connecticut, came west and engaged in fur 
trading  in  the  western  mountains  until  the  declining 
beaver population and an increase in emigrant traffic 
on the overland trails led him to make some changes. 
He built a way station or fort on a large bend in the 
Weber River in 1845 and 1846, using local cottonwood 
trees.   After constructing four log cabins to serve as 
corners of the fort, he added corrals outside the fort to 
accommodate  horses,  cattle,  goats  and  sheep. 
Occupied  by  Goodyear,  his  Indian  wife  and  two 

children and several Indian helpers, the fort became a base for the rapidly diminishing fur trade 
and a trading post for overland emigrants. 

(Note: On September 5, 1843 The explorers John C. Fremont and Kit Carson passed the 
Utah Hot Springs and, probably journeyed through eastern Farr West, headed for a fur traders' 
old campsite at what later became Ogden City.)

American and British mountain men also entered the area in the early 1800's, trapping 
beaver and trading with the Indians. Famed Jim Bridger became in 1824 the first white man to 
report sighting Great Salt Lake. Peter Skene Ogden traversed the high valley just behind the 
Wasatch Front in 1825; obviously, Ogden City was named for him--although he never visited 
the actual site. The first accurate maps of the area were drawn by John C. Fremont after he 
visited the mouth of the Weber River in 1843. 
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Arrival of the Mormons and their "Settling In"

During the winter of 1846-1847 Miles Goodyear traveled to California to buy some 
horses for use in trading, then drove the animals eastward toward Missouri, trading along the 
way.  During July 1847  while on his route, he  visited with the first Mormon pioneer company 
on the Bear River west of Fort Bridger.  He urged  church leaders to settle on his  land near the 
Weber River.  His proposals  received somewhat favorable consideration until Porter Rockwell 
found the road through Weber  Canyon almost impassable.  When he gave the report to his 
church leaders, they promptly took the southerly road from what is now Henefer, leading them 
to the Salt Lake Valley. 

On August  9,  1847 Brigham Young sent 
northward  an  exploring  party  under  the 
direction of Jesse C. Little.  Finding Miles 
Goodyear's Fort Buenaventura (see painting 
at left 3 , the group was so impressed by the 
fact  that  corn  was  thriving  there  that  they 
returned to their leader and gave a favorable 
report  of their findings.  Knowing that the 
rapidly growing  population in the Salt Lake 
Valley  would  need  additional  good  farm 
land, and remembering the hostile treatment 
from "Gentile" neighbors in Ohio, Missouri 
and  Illinois,  Brigham  instructed  that  the 
Goodyear property be bought.

Miles Goodyear set a price of $2,000 for his property.  Initial efforts to raise the money 
in Salt Lake City were unsuccessful.  However, when Captain James Brown arrived at Fort 
Buenaventura on his return trip from California,  he brought with him $3,000, part of which 
belonged to the Mormon Battalion and part to himself.  The high council in Salt Lake City 
voted on November 24, 1847 to use this money to buy the Goodyear holdings.(4) The agreed-
upon price: $1,950.  Goodyear claimed to have a deed from the Mexican government (which 
was never produced).  However, he did give his buyers a deed to most of the area known today 
as Weber County (see below a map of the land bought from Miles Goodyear).
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On January 12, 1848 Captain James Brown had sent his two sons from Salt Lake City 
to care for the livestock which had been left by Miles Goodyear at Fort Buenaventura.  Three 
other families accompanied the Browns initially,  but the group was soon joined by several 
other families, most of whom were members of the "Mississippi Saints" who had lived the 
previous winter at Pueblo, Colorado, with James Brown.  Two trappers named Burrows and 
Briggs, along with their Indian wives, had already been living at Fort Buenaventura.  This fort 
has the distinction of being the oldest site continuously occupied in the history of Utah.

When the Weber River flooded in May 1850, several of the families relocated about 70 
rods southeast of the original Fort. The continuous arrival of settlers in the area contributed to 
the growth of the settlement, where another fort was built.  Originally called "Brown's Fort," 
the place was changed to "Brown's Settlement" or "Brownsville" in honor of Captain James 
Brown.   Still later the name was changed to Ogden (in honor of Peter Skene Ogden, a brigade 
leader  of  the  Hudson  Bay  Fur  Company, 
who  had  trapped  in  the  Weber  Valley  a 
generation earlier.)  The fort which had been 
constructed in that area was given the name 
of Ogden Fort (see artist's depiction of this 
fort at the right.3

In  the  October  1849  general 
conference  of  the  Church,  the  assembly 
voted  to  lay  out  a  city  in  Captain  James 
Brown's  neighborhood.   To  assure  the 
success  of  the  new  city,  Brigham  Young 
selected  29-year-old  Lorin  Farr  to  take 
charge of the development.  Arriving at his 
new assignment  in  January 1850,  Farr  promptly made  arrangements  for  building  the  first 
sawmill and gristmill in the area.

 Lorin Farr was instrumental in organizing the first city council in 
Ogden in 1850, and he became the first mayor of the city.   (These 
events are of special interest to the author, whose 2nd great-grandfather 
James Lake was made a member of the first Ogden City Council when 
an election was held 7 April 1851.  In those early elections only one set 
of candidates was considered, and these were normally nominated by 
the presiding authorities in the region.4)
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As  additional  settlers  swelled  the  Ogden  area,  the  new  arrivals  began  to  move 
northward further and further.  Inevitably they came into contact with more and more Indians, 
whose unusual customs led to occasional conflict.  Many of the Indians were friendly, opening 
personal  communication  with  the  settlers  and  their  leaders.   However,  when  troublesome 
conditions led to serious conflict,  Brigham Young directed that secure enclosures (forts) be 
erected, where the settlers could gather for protection.  In addition to the original Brown's Fort, 
four others were erected successively in the Ogden area, viz. Ogden Fort, Mound Fort, Farr's 
Fort, and Bingham's Fort.  As mentioned earlier, Ogden Fort, located near the small Brown's 
Fort, became a natural area of expansion for early immigrants in the Ogden area.  

In the fall of 1848, Ezra Chase and Charles Hubbard brought their families about three 
miles north of Brownsville to an area that later received the name of Mound Fort (see artist's  
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depiction  of  this  fort  at  the  left 3). 
After clearing the land of sagebrush, 
they  planted  corn,  wheat  and 
potatoes,  which  yielded  very  well. 
The  next  spring  two  more  families 
arrived to assist in clearing the land 
and planting crops.  The four men in 
the settlement dug the first ditch for 
irrigation  purposes  in  the  spring  of 
1849.  Improved yields of their crops 
resulted at once.  The main fort was 
rather  small,  so  it  could  never 
support a sizeable population.

Early  in  1850  when  a  number  of 
residents north of the Ogden River began to 
be molested by the Indians, they started to 
enclose  a  five-acre  plot  of  ground  that 
became  known  as  Farr's  Fort  (see  artist's 
painting at right.3)  Log homes were built so 
their  back walls  formed the outer  walls  of 
the  fort.  Space  between  the  cabins'  back 
walls was lined with pickets, the bottom of 
which were buried deep in the ground, the 
top  extending  about  twelve  feet  above 
ground level.  This fort was not used very 
long.  The north wall was never completed. 
In the spring of 1851 some of its occupants moved out of the Ogden area to establish farms and 
homes.

Information about Bingham's Fort, which housed the earliest settlers of Farr West, will 
be included on Page 8.

In the spring of 1850, the first log cabin (in what was to become Harrisville) was built 
by Urban Stewart.  An "uprising of the Shoshone Indians in 1850 occurred when a band of 
Shoshone  Indians  who  had  been  encamped  near  Ogden  began  to  leave  on  
15 Sep 1850 to winter near the Bear River.  Their chief, Terikee, who was very friendly toward 
the pioneers, stayed to bid Lorin Farr and his family goodbye.  Then the chief and his family 
camped near the farm of Urban Stewart on the Four Mile Creek, which later became part of 
Harrisville.  During the night, Stewart heard what he thought was Indians stealing his corn.  He 
ordered them out, and hurried into the house to get his gun.  They were still in the corn when 
he returned.  Stewart fired some shots toward the noise in the field where Chief Terikee was 
trying  to  remove his  horses  from the  corn.   A shot  struck  and killed  the  chief.   Stewart, 
realizing the consequences of what he had done, became very frightened.  He tried to get other 
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settlers in hide him but no one dared." 1
 Urban Stewart then fled to Salt Lake and from there he 

went to California for the safety of other settlers as well as himself.

Lorin Farr, who was the presiding authority in Ogden, upon hearing of Chief Terikee's 
killing, immediately sent a messenger to inform Brigham Young of the danger.  On 16 Sep 
1850, Dimick Huntington was dispatched to Ogden to help by acting as an Indian interpreter. 
The following day 150 armed men were sent to help defend the citizens of the Weber area.  
(Author's note:  Dimick was a cousin of the author's 2nd great-grandmother Philomela Smith.)

When  Chief  Terikee's  surviving  family  members  caught  up  with  the  rest  of  their 
Shoshone tribe and told them what had happened, all were understandingly very angry. They 
returned and burned Stewart's house and grain.  The Indians demanded that Stewart be turned 
over to them or they would massacre all the inhabitants of Ogden and burn it.  In retaliation,  
they killed an emigrant millwright named Campbell, who was employed by Lorin Farr.  Mr.  
Campbell,  a  non-member who was working his  way to California,  had gone to  Four-Mile 
Creek to help protect Urban Stewart's cabin and crops, but Campbell was killed.  Before the 
troops from Salt Lake arrived with horses and cattle to negotiate, the Shoshone Indians had 
gone north after finding that Stewart had left the area. 4 

Because of the 1850 incident resulting in the death of Chief Terikee, also because of an 
Indian uprising in Central Utah in 1853, Brigham Young advised church members to "fort up." 
Since Mound Fort was so small, pioneer families pushed northward.  A number of families 
assisted in enclosing an area named Bingham's Fort in the present area of 2nd Street and Wall 
Avenue.  Its name came from the fact that Erastus Bingham was bishop of the area north of the 
Ogden River.  The general layout of the fort is shown below.  
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 Artist  Farrell  Collett  has  captured  on  canvas  the  manner  of  construction  of  the 
Bingham's Fort walls (see below a photo of his historic picture). 3

  The  settlers  of  what  would  be 
Bingham's  Fort  came  to  the  area  in 
1849.   In  1851  Erastus  Bingham 
became bishop of the entire area north 
of  Brown's  Settlement  (Ogden). 
Settlers  dotted  the  land  with  cabins, 
cultivated fields and devised irrigation 
systems.  After an incident in 1850 in 
which an Indian leader and settler were 
killed  at  Four  Mile  Creek  in 
Harrisville,  and  because  of  Indian 
uprisings  in  Central  Utah  in  183, 
Brigham Young advised settlers to "fort 
up."   Bingham's  Fort  was  located  on 
both sides of Second Street and mainly 
west  of  Wall  Avenue.   Isaac  N. 
Goodale  laid  out  lots  and  settlers 
"teamed" their cabins to the site or took 
their  cabins  apart  and  reassembled 
them inside the fort.  

Because of the food shortage in 1854-1855, ironically some of the "friendly" Indians game up 
their arms and also lived inside the fort.  Destruction of property and demand for food by 
marauding Indians tried the struggling settlers' patience, but Brigham Young's policy of firm 
kindness prevailed, and there was no loss of life."

By 1854 Bingham's Fort  became a flourishing town of 732 souls,  triple the population of 
Ogden.  Other forts we re even smaller than Ogden.  By 1855-56 several mercantile houses 
operated  within  the  fort.   Sam Gates  ran  a  molasses  mill.   A block west  of  the  mill  the  
schoolhouse served as the center of community life for Marriott, Slaterville, Tracy's Branch, 
Broom's Branch, Harrisville, and other fledgling communities.  Day school, Sabbath school, 
dances, quilting bees and spelling bees were held in the schoolhouse.

Trouble with the Indians faded by 1856 and the fort was no longer needed for protection. 
Brigham Young visited Bingham's Fort and asked the residents to move to Ogden, and some 
moved to their  farm sites.   Bingham's  Fort  had grown faster  than anticipated,  Ogden was 
intended to be the center of the city.   Many of the residents moved into Ogden, and some 
moved to their farm sites.

Pleasant Green Taylor of Harrisville recorded added details of gathering to the fort, as 
follows: "1853 - During this season attended to my farm and raised a good crop.  In July, on 
account of the hostility of the Indians, President Young called upon us to move to certain points 
and make forts of safety; accordingly I moved my family to what is known as Bingham's Fort. 
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In this place I assisted in building a wall of defense and some 110 families assembled at this 
place.  This being about two miles from my farm.  We had to be continually on our guard.  I 
used to take my gun with me when I went to farm." 11 

Interestingly, the pioneers who moved into the fort customarily dismantled their log 
homes and moved them into the fort; then when the "scare" was over, these pioneers reversed 
the process to return to the original home site.

(Ed. note:  Bingham's Fort enclosed an area of 40 acres.  The walls were built of rocks 
and mud.  Each family had an assigned portion of the wall to build.  The wall was erected 
about four rods from the houses, with corrals taking up the space between the houses and the 
wall.  Thomas Richardson, a pioneer boy who lived in Bingham's Fort tells how the wall was 
constructed.  "The walls were made of mud.  We did not have lumber to put up to hold the  
wall, so we placed upright poles, tapering (the mud) from about eight feet at the bottom to 
about three feet at the top.  We set stakes between the poles and wove willows in like a willow 
fence, then filled the space with mud.  We made a ditch nearby to run water down to wet the 
mud.  When wet, we threw it in with shovels, spades or anything we had.  We built the willow 
forms as  the  wall  went  up.   It  (the  wall)  was about  twelve  feet  high.   Wilford  Woodruff 
reported in December of 1854 as he toured the northern settlements that there were 753 people 
living in Bingham's Fort. 4 

The first settler of Farr West, Joseph Taylor, (see picture 
at left) was among those who inhabited Bingham's Fort.  Since 
the  story of  his  life  illustrates  the  difficulties  faced by early 
pioneers, some details of his life in those trying times will be 
recounted here.

Having lost his first wife in Kaysville, Utah, in 1852, he 
was left with four small children, so he soon married Jane Lake 
Ordway, a widow with one small child.  Since Jane desired to 
live  near  her  parents,  James  Lake and  Philomela  Smith,  the 
Taylor  couple  moved  to  Weber  County  in  1854  (probably 
directly  to  Bingham's  Fort,  where  James  Lake's  family  had 
moved from Harrisville.)

After Church Authorities had requested that occupants of 
the fort move into Ogden City to assist in building up the area, 

early land records show the Joseph Taylor family had obtained title to Lot 4 in Block 30, Plat A 
in Ogden City (where the rectory of St. Joseph's Catholic Church is now located).

Apparently Joseph's family was still living in Ogden when Brigham Young received the 
word that Johnston's Army, which had been activated by secret orders of the War Department 
on 27 May 1857, was on its way to Utah.  On 1 August 1857 Lt. Gen. Daniel H. Wells of the 
Nauvoo Legion (Utah Militia) issued official orders.  In just over 2 weeks Joseph Taylor, in 
command of 50 soldiers, was headed up Echo Canyon on a mission to delay the approaching 
army in any possible way without taking any life.  Joseph was later captured by the invading 
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army; on one occasion he and his adjutant were served poisoned soup (which they did not eat). 
Another time their captors built a fire by their tent doorway, intending to kill them with the 
smoke. Surviving both of these attempts on their lives, Joseph planned and made his escape. 
This action enabled him to return to Gen. Wells and provide him with valuable information that 
he, Joseph, had heard in the enemy camp.  Joseph then returned to Salt Lake City to report to 
Pres. Young.   Although Joseph was ordered to return to his military unit, Johnston's Army 
made no further attempt to enter the Salt Lake Valley at that time.
  

Thomas  L.  Kane,  who  was  friendly  to  the  Mormons,  came  to  Utah  as  a  special 
representative of President Buchanan, met with Brigham Young and persuaded him to let  U.S.-
appointed Governor Alfred Cummings enter the valley.  This change being made, Pres. Young 
instructed the saints in Weber County to take their supplies and move to the Provo Bottoms. 
They were still wary of what might result when Johnston's Army would soon enter the Salt 
Lake Valley. Inhabitants were instructed to leave kindling material in their homes so the Saints' 
homes would all be torched if any person were molested.

Settlement of Farr West

While existing biographies do not mention it, one can only assume that Joseph Taylor 
and his family followed the advice of Pres.  Young and joined other relatives in the Provo 
Bottoms.  However, when the threat of war ended, he moved his family back to Weber County 
and, according to historical records on file in the L. D. S. Church History department, they 
became the first settlers of what is now Farr West.   Dudley Chase, another early settler, is 
documented as having made the following statement:  1858. "As far as can be ascertained at 
the  time  of  this  writing,  Joseph  Taylor,  Sr.,  was  the  first  settler  in  the  western  part  of 
Harrisville, afterwards known as Farr West.  He came here in 1858 and took up a farm joining 
Slaterville, where he made his home and lived on a part of that place until his death."

To the left is an artist's sketch of the Joseph Taylor log cabin as it appeared until the late 
1930's.   Elida  Dickemore  Taylor, 
who  lived  in  one  of  the  later-built 
Joseph Taylor  homes,  described the 
first  Joseph  Taylor  cabin  to  artist 
Fermin  J.  Westergard,  who  then 
made a sketch of the cabin.  When he 
showed  his  drawing  to  Elida,  she 
averred  that  the  drawing  resembled 
the old home. (the author saw the old 
home at a distance while it was still 
sanding  and  thought  it  was 
considerably longer than the drawing 
indicates.)

Included  in  the  Joseph  Taylor 
family in 1858 were four children by 

his deceased first wife Mary Moore: Clarissa Jane, Mary Melvina, Joseph Allen, and William 
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Andrew; his second wife Jane Lake Ordway Taylor, their three children, Moroni, Emma Jane 
and Lydia Ann, and Jane's son by her first marriage, Stephen Ordway, Jr., and Joseph's third 
wife  Hannah  Mariah  Harris  Taylor  and  their  two  children,  Lamoni  and  James  Henry.   It 
stretches one's imagination to visualize these 13 people of various ages living together in their 
new log home. 

In the fall of 1860 the families of Ezra Chase and Hugh McClellan settled in the eastern 
extremity of what late became Farr West.  In September 1861 Dudley Chase moved onto the 
farm owned by his father  Ezra and later obtained the farm from his father.   According to 
information obtained from Dudley Chase there were only six other families living west of his  
place in western Harrisville when he moved there, namely:  John George, Charles Price, Joseph 
Taylor, Charles Matthews, Samuel White and Haskell Shurtliff.

Pioneer  life  held 
many  challenges  for  the 
early  settlers. 
Biographies  of  our 
earliest  pioneer-settlers 
often mention encounters 
with  Indians  (whom  we 
now  refer  to  as  Native 
Americans).   While 
specific encounters in the 
Farr  West  area  may  be 
documented  only  in 
family  biographies,  the 
author  recalls  having 
heard in his earlier  years 
about  Indians  having  a 
favorite campground near 
the southwest part of the 
town; a number of arrowheads had purportedly been found in that area since pioneer days. 
Wanting to verify this information, the author asked Louis B. Best, whose mother had grown 
up on a farm in southwest Farr West, if he had ever heard such information,   Louis gave a 
positive answer, so including the information in this history seems appropriate.  More recently 
a biography of the author's uncle, William Andrew Taylor, Jr., mentions that as a young boy 
(circa 1875) he played with an Indian lad.   No mention is made in that account as to whether 
any language barrier existed, but then this consideration seems less challenging to children 
than to adults.

Biographies  of  the  author's  extended  family contain  incidents  in  which  whites  had 
reason to fear for their lives when Indians came near.  "During the pioneer period Indians were 
usually friendly with the whites, and the latter in turn were generous with the red men, making 
a practice of giving them food whenever possible . . . Still the confidence existing between the 
two peoples could hardly be considered ideal.  Children always ran for the house if they saw a 
band of Indians approaching; there was a general fear of red men in the minds of the settlers." 4
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A rather interesting experience occurred in 
the life of James Martin as related to the author 
about  1960  by  James'  daughter  Alta  Martin. 
After  her  father  settled  in  southwestern  Farr 
West, he frequently had Indian visitors.  When 
the  Indian  bucks  would  get  some "firewater," 
their  squaws would  often  come to  the  Martin 
home and beg Mr. Martin to let them hide from 
their  husbands,  who became very mean while 
"under  the  influence."   Mr.  Martin  wisely 

suggested that  they leave his home, go out in his field where the rushes grew very thickly 
along 6-mile Creek, and hide in there until they felt safe in returning to their husbands.   So 
often after these drunken sprees,  the Indian bucks would come to the Martin  home in the 
middle of the night, creep into the bedroom and tap Mr. Martin on the head to waken him. 
Then they would ask him if he knew where their squaws had gone.  Of course he would not 
divulge their hiding place, so the bucks would look around the barnyard awhile and then leave.

On May 31, 1856 the Western Irrigation Company obtained a charter to take irrigation 
water out of the Ogden River at a point one-half mile west of the mouth of Ogden Canyon. 
However, no construction was undertaken at that time.  Further delay came when the Weber 
County settlers were advised to prepare to move south because of the approach of Johnston's 
Army in 1857-58 as mentioned previously.  After the colonists returned to their homes in 1858 
from the Provo area, a new charter was issued.  This gave settlers in the Harrisville area the 
right  to take water from the Ogden River at a point below Lorin Farr's millrace (a worn marker 
on the fence surrounding a condominium at 1251 Canyon Road in Ogden showed the location 

of this  point.)  Early construction of 
the  Western  Irrigation  Company 
canal came as far west as the Dudley 
Chase  farm.  It  carried  five  second 
feet  of  water.   In  1884  it  was 
enlarged  to  carry  39  second  feet. 
(See photo on left.)  Thomas B. Fray 
became  the  first  superintendent  of 
the  irrigation  company.   (On  21 
October  2012  when  Mayor  Jimmie 
A. Papageorge died, he was reported 
to have served a record 61 years on 
the board of directors for the Western 
Irrigation Company and 30 years as 
its president.)

Quite a number of families moved into the Farr West area in the years following 1860. 
Most of their homes were built from cottonwood logs hauled from Ogden and Weber Canyons. 
The roofs of these homes were constructed with two layers of log slabs, then plastered with 
clay,  and finally covered  with dirt.   Doors  and windows swung from rawhide  or  wooden 
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hinges. Open fireplaces served as cooking places.  Wooden pegs took the place of nails in 
pioneer times, for a pound of nails cost a bushel of wheat in Salt Lake City.  The biography of  
Sarah Jane Marler Lake Taylor (the author's great-grandmother) indicated that in the spring of 
the year these pioneer homes presented a beautiful sight when the rooftop sod sent lovely green 
shoots into the air.

When  Charles  Matthews  settled  in  western 
Harrisville  with  his  family about  1860,  he  built  a 
home in the ground (called a dugout--see at  left  a 
photo of a typical one) for a home.  Then in about 
1862  he  built  a  two-room  adobe  house  from  the 
adobes he molded with his own hands from a clay pit 
on his  own farm. See below a photo of  the home 
after it was remodeled.  This structure was located 
approximately  150  yards  west  of  the  current 
residence  of  Jason  and  Jamie  Ellis  at  2189 North 
2000 West.  The Matthews structure, known as the 
Prairie House, measured about 16 x 32 feet.  At the 

time this was the only house besides a few log cabins in the Farr West area.

Mr.  Matthews  owned  a 
large  tract  of  land  surrounding 
the Prairie House.  After mining 
in Montana began to attract a lot 
of  people--particularly  from  the 
East--much  of  that  traffic  came 
through the Farr West area.   The 
Prairie House became a favorite 
place for travelers to lay over and 
feed their teams or to rest.   Mr. 
Matthews  began  making  malt 
beer for sale to his visitors, later 
adding whiskey to his attractions 
for  visitors.   He  became  quite 
well-to-do during the few years he lived here, but in 1866 he sold his property to Frank Randall 
and moved south.

No doubt fueled by the discovery of gold in Montana and its attraction of hordes of 
people who were hungry for worldly riches, a second favorite lodging place, the Half-Way 
House, was erected in Farr West near the southeast corner of the intersection of 2000 West and 
2700 North Streets.  Built on a knoll by Mr. and Mrs. William Burnett, this structure became a 
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favorite place for young men of the 
area to congregate and listen to the 
tales  of  prospectors  and  other 
travelers.   Constructed  of  logs,  this 
structure stood on a knoll, where its 
owners  enjoyed  a  season  of 
prosperity.   The  structure  remained 
intact  until  approximately  1920, 
when  the  William  Gould  Family 
decided  to  tear  it  down  after  they 
purchased the farm in 1916.

One  of  the  earliest  Farr  West 
settlers,  Daniel  B.  Rawson,  bought 

some property from Chauncey W.  West  (now owned by Dale  J.  Chugg.)   Mr.  Rawson,  a 
carpenter by trade, installed a shop with a turning lathe.  He is believed to have made the first  
chair and spinning wheel in Weber County.  He made coffins and his wife lined them.  (See 
pictures below)  He also did blacksmith work.

                

During the first 14 years after the Farr West area was settled, the residents of this area 
met  with the people of  Harrisville  for  all  church  and community events.   In  some of  the 
recorded history of the Harrisville Ward, we find occasional mention of events or people which 
involved the western part of the settlement, as follows:

1863 - During his year Dudley Chase was appointed Ward Teacher.
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1964 - Daniel B. Rawson, Sr., was chosen as school trustee.

1865 - During this year Dudley Chase was released as Ward teacher and Thomas White 
was chosen in his place..  Also, during this year Thomas White, Luman Shurtliff and 
Martin Harris were selected school trustees.

1865 - On May 14th the first Sunday School of Harrisville was organized with Martin 
Harris appointed as head teacher.

1866 - Daniel B. Rawson, Sr., was chosen President of the Eighth District (Harrisville).  
He occupied the farm that had been owned by Chauncey W. West on Six Mile Creek. 
George Lake and Dudley Chase were chosen as his counselors.  Dudley Chase was 
replaced by Pleasant Green Taylor in December.

          1867 - On April 21st the Sunday School was organized with Martin Harris as leading 
teacher and Stephen F. Wilson as assistant.  Forty-four scholars were enrolled.  Up to 
this year the people had occupied a log house for their school, their place of worship,  
their Sunday schools and other gatherings of all kinds.

1867 - During this year an adobe house was built 22’ x 32'.  The taxes that year were 
insufficient to pay the expenses, so the building was finished the next year.  At that time 
there  were  19  families  in  the  settlement  from  Bingham's  Fort  to  the  Hot  
Springs.

1868 - Up to July 25th of this year the settlement was known as the Eighth District.  
Then a petition was presented to the county court, asking for a precinct..  The petition 
was granted, so a precinct was organized and given the name of Harrisville in honor of 
its first settler.  At the August election Ezra Chase was chosen Justice of the Peace and 
Dudley Chase was chosen Constable. (The Farr West area was included with Harrisville 
in 1868 when the precinct was organized.)

1868 - On September 13th Martin Harris was released as leader of the Sunday School 
and Stephen F. Wilson was chosen to succeed him.

1868  -  The  first  Relief  Society was  organized  with  Louisa  Lake  President,  Nancy 
Rawson lst Counselor, Jane Taylor 2nd Counselor, Mary Taylor Secretary and Louisa 
Harris  Treasurer.   Sister  Harris  kept  a  Relief  Society  store  for  many years,  which 
benefited the community.

           In 1868 William F. McEntire came with his family to Western Harrisville.   He arrived 
when cold weather was approaching, so he hurriedly built a log house 16 x 14 feet.   The roof  
was only half finished on Christmas Eve, when a storm was approaching.  so his family  hung a 
rug from the  roof  to provide protection for part of the house.  Next morning six inches of  
snow had fallen inside part of the home which had not been protected.  Cracks between the 
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logs of the home had not been filled in, so snow had swirled around the family inside the 
house.  On Christmas several of the neighbors helped to finish the roof.

The next spring Mr. McEntire planted five acres of wheat.   Before it  was ready to 
harvest, grasshoppers devoured his crop.  He later replanted the field to corn and fortunately 
harvested a good crop.

1869 - On March 1st Joseph Taylor was 
elected  school  trustee  in  Daniel  B. 
Rawson's  place.   Just  prior  to  this 
Joseph  Taylor  had  served  as  1st 
Counselor  to  Daniel  B.  Rawson. 
During  this  same  year  the  Pacific 
Railroad was laid out and built through 
the settlement.   (See left  a likeness of 
the engine.)  Available land was brought 
into  market  and  mostly  taken  up  by 
residents of the district.   
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Earliest  documented  ownership  of  land  in  the  Farr  West  area  captures  the 
interest of history lovers.   Up until the coming of the railroad in 1869, no official land 
ownership  records  were  maintained.   Then  the  government  began  issuing  "'land 
patents" to those settlers who claimed ownership of certain surveyed lands.  According 
to Weber County land records, the following land patents were issued by the U. S. 
Government to people living in the Farr West area:  (See map on next page):

July 15, 1870       Dudley Chase
Sep 20, 1870 Henry Dixon
Sep 20, 1870 Charles F. Randall
Oct 1, 1870 Joseph Taylor
Nov 1, 1870 William A. Taylor, Sr.
Jun 5, 1871     Daniel B. Rawson
Jun 5, 1871 Robert Fisher
Jun 5, 1871       Alford J. Randall
Jun 5, 1871 Seth Painter
Sep 30, 1871 Ezra G. Williams
May 1, 1872 John Mower
Aug 8, 1873 David Crowther
Mar 1, 1875 Leonidas A. Pritchett
Mar 1, 1875 Napoleon B. Johnson
Jun 15, 1875 Samuel White
Jan 20, 1876 Charles A. Zitting
Aug 23, 1876 Charles F. Randall
Aug 6, 1878 Mason Cutler
Apr 10, 1882 Elisha Thomas
Feb 10, 1883 Harvey Murdock
Dec 20, 1884 James Hutchens
Dec 23, 1890 Temple Short
Jan 21, 1897 George Bramwell
           

25



                      

Additional patents from the State of Utah:
            1870:  Hans C. Hegsted, Peter C. Stephenson

1872:  Thomas White
1873:   Thomas D. Brown, Alonzo Dabell, James Owen, William D. Pritchett

Arthur M. Rawson, Pleasant Green Taylor, Thomas Taylor
William Thompson, Lyman Wilson
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1874:  Stephen F. Wilson, James C. Westergard
1875:  John Blackey, Hans Bredeson, William R. Burnett,  Chloe A. Rawson Hancock, 

Charles B. Hancock, Jr., Samuel M. Hiatt
1876:  Swen Andersen, Jonathan Lane, William J. Larkin, William F. McEntire

George Payne, Levi J. Randall, Harvey Taylor
    1877:  David H. Hiatt, Newell W. Taylor

 1878:   Lorenzo Fisher, Richard Hayes, John Webster  
1879:   Charlotte S. Barratt
1880:    Hans C. Hegsted, Thomas L. Lee, Peter C. Stephenson

Many of  the  descendants  and relatives  of  the  above early settlers  also  live  in  Farr  West  
City--a number of them on the very land that was occupied by their family pioneers.

Continued Growth--Church and Civic

The year 1871 brought changes in community affairs.  Alonzo Pritchett,  Thomas D. 
Brown and Joseph Allen Taylor were chosen to be trustees (presumed to be for the school).  In 
August of that same year Daniel B. Rawson was elected Justice of the Peace in place of Ezra 
Chase.  On September 21st the first U. S. Mail was issued to Harrisville.  Stephen F. Wilson 
was appointed assistant  postmaster and kept this  office until  his  wife died of smallpox on 
January 17, 1878.

 The first organization of young men in the western part of Harrisville took place December 
20, 1873.  Known as the Debating Society, it was presided over by Thomas White with William 
J. Larkin as Vice-President and Sam Hiatt as Secretary. Its announced purpose was to cultivate 
the minds of young men in a time of study during winter evenings. Then on November 17, 
1875 the first organization of Young Ladies was completed in Harrisville (no names available). 
On  December  15th  of  that  same  year  the  Young  Men  were  reorganized,  after  which  the 
organization was known as the Young Men's Mutual Improvement Association.  Arthur M. 
Rawson became the first president with William A. Taylor, Sr., and Seth Painter as counselors.

In 1874 the William Rawson family moved from Ogden and settled on Rawson's Corner, 
which  includes  the  current  Owen C.  Garlick  family residence.   Mr.  Rawson established a 
general merchandise store.  About ten years later his store was purchased by he Relief Society 
and operated under their jurisdiction until  Harrisville was divided in 1890, after  which the 
stock was shared jointly by he two communities.

On May 8, 1875 a cooperative , called The Home 
Industrial  Cooperative Association of Harrisville, 
was organized with James Martin, President; Seth 
Painter, Vice President; William J. Larkin, William 
A. Taylor,  Sr.  and Thomas D. Brown, Directors; 
William C. Rawson, Secretary; Arthur M. Rawson, 
Treasurer.   This  group began raising  sugar  cane 
(see picture on left) and purchased a molasses mill 
and installed it on Six-mile Creek on a portion of 
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Daniel B. Rawson's land, where it could be run by water power.  The water wheel turned the 
grinders,  which extracted the juice from the sugar cane.   The juice was boiled to produce 
molasses, providing all the syrup or sugar that the settlers consumed in the coming years.

In 1876 the authorities of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints counseled the 
local members to begin their dances at 2 P. M. and close at 10 P. M.  This meant eight hours of 
dancing the schottische, quadrille, Virginia Reel, and Highland Fling.  The survivors of such 
vigorous activity should have been well prepared for any other part of frontier life.

Tragedy struck the settlement in the winter of 1879-80, when an epidemic of diphtheria took 
the lives of children.  Among the families who were affected were the Robert Fishers, who lost 
two children; the Temple Shorts, who lost three children; the Peter C. Stephensons, who lost 
two children, and the William A. Taylors, who lost three children.

On April 28, 1881 the West Harrisville Relief Society was first organized with Mary Hegsted, 
President; Mary Taylor,  1st  Counselor; Eliza C. Larkin,  2nd Counselor; Christena Hegsted, 
Secretary; and Eliza Jane Rawson, Treasurer.  The Primary was also organized with Harriet 
Dabell, President; Mary A. Rawson, 1st Counselor; Cora A. Larkin, 2nd Counselor; Catherine 
White,  Secretary;  and  Lorene  White,  Treasurer.   Then  in  about  February  1884  the  West 
Harrisville  Sunday School  was  organized  (separating  it  from Harrisville)  with  William J. 
Larkin, Superintendant; William F. McEntire, 1st Assistant; James Martin, 2nd Assistant; and 
Elizabeth Brown, Secretary.

Polygamy in Farr West 9

Some of the early settlers of Farr West who claimed membership in the Church of Jesus Christ 
of  Latter-day Saints  were  also  living  in  polygamy.   This  doctrine  had first  been  publicly 
declared in a special conference held in Salt Lake City August 28 and 29, 1852.  A number of 
the  L.  D.  S.  leaders  were  already practicing the  doctrine.   At  the end of  the  first  year  of 
migration  to  Utah,  the  number  of  women  had  exceeded  the  number  of  men;  this  excess 
continued for half a century.  Under the practice of polygamy, the "excess" of women was 
absorbed into family life.

The revelation of plural marriage was proclaimed by Brigham Young in 1852 and the 
practice became more common after that. It was held that any person could only attain the 
highest level of the celestial kingdom after death if he or she had been a partner in a plural  
marriage.

The exact percentage of Latter-day Saints who participated in the practice is not known, 
but  studies  suggest  a  maximum  of  from  20%  to  25%  of  LDS  adults  were  members  of 
polygamous households. At its height, plural marriage probably involved only a third of the 
women reaching marriageable age.
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The popular idea that Victorian Mormon husbands had many wives is untrue. Except 
for Church leaders, Mormon men rarely had more than three wives.

That the practice of plural marriage was defended in Farr West is evident from an entry 
dated 9 March 1870 in the Church Historian's Office copy of the History of Farr West, as 
follows:

"The Relief Society held an investigation meeting protesting in strong terms against 
passing a bill before Congress, known as the Cullom Bill.  They manifested a determination to 
support their husbands and sons in the principle of Patriarchal Marriage as revealed from 
Heaven, through the Prophet Joseph Smith."

Continued efforts by the federal government to suppress the practice of plural marriage 
included the following:

 March 1882 - Passage of the Edmunds Bill:
 Outlawed unlawful cohabitation
 Deprived all who lived in polygamy the right to vote or to hold public 

office.
 A mere belief in the practice of plural marriage was sufficient to bar a 

person from jury service.
 Declared all registration and election offices in  the state vacant
 No person who had ever lived the law of polygamy was allowed to vote

 October 1884 - A "segregation ruling” allowed separate indictments of a man for every 
day that he was found guilty of living with a plural wife.

 March 1887 - Congress passed the Edmunds-Tucker Law, which 
provided for disincorporation of the L. D. S Church and the Perpetual Emigration Fund 
Company.

A campaign of bitter  persecution ensued from all  the dictatorial  and unfeeling laws 
which is recorded in the History of Farr West in the Church Historian's Office, as follows:

 Jan.3, 1887 - Harvey Murdock was sentenced to the penitentiary for 5 
years and pay $500 for polygamy.  Persecution began in the winter of 1885.  Many were 
deprived of the association of their families and comforts of home by plans concocted by 
their enemies.
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 May 28, 1887 - Daniel B. Rawson and Hans Hegsted were sentenced to 
the penitentiary for six months.

The 

persecution which was related to polygamy continued unabated until after the Manifesto was 
issued September 25, 1890 by President Wilford Woodruff.  An indication of the seriousness of 
the conditions that had existed is found in the following entry on December 23, 1889 in the 
same ward history cited above, as follows: (U. S. laws) "were enacted to stamp out a practice, 
which members of the LDS faith were taught to be of divine origin, while others viewed it to 
be anti-Christian. 

"The authorities requested the people to fast  and pray that the Lord may check the 
persecution that exists among our people."
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Organization of Farr West Ward

   
                         Lorin Farr                       Chauncey W. West                  William A. Taylor

Just  about  two  months  after  the 
issuance  of  the  Manifesto,  a  public 

meeting, which became of singular 
significance  to  local  citizens,  was 
held  November  30,  1890  in  the 
"West  Schoolhouse."   At  this 
meeting a decision was announced 
to  separate  Harrisville  and  West 
Harrisville.   The  western  section 
was  named Farr  West  in  honor  of 
Lorin Farr, (see monument photo on 
next  page)  former president  of the 
Weber  Stake,  and  Chauncey  W. 
West, who had served as presiding 
bishop  of  Weber  County.  Both  of 

these men had held other  prominent 
positions.  Lorin Farr had been elected the first mayor of Ogden in 1850; Chauncey W. West 
had served as Brigadier-General of the Weber unit of the Nauvoo Legion, which was given the 
post of honor throughout the trouble with Johnston's Army.  Also, he had been president of the 
European Mission and had been a contractor for the Central Pacific Railroad in 1869.  Bearing 
the name of two such outstanding men was certainly an honor for the new community. 

31



William  Andrew 
Taylor,  Sr.  was  chosen  to  be 
the  first  bishop  of  Farr  West 
with  William C.  Rawson and 
Jacob Thomas as counselors. 

Church  meetings  had 
been  held  in  the  red  brick 
schoolhouse  until  the  anti-
Mormon  Liberal  Party 
(political) came into power in 
Ogden on February 1 ,  1889. 
This  party  soon  forbade  any 
religious  activities  to  be held 
in  school  buildings,  so  the 
need for a new meetinghouse 
became  an  urgent  priority. 
Charles  Chase,  an  expert 
carpenter,  cabinet maker and civil  engineer,  volunteered to oversee the project.   Under his 
supervision  the  construction  of  a  new  building  got  underway  at  once.   Members  of  he 
community attacked this assignment so vigorously that they were able to use the new building 
for their Christmas festivities on December 25, 1891.  The 56 x 30 foot building had been 
completed in four months at a cost of $1,500.  A loan from Sadie Randall enabled the ward to 
buy the lumber; ward members donated the work. Ten years' time was required to pay off the 
loan because cash was very scarce following the national debt crisis of 1893.
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After 

planning 
and organizing 
for ten  years, 

construction  of 
a  brick  L.D.S. chapel  was  begun  in  1923. 
Consisting  of  a chapel and nine classrooms, 
the new building was  erected  at  a  cost  of 
$19,700.   Mark Hess  of  Ogden,  Utah,  was 
the  contractor for  this  project.   Following 

its  completion,  the  building was  dedicated  by 
President  Heber  J.  Grant  (see  photo  above)  on 
May 21, 1926.
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In about 1930 Farr West Ward began the first Vanguard Troop in the Church of Jesus 
Christ of Latter-day Saints.  Members of that group are shown in the above photo.  Names are 
given from left to right.   Front row Leslie Painter and Seth Taylor; Center row,  Rulon Chugg, 
Robert Fisher, Alma Rawson, Duard Chugg; Back row, (Adviser) Lowell Cutler, Morris Taylor, 
Ferdinand Baird, Gilbert McEntire and Charles Groberg.  The Vanguards later evolved into the 
Explorers.
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This picture, taken in 1943, shows some of the older residents of the community at that 
time.   Left  to  right,  seated:   Mrs.  Clint  Young,  Eva  Brown,  Elizabeth  Taylor,  Nellie 
Rawson, Jennie Brown, and Jane E. (Bessie) Taylor.  Standing:  Clint Young, Grace Coy, 
Annie  Wayment,  Almon Dell  Brown,  Annie  Westergard,  Heber C.  Lund,  Alta  Lund, 
Reuben D.  Brown, Anastasia Papageorge, Leone Painter, and Riley E. Taylor

When the Farr West Ward was organized on 30 Nov 1890, it belonged to the Weber 
Stake.  When the North Weber Stake was organized 2 Aug 1908, Farr West became part of that 
stake.  On 18 Jan 1942 Farr West was included in the new Farr West Stake.  It became part of  
the newly organized Plain City Stake 30 Oct 1977.  When that stake was divided in December 
2000, the name "Farr West Stake" was reassigned to the town of Farr West.  Then on 14 Jun 
2012 the Farr West Utah Poplar Stake was created.  At that time the new stake and the Farr  
West Utah Stake both contained some Plain City members.

Loss of a Great Landmark -- Resulting Changes

During the night of Feb. 13, 1944 when Lt. Nolan R. Taylor stepped into the kitchen of 
his home, he noticed a bright light coming through the window.  When he hurried to see what 
was making such a bright light during the nighttime hours, he saw the ward amusement hall 
engulfed in flames.  Fifty-three years worth of precious memories were wrapped up in this 
historic landmark, which had served community members as their chapel and later as their 
amusement hall.
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For twelve years following the burning of the historic building the ward was somewhat 
limited in the type of activities that could be conducted.  Occasional arranging for the use of 
the Wahlquist School gymnasium satisfied the need for reunions, M. I. A. road shows, and 
other special occasions.  July 3, 1956 became another red-letter day for Farr West residents 
when ground was broken for an addition to the Farr West Ward Chapel.  The improvement 
involved  remodeling  of  the  existing  building  and  adding  a  cultural  hall,  kitchen  and 
classrooms.  Construction costs for the changes amounted to $142,000.  Wherever possible, 
ward members donated labor to  assist  in completing the project.   (Editor's  note:   A rather 
unique step in the fund raising was initiated by Bishop Theo L. Thompson.  He bought a load 
of wiener pigs at the Ogden Stockyards and brought them out into our community.  He drove 
from one farm to another, asking each farmer to volunteer to take as many pigs as possible to 
feed for the season.  Then the bishop came around in the fall to take the more mature pigs to 
market.  This assignment tested the faith of the farmers in many cases.  (The author remembers 
that his father Riley had built  a temporary fence around part of our straw stack,  but those 
young pigs had a way of burrowing around the end of the fence and getting out to "enjoy 
greener pastures.")
 

Upon completion of the construction and arrangements for dedication of the structure, 
the following announcement appeared in the local Standard Examiner newspaper:

Farr West to Dedicate Newly Remodeled Chapel
FARR WEST--The Farr West LDS Ward will dedicate its newly 
remodeled  and enlarged church building at  3  p.m.  on Sunday, 
with Elder Richard L. Evans of the Council of Twelve, giving the 
dedicatory prayer in the newly remodeled ward chapel.
 Other  speakers  will  include President  Raymond Pace of 
the  Farr  West  Stake,  Bishop Theo  Thompson of  the  Farr  West 
Ward, and Wilford Jensen, building supervisor.

The  Farr  West  Ward,  which  will  be  68  years  old  on 
Sunday,  was  originally  known  as  West  Harrisville.   It  was 
organized on November 30, 1890 with William Andrew Taylor as the first 
bishop.

Church meetings were first held in the community schoolhouse, and a year later a new 
frame church building was completed.  Ward members built the new structure in a short four 
months, but it took several years to pay off the indebtedness.

Bishop Taylor served until 1892 and was succeeded by William McEntire.  Six years 
later Bishop James Martin took over the ward's highest office.

BISHOP FOR 19 YEARS
In 1909 Moroni Chugg was sustained the new bishop, an office he held for 19 years.
During his administration a new brick church building was erected at a cost of $19,700. 

The new structure contained a chapel and nine classrooms.  This building was dedicated in 
1926 by President Heber J. Grant.

On May 20, 1928 Lorenzo Taylor was made bishop and served for 10 years.  He was 
succeeded by Almon D.  Brown,  who served as  bishop until  May,  1944.   James A.  Davis 
became next in line and headed the Farr West Ward until 1948

The present bishop, Theo L. Thompson, has guided the ward's activities since that time.

36



* * *
On July 3,  1956 ground was broken for  a  new addition to  the ward chapel.   This 

includes a recreation hall, Aaronic Priesthood room, Junior Sunday School and Relief Society 
rooms and a modern kitchen.

The  chapel  was  completely  remodeled  and  existing  classrooms  renovated  and 
improved.  Total cost of the project came to $142,000.  In addition the grounds surrounding the 
church have been completely landscaped and beautified and a large parking area has been hard 
topped.

Following the dedicatory services in the afternoon, the regular sacrament meeting will 
be held at 7:30 P.M.  At this time all former bishops of the ward, still living, will be honored.

They  will  include  Bishops  Chugg,  Taylor,  Brown,  Davis  and  the  present  Bishop 
Thompson.

         
 

The remodeled Farr West Ward Chapel

(See next page for copy of printed program for dedicatory 
services in remodeled chapel - 30 November 1958)
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Growth and Division

One  change  which  later  had  a  profound  effect  upon  community  life  was  the 
development of Ben Lomond Mobile Home Estates (Later renamed to Wasatch View Estates) 
in 1972 by the Saunders Brothers of Harrisville.  Its capacity: 268 units.  The author recalls that 
announcement  of  the  project  was  not  well  received  in  our  small  community  because  of 
unpleasant financial and social experiences that other mobile home communities introduced 
into the Ogden area.  Later another mobile home community followed in May 1972 at the 
south end of the community.  Dr. Rex M. Alvord developed this second community of 318 
units,  which  later  evolved  into  Westwood  Village  Mobile  Home  Community.  This  latter 
development brought much more positive results for Farr west than did the first. 

A mild controversy arose as tenants began moving into the Ben Lomond Mobile Home 
Estates.  The property was claimed by the town of Pleasant View for tax purposes; however,  
the townsfolk of Pleasant View felt that tenants of the estates should attend church in Farr  
West.  The matter was finally settled by presenting the matter to higher church authority; the 
tenants were to attend church in Farr West.  Interestingly, an immediate change took place once 
the matter was settled.  Newcomers from Ben Lomond Estates were welcomed into the Farr 
West Ward, and many warm and lasting relationships were established almost immediately. 
Farr West had a reputation for warmth and friendliness and intended to live up to that image.

The surge in population occasioned by its latest additions led to the division of the ward 
on October 22, 1972.  Owen C. Garlick became Bishop of the Farr West 1st Ward and Jay A.  
Davis became bishop of the Farr West 2nd Ward.

Population in the Farr West community showed gradual change following the initial 
division of  the ward.   However,  a  surge in  growth was triggered when the Randall  Acres 
subdivision in the northwestern part of the community was begun by developer Franklin D. 
Maughan, Sr. Soon Harvey Hill began development of a low-cost housing area in the extreme 
southern end of the town.  The Perry Berg subdivision in the western part of the community 
brought continued growth.  

. 

39



Below are the Farr West population statistics from available records:
                                                      

Year Populatio
n

Data Source

1900 484 Federal Census
1910 333 Federal Census
1920 391 Federal Census
1930 368 From State Library

Federal Census figures not readily available in years 1940 - 2000
            

2000 3014 obtained from the internet
2010 5228 obtained from city offices
2011 6010 obtained from city offices

See final section of this book for the federal census records for Farr West in the years 1900, 
1910 and 1920.

LDS Leadership

Those who held positions of leadership in the LDS wards during the early years are 
included below.   This  type  of  information  for  later  years  is  available  in  the  LDS Church 
History Department in Salt Lake City.

Office Name Sustained Released

Bishop William A. Taylor, Jr. 30 Nov 1890 6 Apr 1892

1st Counselor William C. Rawson 30 Nov 1890 26 Apr 1891

1st Counselor Jacob Thomas 15 Nov 1891 3 Jul 1892

2nd Counselor James Martin, Sr. 30 Nov 1890 3 Jul 1892

Bishop William F. McEntire 3 Jul 1892 30 Nov 1897

lst Counselor Jacob Thomas 3 Jul 1892 17 Jul 1898

2nd Counselor James Martin, Sr. 3 Jul 1892 17 Jul 1898

Ward Clerk Charles F. Larkin ? ?

Ward Clerk Charles H. Owen 1898 12 Oct 1902

Bishop James Martin, Sr. 17 Jul 1898 11 Apr 1909

lst Counselor Jacob Thomas 17 Jul 1898 11 Apr 1909
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2nd Counselor Joseph Stephenson 17 Jul 1898 11 Apr 1909

Ward Clerk Moroni Chugg 12 Oct 1902 11 Apr 1909

Bishop Moroni Chugg 11 Apr 1909 20 May 1928

1st Counselor Joseph Stephenson 11 Apr 1909 27 Aug 1911

2nd Counselor Harry D. Brown 11 Apr 1909 27 Aug 1911

lst Counselor Harry D. Brown 27 Aug 1911 20 May 1928

2nd Counselor Walter Cottle 27 Aug 1911 7 Dec 1913

Office Name Sustained Released

2nd Counselor Henry T. McEntire 7 Dec 1913 11 Nov 1917

2nd Counselor George B. Taylor 11 Nov 1917 20 May 1928

Ward Clerk Riley E. Taylor 25 Apr 1909 22 Jan 1928

Ward Clerk James A. Davis 22 Jan 1928 24 Jun 1928

Bishop Lorenzo Taylor 20 May 1928 21 Aug 1938

lst Counselor James A. Davis 20 May 1928 21 Aug 1938

2nd Counselor Ernest L. Jensen 20 May 1928 27 Sep 1936

2nd Counselor Chester O. Garlick 27 Sep 1936 27 Aug 1938

Ward Clerk W. Russell Taylor 24 Jun 1928 21 Sep 1930

Ward Clerk Clifford H. Dabb 21 Sep 1930 18 Sep 1938

Bishop Almon D. Brown 21 Aug 1938 26 Mar 1944

1st Counselor Theo L. Thompson 21 Aug 1938 26 Mar 1944

2nd Counselor Ervin Higley 21 Aug 1938 26 Mar 1944

Ward Clerk Grant H. Williams 18 Sep  1938 20 Oct 1940

Ward Clerk Thomas Dee D. Brown 25 Oct 1942 5 Nov 1944

Bishop James A. Davis 26 Mar 1944 26 Dec 1948

1st Counselor Theo L. Thompson 26 Mar 1944 21 Dec 1947

2nd Counselor Allen E. Taylor 26 Mar 1944 21 Dec 1947

1st Counselor Allen E. Taylor 21 Dec 1947 26 Dec 1948
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2nd Counselor James F. Painter 21 Dec 1947 28 Dec 1948

Ward Clerk Harold D. Taylor 4 Nov 1944 26 Dec 1948

Bishop Theo L. Thompson 26 Dec 1948 15 Mar 1959

lst Counselor Brian L. Taylor 26 Dec 1948 15 Mar 1959

2nd Counselor Adrain R. Gibby 26 Dec 1948 30 Mar 1952

2nd Counselor Richard Groberg 30 Mar 1952 15 Mar 1959

Ward Clerk James L. Taylor 26 Dec 1948 30 Sep 1951

Ward Clerk R. Cecil Williams 30 Sep 1951   6 Dec 1953

Ward Clerk Carl C. White 6 Dec 1953 15 Mar 1959

Finance Clerk Stanley R. Groberg 17 Feb 1957 15 Mar 1959

Bishop Charles Alfred Groberg 15 Mar 1959 18 Oct 1964

1st Counselor Wayne A. Bingham 15 Mar 1959 18 Oct 1964

2nd Counselor Owen C. Garlick 15 Mar 1962 18 Oct 1964

2nd Counselor Wayne A. Vause 11 Nov 1952 18 Oct 1964

Ward Clerk Howard K. Billings 15 Mar 1959 18 Oct 1964

Assistant Clerk George Davis 5 Apr 1959 22 Oct 1972

Assistant Clerk Jerry E. Jensen 5 Apr 1959 11 Aug 1963

Assistant Clerk Vernal V. Jolley 11 Aug 1963 1 Aug 1965
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Office Name Sustained Released

Bishop Brian L. Taylor 18 Oct 1964 13 Jun 1971

1st Counselor E. Lionel Brady, Jr 18 Oct 1964 13 Jun 1971

2nd Counselor Vern P. Hough 18 Oct 1964 11 Sep 1966

2nd Counselor Harold A. Westergard 11 Sep 1966 13 Jun 1971

Executive Clerk Wilford W. Scott 12 Mar 1972

Ward Clerk Richard S. Best 18 Oct 1964 1 Aug 1965

Ward Clerk Jerry E. Jensen 1 Aug 1965     Abt 1970

Ward Clerk H. Jay Vause     Abt 1970 22 Oct 1972

Assistant Clerk Carl C. White 1 Aug 1965 16 Feb 1969

Assistant Clerk Lloyd I. Dickerson 16 Feb 1969

Assistant Clerk Harvey W. Higley 22 Oct 1972

Bishop Owen C. Garlick 18 Jun 1972 1977

1st Coun R. Alton Griffin 18 Jun 1972 Jan 1973

2nd Coun Jay A. Davis 18 Jun 1972 22 Oct 1972

2nd Coun           Olof Hokanson 22 Oct 1972

1st Coun Olof Hokanson Jan 1973

2nd Coun Denis M. Petersen Jan 1973

1st Coun David Rowberry

2nd Coun Jay L. Petersen

2nd Coun E. Robert Rauzi 1977

Ward Clerk           H. Jay Vause 18 Jun 1972 22 Oct 1972

Ward Clerk Gerald I. Barnett  

Clerk Harvey W. Higley 22 Oct 1972

Clerk Chester O. Garlick

Exec Sec Wilford W. Scott 12 Mar 1972

Exec Sec Delbert C. Dabb

Exec Sec Robert A. Hunter

Typist Winona Dagsen

Typist Janice L. Taylor
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Typist Anita J. Taylor         14 Mar 1976 29 Aug 1976

Typist Margaret Attig

Bishop /FW1      Dale J. Chugg 1977

1st Coun             E. Robert Rauzi 31 Aug 1980

2nd Coun Sheldon W. Taylor    31 Aug 1980

1st /Coun            Gerald I. Barnett

2nd Coun            John L. Watson
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On 22 Oct 1972 the first ward division took place, creating the Farr West 1st and 2nd 
wards.  Bishop Owen C. Garlick and his coworkers continued serving in the Farr West 1st 
Ward.

Bishop, 2nd Ward Jay A. Davis 22 Oct 1972 16 Feb 1975

1st Counselor Harvey W. Higley 22 Oct 1972 16 Feb 1975

2nd Counselor Keith R. DeGroot 22 Oct 1972 14 Jul 1974

2nd Counselor Lewis G. Barker 14 Jul 1974 16 Feb 1975

Executive Secretary Larry W. Christensen 22 Oct 1972 18 Nov 1973

Executive Secretary Grant W. Bean 18 Nov 1973 10 Aug 1975

Asst Exec Secretary Dennis W. Richardson 18 Nov 1973

Ward Clerk Maurice D. Black 22 Oct 1972 10 Aug 1976

Assistant Clerk Keith B. Jackson 22 Oct 1972 30 Mar 1975

Assistant Clerk Lex A. Jensen 22 Oct 1972

Assistant Clerk Lewis G. Barker 16 Sep 1973 21 Jul 1974

Assistant Clerk Robert E. Bartruff 1 Sep 1974 12 Oct 1975

Typist Francis M. Lyons 2 Dec 1973 1974

Bishop, 2nd Ward Harold A. Westergard 16 Feb 1975 21 May 1978

lst Counselor Kent B. Malan 16 Feb 1975 20 May 1976

2nd Counselor Robert R. Rowe 16 Feb 1975 30 May 1976

1st Counselor Charles A. Groberg 30 May 1976 7 Nov 1976

1st Counselor Reo A. Casper 14 Nov 1976 23 Oct 1977

1st Counselor Ross C. Moore 23 Oct 1977 21 May 1978

2nd Counselor Arvel D. Dean 30 May 1976 21 May 1978

Executive Secretary James L. Solt 10 Aug 1975 1977

Executive Secretary Lewis G. Poorte 1977 21 May 1978

Asst. Exec. Secretary James L. Solt 9 Mar 1975 10 Aug 1975

Ward Clerk Reo A. Casper 10 Aug 1976 14 Nov 1976

Ward Clerk James F. Socwell 14 Nov 1976 1977

Ward Clerk Lloyd R. Warner 1977 1978

Assistant Clerk Len S. Westergard 12 Oct 1975 28 Jan 1979
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Assistant Clerk Lewis G. Barker 21 May 1978

Office Name Sustained Released

Bishop, 2nd Ward Harvey W. Higley 21 May 1978

1st Counselor Jay A. Davis 21 May 1978 12 Nov 1978

1st Counselor Val T. Stratford 12 Nov 1978

2nd Counselor Paul W. Bryner 21 May 1978

Executive Secretary Terry W. Polson 21 May 1978

Ward Clerk Lewis G. Barker 21 May 1978

Assistant Clerk Gerlynn F. Westergard 21 May 1978 9 Sep 1979

Assistant Clerk Alan Mecham 17 Dec 1978 30 Mar 1980

Assistant Clerk Russel Gough 28 Jan 1979

Assistant Clerk Tim Baker 9 Sep 1979

Assistant Clerk James W. Hales 9 Dec 1979

Assistant Clerk Ryan Shaw 30 Mar 1980

Typist Loraine Warner 1977 1979

On Sunday, 31 August 1980 members of the Farr West wards were invited to attend a meeting 
at 4:00 P.M. in the Plain City Stake Center.  The following releases were announced:

Position Farr West 1st Ward Farr West 2nd Ward

Bishop Harvey W. Higley

lst Counselor E. Robert Rauzi                Paul W. Bryner

2nd Counselor Sheldon W. Taylor Val T. Stratford

The following bishoprics were sustained by the respective wards:

Position   Farr West 1st Ward Farr West 2nd Ward Farr West 3rd Ward    

Bishop Dale  J.  Chugg 
(Retained)

Jay A. Davis Z. Lee Dickemore

1st Coun   Gerald I. Barnett Martin Stephens Val T. Stratford

2nd Coun  John L. Watson Kent J. Wilson Edwin R. Rowe

Church Buildings
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A picture of the original LDS chapel is located on page 32 of this history.  The original 
brick chapel picture is on page 34.  The enlarged brick chapel picture is on page 38.    The 
subsequently rebuilt chapel is shown on page 40.  More recently constructed chapels are shown 
on the following page.  

Farr West 1st Ward Chapel
(Cottonwood Creek)

1800 West 1800 North
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Photos of Bishops of Farr West

Taken about 1960
Front row, l .to r., Almon D. Brown, Moroni 

Chugg, Lorenzo Taylor; 
Standing: Charles A. Groberg, James A. Davis, 

and Theo L. Thompson

1983
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Front row, l .to r., James A.  Davis, Charles A. Groberg, Owen C. Garlick, Brian L. 
Taylor, Harold A. Westergard; Standing:  Harvey W. Higley, Jay A. Davis, Gerlynn F. 

Westergard, Z. Lee Dickemore, A. Sid Willis, John L. Watson, Dale J. Chugg

Front row, L. to R., Brian L. Taylor, Owen C. Garlick, Dale J. Chugg, John L. Watson, 
Denis M. Petersen, Thomas R.  Van Dyke; Rear, R. Alton 

Griffin, Larry Hansen, Cameron Watson (for Stephen M. Petersen) , John Cardon, 
Stephen C. Gertsch, John D. Chugg

Farming Changes in Farr West

The earliest settlers in Farr West were concerned with raising what they had to eat.  The 
first settlers who came to live in this area were farmers who utilized horse-drawn implements 
to work the soil.   The author has  not  only  seen  a  horse-drawn  plow  that  the  farmer 
followed  on  foot,  but  has used one to plow the headlands of a field and fully 
utilize the land. 
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Joseph Taylor no doubt had one of these plows (shown on left) among the "farming utensils" 
that he itemized in an 1853 listing of his possessions before moving to Farr West.
           Early settlers of Farr West were required to use tools for harvesting hay and 
grain that seem rather primitive to us today. The scythe (see picture on 
right)  was  used  to  cut  hay  and  grain.   While  this  seems  to  be  a 
difficult way--and a slow one--for cutting a crop, a good worker 
could cut five acres or more  a day

     For cutting grain, a cradle was attached to the scythe.  It was a device with 
"fingers" that caught the grain when the operator made a swoop with the blade.  The 
grain  heads  would  all  be  lying  in  one  direction  as  the  swoop  ended,  enabling  the 
operator to empty the grain in a pile for binding by hand.

 Threshing of the grain in those days was usually done in a special area 
called the threshing floor.  There the grain was usually beaten with a flail or hinged 
stick to get the grain out of the heads.  Afterward, the chaff was sifted out of the 
wheat, allowing the breeze to carry off the light chaff as the grain was dropped from a 
container.

By the time Farr West was settled, grist 
mills were already established in North Ogden 
and Ogden.  Earliest settlers in the county had 
been previously required to take their wheat to 
Salt Lake City to get it ground into flour.

With the passing of  time machines  were 
developed  to  cut  the  grain  and  bind  it  into 
bundles,  which  were  then  stood  on  end  in 
shocks to dry for threshing. (See photo on left) 
These  bundles  were  later  hauled  into  the 
threshing site  and stacked for  convenience  of 
threshing  as  shown  below.   Gradually  the 
farmers  graduated  to  the  use  of  grain 
"separators"  which  were  driven  by  steam 
engines.          

 
Of  all  the  farming  activities  in 

bygone  years,  none  brings  more  poignant 
memories  than  threshing  time.   After  better  machinery  became 
available, several threshers were used in the county, but to Farr West 
farmers,  the  word  "thresher"  was  synonymous  with  the  old  steam 

engine owned by J. Elsbury Garlick, Henry T. McEntire and Hans C.(Chris) Westergard.  These 
partners enlisted the services of Ezra D. Taylor to run the old "water wagon."
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           A blast from the familiar steam whistle would announce to townsfolk the whereabouts 
of the community attraction, causing groups of children to excitedly convey to the grownups 
indoors some message such as "The thresher is down to Martin's place."  

          
        The old steam engine always seemed to move at a snail's pace from one farm to the 
next,  where  the  various  thresher  "stations"  would  be  manned  by the  threshing  crew.   To 
youngsters  the  great  machine  seemed  monstrous.   How  they  loved  to  watch  as  Chris 
Westergard guided the huge engine down the street, the gigantic metal wheels making a "ping" 
sound whenever  they flipped an occasional  loose  rock off  the gravel-topped roads.   Chris 
seemed  to  have  a  special  knack  for  placing  the  grain  separator  machine  just  right, 
disconnecting the hitch from the steam engine, then deftly wheeling the steam engine around 
facing the separator at just the right angle and distance.  Soon all hands were ready, and the 
men on the stacks began feeding the golden bundles, head first, into the hungry behemoth after 
the roar of the equipment mounted to operating speed.

Plump Elsbury Garlick was a familiar sight around the thresher with his long-spouted 
oil can, a red handkerchief folded once and tied around his neck to keep out the dust.  Henry 
McEntire's domain was the bagging process.  After a bag had been filled, he would switch the 
bagger controls to begin filling another sack and then help the grain carrier hoist the heavy 
sack of wheat onto his shoulder so he could transport it to the granary.

          The "blower boy," who guided the straw blower so it would form a neat straw stack, 
always had the dusty, dirty job.  How he longed to grow up so he could be graduated from that  
assignment.   (Personal note:   After the job was finished and the crew had evaporated into 
nowhere, the author could hardly wait to undress and jump in the old milk-cooling tank for a 
chance to wash off the itchy threshing dust.)

                   The women folk helped to make threshing the memorable experience that it  was. 
Mealtime for the threshing crew meant an opportunity for the housewife and her helpers to put 
on an exhibition of culinary art--and almost without exception those heaping bowls and platters 
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of steaming food were fit for a king.  A number of young men loved to "follow the thresher" to  
make a little extra money AND to savor those daily feasts.

Later, during the 1940's, stacking grain became a thing of the past.  Farmers found a 
way to save handling the grain so much by exchanging work and just loading the grain onto 
wagons from which it was fed directly into the thresher.

In about1950 when the threshing operation gave way to modern combining equipment, 
a golden era of farm life came to a close.

The War Years' Impact on Farr West

Through the years a number of Farr West residents have either volunteered or been 
drafted into the service of our country   At least three of the early settlers of this area (Daniel B. 
Rawson, Sr.,  James Owen,  and Joseph Taylor)  had been members  of the famous Mormon 
Battalion from its organization on July 16, 1846, traveling 2,000 miles from Fort Leavenworth 
to San Diego before being discharged July 16, 1847.  Ten years later when the Utah War began, 
Major Joseph Taylor of Farr West was ordered by General Daniel H. Wells of the Nauvoo 
Legion to annoy and hinder Johnston's Army in every possible way as it moved toward Salt  
Lake City.  Captured by the United States troops early in 1857, Joseph nearly lost his life by 
food poisoning and by being suffocated by smoke within a tent arranged for that purpose. 
However, he was able to escape and return to friendly territory.

When the United States was driven to declare war on Germany April 6, 1917 during 
World War I, nine young men from Farr West were enlisted in the service of our country:

Clarence Gould Elmer Taylor Earl Booth

Nathan Chugg Wendell Homer W. Russell Taylor

George Davis Charles F. Larkin J. Earl Thomas

Although  some  of  these  men  were  sent  overseas,  only  one  experienced  front  line 
combat.  Earl Booth was gassed (not fatal).

After  the United States entered World War II  on December 7,  1941, an impressive 
group of men and one woman from this community served our country:

Clarence D. Brown Watha R. Brown Grant D. Chugg Rulon V. Chugg

Lewis Cook Blaine Coy Lowell Cutler Donald M. Dickamore

Richard E. Engle J. Howell Fisher Charles A. Groberg Richard Groberg

Stanley R. Groberg Thomas E. Higgins  Donald R. Jensen Dan F.Kimose

James A. Kimose Carl A. Lund Dale Markland Chris H. Markos

Herman Markos James H. Markos Lowell A. McEntire William J. McEntire
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Lamar Murdock Perry Gale Norwood Richard G. Norwood John F. Painter

Virgil Painter Robert T. Pledger Glen Rawson A. Ray Rawson

Urban V. Rawson Joyce Saint Kenneth D. Schoonmaker Bill M. Smith

Byron S. Taylor Clarence A. Taylor DeWain Taylor E. Robert Taylor

Garold T. Taylor Leland D. Taylor Lewis D. Taylor Melvin H. Taylor

Nolan R. Taylor Verl L. Taylor Leon B. Thompson Harold O. Vause

Wayne A Vause Frank C. Westergard Harold  A. 
Westergard

Three were killed in 
action:

Joe Markland Donald G. Taylor   Andrew Todd

 
When World War II began in 1941, the number of ward members serving in the armed 

forces kept growing. In 1943, members of the Farr West Ward began publishing a monthly 
letter, which was sent to the servicemen to lift their spirits and keep them aware of happenings 
in their home town.  Often the newsletter contained one or more pictures of servicemen and 
gave information about their current activities.  The following pages include excerpts from 
some of these newsletters.

53



 

54



During the war years those homes which had a representative serving in the armed 
forces displayed a special flag on the front door.  A blue star was placed on the flag for each 
member of  the family who had joined a  branch of  the armed forces.  When a family was 
notified that one of their sons had lost his life in service to his country, a gold star replaced the 
blue  one.  (See  below for  an  illustration  of  the  men  wearing  the  uniforms  of  the  various 
branches of the service and of a service-related flag displayed in the home.)                                
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Roger K. Petersen is shown here 
unveiling the monument memorializing 
Farr West servicemen in the Farr West 

City Park in 1976.

World  War  II  brought  other 
changes into community life.  The building of defense installations in the Ogden area (Hill 
Field--September 7, 1940, Ogden Arsenal--revitalized September 1, 1936; and Utah General 
Depot, later called Defense Depot Ogden--September 15, 1941) attracted quite a significant 
number of people of varying skills and abilities.  Many Farr West residents (women as well as 
men) joined the workforce at one of these installations.  The shifting of employment to defense 
installations and the induction of so many men into the armed forces depleted the farm labor 
supply to the point that local farmers had to join together in small groups for mutual assistance 
in  harvesting  crops.   In  addition,  migrant  labor  was  brought  in  to  do  some of  the  work, 
particularly thinning and hoeing sugar beets and harvesting farm produce.  For a short time 
Italian and German prisoners of war that were housed at Utah General Depot also were used 
for some farm labor.  (Interesting note: one Italian POW married a Utah girl and together they 
raised their family in Farr West.)

Education

On August  5,  1872 a school  meeting was called to  consider  a  new schoolhouse in 
western part of Harrisville.  The Harrisville Ward historical record adds the reason--"here being 
132 children."  A decision was made at the meeting to levy a tax of one percent to build a 
school and one percent to buy fuel and pay the trustees.  A frame building measuring 18 x 36 
feet and located on the north side of the present community park in the center of town, was 
constructed under the direction of Richard D. Brown and the trustees.  (See Artist Don Ellis' 
drawing of this building below.)
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In the summer of 1873 Mrs.  Eliza Smith taught  school  in  the new frame building. 
Samuel  N.  Hiatt  taught  during the following winter.   He was followed in  turn  by Lenora 
Rawson the next summer.  George Bramwell, Sr., taught during the winter of 1874-75.  The 
school trustees at that time were Thomas D. Brown, Peter Later and Noel L. Shurliff.  Stephen 
F. Wilson taught school during the winter of 1875.
          

The year 1880 brought the completion of a new red brick school building in Farr West. 
This one-room structure, measuring 42 x 26 feet, cost $2,500.  At the dedication one of the  
speakers  remarked  that  the  building  was  an  ornament  to  the  community.   The  frame 
schoolhouse that had been used previously was moved about one-half mile east to become part 
of the home of Thomas D. Brown.  An addition was later made to the brick building.
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School  in  the  red  brick  building  was  conducted  quite  differently  from the  modern 
school.  Approximately 120 students were enrolled in this earlier school, ranging from those 
who  were  learning  their  ABC's  to  those  who  were  on  the  fifth  reader.   No  grades  were 
established.

Some of  the  teachers  in  the  new red  brick  building  included  Joseph  Sidwell,  Ella 
Windrow, Carrie Canfield, Julia Hawkes, John Rawson, Ephraim Bird, Sarah Hawkes, Mattie 
Dye, Benjamin J. Critchlow, Lorenzo Waldrom, Riley Dixon, Levi Taylor, Mormon Cragun 
and Newell Taylor.  Inga Hegsted taught the lower grades in the winter of 1891-92.  Mary 
Taylor taught from 1897 to 1902 and Enoch Groberg taught about this same time.

In 1872 the first Sunday School of West Harrisville was organized as a branch school 
under the direction of Superintendent Peter Later of Harrisville.  William J. Larkin, chosen as 
acting superintendent, served with assistants William D. Pritchett and James Martin.  This West 
Harrisville  locality  became  a  separate  district  of  Harrisville.   Thomas  J.  White  acted  as 
presiding officer of the district until his death on July 17, 1885, when he was succeeded by 
William C. Rawson.

In  1914  the  red  brick  school  had 
become  too  small  to  meet  the  community 
needs.   The  first  and  second  grades  were 
being conducted in the basement of the ward 
meetinghouse.   That  summer  a  new,  four-
room yellow brick school was constructed. 
It  remained  in  use  until  consolidation  of 
some  county  schools  was  begun  in 
December 1928.

The  principals  of  this  elementary 
school  were  as  follows:   Mrs.  Applegate, 
1914-15; Mr. Smith, 1915-16a; Mrs. Jesse Morgan, 1916-1917; Mrs. Naomi Stern,, 1917-18; 
Douglas Brian, 1918-1921; Charles Owen, 1921-24; John C. Neal, 1924-26;; Arthur C. Taylor, 
1926-29; A. D. McKee, 1929-30; Leland W. Rhees, 1930-33; Lawrence W. Jenkins, 1933-34; 
and Alysses Mortensen, 1934 to the time the building was abandoned.

On September 28, 1939 the Farr West Elementary School property was transferred to 
the Farr West Ward from the Weber County Board of Education following the removal of the 
yellow brick  schoolhouse.   The school  property was used to  raise  sugar  beets  for  Church 
Welfare purposes the next year.  The property underwent two separate leveling projects on 
successive years before being established as a community park.  Arrangements were made to 
support  the  park  financially  through  taxation  of  property  owners  when  the  Farr  West 
Community Park District was established in 1977. 
In 1941 the  new Wahlquist  Elementary School  began to accommodate  the children of  the 
community.   Located  in  the  southeast  extremity  of  the  community,  it  provided  improved 
facilities  for  education.   This  school  was  later  dedicated  as  a  junior  high  school  on  28 
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December  1950. 
(Special  arrangements 
were  made  with  the 
Weber  County  School 
District  for  the  Farr 
West  Ward  to  hold 
special  programs, 
reunions  and dances  at 
Wahlquist  until  the 
ward  chapel  was 
remodeled and enlarged 
in  1959.)   Elementary 
school  children  then  attended  Plain  City  Elementary  School  until  the  new  Farr  West 
Elementary School on 2700 North Street was dedicated 13 Sep 1984.  

When 
building  of  the 
new  Farr  West 
elementary 
school  on  2700 
North;  Street 

was being planned in 1984, one requirement that was levied on the city was to install sidewalks 
for the safety of children walking to and from the school.  These lovely new sidewalks were 
later used consistently by students who live near the school, but when local newspapers began 
to report kidnappings and oher related crimes near schools, many parents became so concerned 
that they began to use their family vehicles to deliver their children right to the school in the 

morning  and pick them up at the end of the school day. The new 
sidewalks  soon  became a  convenient  exercise/jogging  path  for 
people from near and far.
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Transportation

The  first  settlers  in  this  area  who  were  not  content  to  walk  wherever  they  went 
depended on horsepower--either simply riding on horseback or using the animals to pull  carts 
or buggies (below left),  surreys, or white-top buggies (below right).

Niels 
Peter  Lee 
became  the 
proud  owner 
of  the  first 

bicycle in the community.  It was much like 
the modern ones except that it had a double 
tube.     

During the early days in Farr West when a resident needed to travel from one place to 
another and had no vehicle, he simply walked.  In bad weather these pedestrians who had to 
use poor roads grew used to having muddy shoes or boots.  The author, who walked one-
quarter mile to school, frequently had to dodge mud puddles in the road,  In colder weather the 
frozen puddles made interesting places to smash the thin ice coverings.  In the summer the 
county road department sent a grader occasionally to smooth the roads' surface.  Dusty roads 
generated the need for "water wagons" to sprinkle the country roads so residents did not have 
to endure occasional clouds of dust.

In about 1930 Farr West got its first taste of paved roads when West Harrisville Road 
was paved as far west as about 1800 West.  Gradual change brought paving to all roads in the 
town.

When  Napoleon  McEntire  bought  a  Ford,  he 
introduced gas-powered vehicles into the community. 
The Model-T Ford (see photo at left) was being sold 
in this country between 1908 and 1927.  The author 
vaguely remembers his father's owning one of these 
modern miracles.   Occupants of the car enjoyed fresh 
air in the summer time.  However, in cold weather the 
occupants  of  the  vehicle  had to  attach side-curtains 

and take along some warm lap robes to be comfortable during any journey along the highways.

In  1896 the  Southern  Pacific  Railroad laid  out  and built  their  railroad  through the 
eastern part of the community just east of the Dudley Chase farm and north to the Utah Hot 
Springs.  Approximately 3,000 Chinese laborers worked between Ogden and Brigham City, 
using shovels and wheelbarrows to build the railroad grade.  This railroad line later acquired 
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the name Oregon Shortline.  The OSL was independent for a short 
period  of  time  until  October  1898  when  the 
newly  reformed  Union  Pacific  Railroad  took 
control of a majority of the board of directors. 
During  the  early  part  of  the  20th  century  the 
railroad  publicized  tours  of Yellowstone 
National  Park  by  way  of  a  spur  constructed 
from Idaho  Falls,  Idaho to West  Yellowstone, 
Montana.  In  1938,  Union  Pacific  began 
consolidating  operations  and  leased  for 
operation a number of its subsidiaries including 
the  Oregon  Short  Line.  The  railroad  operated 
under the lease until December 30, 1987, when 

the  OSL was  fully 
merged into the Union Pacific Railroad.

 Transportation 
improvement  for  Farr 
West came in 1909 with 
the  building  of  a 
railroad  from Ogden  to 
Plain  City.   By 1911 a 
branch  of  the 
Washington  Avenue 
Steam  Line  was  in 

operation.  It  followed  a  route  along 
Harrisville Road from Five Points to the Harrisville Brickyard, thence west to Plain City.  An 
engine, coal car and passenger car made three trips daily.  The train was called the Plain City 
Dummy (because in the 1890s the Salt Lake and Ogden Railway was started with dummy 
streetcars, small steam locomotives that resembled regular electric streetcars) and the line was 
called the Ping-pong. About 1916 this service was taken over  by an electric car line operated 
by the Utah-Idaho Central Railroad until passenger traffic was discontinued in 1935.  Freight 
deliveries continued a few years longer.
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      Left,  the  electric 
passenger  car;  right,  the 
school bus that succeeded 
it  in Weber  County.   The 
author remembers how the 
yellow  buses  saved  time 
by  taking  a  more  direct 
route to school, rather than 
having  to  ride  the  train 
into  Ogden at  24th  street 
and  just  west  of  Grant 
Avenue, then walk east to 
Washington,  where 
students had to wait for an 
electric  streetcar  to  carry 

them north to Weber High School at 11th and Washington Boulevard.  In the afternoon the 
process was reversed, where students had to wait at the Bamberger station for the scheduled 
departure of the electric car for Plain City.

 During World War II and later, Farr West residents saw an increasing number of semi-trucks 
routed  through  this  area.   Development  of  the  interstate  freeway  after  1964  spawned  a 
seemingly  endless number of trucking firms, which in time made 

inroads  into the railroads' business. 

When  a  decision  was  made  by  the 
government  to  construct  a  freeway  that 
involved a routing through Farr West, citizens 
endeavored to get planners to consider going 
further west to disrupt fewer homes and farms.
Those  who  were  planning  the  construction 
prepared a special display in Ogden to explain 

their reasoning  for  announced  plans,  which  emphasized 
economic advantage to businesses in the Ogden area.  When appraisers began contacting Farr 
West residents to indicate what was being offered for their real estate (including one home), 
this author arranged a town meeting to consider a course of action.  A personal lawyer friend of 
this writer was invited to attend the meeting and give advice on the matter.  Since the initial 
offers  that  had  been  made  for  land  acquisition  seemed  ridiculously  low,  the  lawyer 
recommended taking the matter to court.  He had been particularly successful previously in his 
service on such matters, so the individual court cases were arranged.  This writer's court case, 
which was the first to be scheduled, resulted in a payment of three times the original offer. 
Even then no extra payment was allowed for the fact that the freeway took the middle third of 
the  farm,  requiring  the  property  owner  to  travel  an  extra  half-mile  each  week  to  obtain 
irrigation water for his farm.  The legal action did set a precedent, which brought some benefit 
to those whose court  cases followed.  Construction of the interstate highway proceeded as 
planned.
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Initially  the  volume  of  traffic  on  the  completed  freeway  seemed  insignificant. 
However, it continued to grow (along with a much heavier traffic flow along 2700 North Street 
when this street was extended almost straight east to North Ogden.)

   

See the above photos of traffic on 2700 North (left)  and I-15 (right) on a normal day.  The 
volume of traffic on 2000 West  Street  exploded whenever traffic on the freeway was shut 
down, usually because of a traffic accident.

In an effort to reduce the noise problem for residents near I-15, sound barriers appeared 
along the freeway with increased frequency.  Nearby residents began to complain at once about 
decreased visibility and the unsightly appearance of the wall.  One wonders what the future 
might hold for complaints from freeway-related challenges.

                 Economic Developments

Electrical  service  began  in  the  community  May  29,  1916 
bringing improved lighting,  then washing machines, irons, water systems and 
other conveniences.  The author remembers that circa 1928 the family living 
room light was a single light globe (about 100 watts), hung from an electric 
cord in the center of the room, with a round white glass reflector about 10 
inches in diameter located just above the light globe.  When electric service 
was interrupted, the family resorted to use of the kerosene lamp.  These lamps 
were also used to heat curling irons (see illustration at left), which ladies used 
to  curl  their  hair  when  preparing  for  public  meetings  or  other  special 

occasions. 

About 1910 George White built a store near the southeast corner of his lot near 2159 North 
2000 West.  In 1917 the store burned down.  Prior to this time stores had been operated by 
William and Jane Rawson, Dudley Chase, Thomas D. Brown and Charles Littlewood. About 
1930 Fawn Markland operated a gas station and candy store (see photo on left) at her home at 
about 1923 North 2000 West.

63



Data  extracted  from  the 
biographies  of  the  earliest  settlers  in  the 
Farr  West  area  indicate  most  of  them 
depended  upon  agriculture  for  their 
sustenance.   An  event  of  significant 
economic importance to farmers was the 

introduction of the  sugar  beet  industry  in  1898  and  the 
building of a factory in Wilson Lane by the 
Amalgamated  Sugar  Company.   Beets 

from Farr West were delivered to  the railroad in Harrisville.   The 
price was $4.25 per ton.  In those days before any special tools and 
equipment were developed, kitchen knives were used to thin the beets 
about  six  inches  apart.   Beets  did  not  grow  very  large.   When 
harvesting time came, kitchen knives were again used to cut off the 
beet tops as they were prepared for hauling to Harrisville.

Farmers in the area were pleased when special equipment was 
designed  and  built  for  planting,  thinning,  cultivating  and 
harvesting the  beets.  Thinning the beets had always been a 

memorable  experience.   Using short-handled  hoes  and  bending  over  the  rows,  those  who 
performed this operation had to have a lot of endurance as they thinned the beets about 12-14 

inches apart.  Thinners had to exert a lot of self control to 
not  stand  frequently  to  rest  their  backs.   Discipline, 
endurance  and close  attention  enabled  some thinners  to 
finish almost a half-acre of beets in a day.

For a number of years sugar beets were hauled directly to 
the sugar factory on Wilson Lane.  Then in 1914 a local 
sugar  beet  weighing  station  or  "beet  dump"  was 
constructed near the northwest corner of 1800 North and 

2000 West streets.  The horse-drawn wagons (later trucks) would 
pull onto the weighing station for weighing, then pull up to a platform 
where cables and pulleys would lift one side of the wagon and dump the beets into a hopper. 
From there the beets were elevated to a structure where most of the soil  and leaves were 
separated from the beets and dumped into a different "hopper."  The emptied wagon or truck 
would then pull beneath the hopper and trip a lever which allowed the soil and leaves to be 
dumped back into the wagon for weighing again as "tares."  The processed beets were loaded 
onto another elevator which dumped the beets into railroad cars.  When railroad cars were not 
available,  the beets would be hauled out  west of the station and shoveled by hand onto a 
storage pile.  Later in the season when railroad cars were available, the beets would be loaded 
onto wagons and again sent through the elevator into the waiting railroad cars.  In later years 
the local beet dump was not used, so trucks would haul the beets directly to the Hot Springs 
weighing station or to the main factory on Wilson Lane.  Even more recently the beets were 
delivered to a weighing station located on 2700 North Street at a location north of the Weber 
Industrial Park.
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The early Farr West settlers had to raise what they ate.  They grew hay and grain, and 
they  kept  a  family  garden.   Likewise,  they  raised  the  beef  and  pork  products  that  they 
consumed.  Soon they began hauling these products from their home to ready customers in 
Ogden City.  In time some farmers began growing such cash crops as onions, tomatoes, peas 
and potatoes.  The passing of a few decades brought the demise of most smaller farms.  By 
2013 housing development and commercial  enterprises have chipped away at  farming land 
until the Dale Chugg and the Papageorge dairy operations are really the only large farms that 
still exist.  Even the Lyle Dabb farm, which had a profitable business selling farm produce to 
ready customers, has found a more profitable venture in making and selling decorative wreaths.

 The first post office in Farr West, after it became a separate community, was established 
in the home of Charles Smith in 1900.  The first rural free delivery was carried by Henry Hall  
about 1905.  Others who followed Mr. Hall were Mr. Kershaw, Charles Smith, Fred Kenley, 
LaVelle Butt, Fred Keeter, Deloss Bingham and Owen Stevens.

The  year  1905  brought  the  introduction  of  the  Independent  Telephone  with  fifteen 
families signing contracts.  These families were required to subscribe to company stock before 
getting  service.   During  the  same year  the  Faust  Creamery Company erected  a  skimming 
station near the northeast corner of the intersection of 1800 North and 2000 West streets.  After 
several  years  this  venture  was  abandoned  and  the  lot  was  sold  to  the  Jensen  Creamery 
Company on March 4, 1913.

In 1923 the building of a pea vinery by the 
Utah  Packing  Corporation  on  property  now 
owned by the Papageorge Family brought real 
economic benefits  to  the numerous farmers  in 
the community (See photo on left).    

Older residents of Farr West still remember the 
long  lines  of  horse-drawn  wagons  at  the  pea 
vinery,  awaiting  a  turn  to  get  their  precious 
cargo threshed--also, the aroma of the stack of 
pea  vines  about  a  month  later  as  the  evening 
breeze  from North  Ogden  Canyon  spread  the 
"ripe"  odor  westward  across  the  community 
This was followed the next year by organization 

of the first dairy cooperative in the area.  The co-op built a skimming station on the north side 
of West Harrisville Road on property now owned by Delbert C. Dabb.  This cooperative later 
incorporated as the Weber Central Dairy Association, which later evolved into Western General 
Dairies, Inc.

From humble beginnings in 1947 the Smith and Edwards store at the north end of Farr 
West has a fascinating history.  Started by Lawrence Edwards and Bert Smith as a military 
surplus venture, this unique business venture has passed through three generations of the Smith 
family, expanding into a 171,000 square foot facility.  It has included departments for camping, 
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fishing,  backpacking,  climbing,  caving, 
hunting,  guns  &  ammo,  emergency 
preparedness,  an extraordinary selection  of 
Dutch oven cookware, marine, water sports, 
western  tack  sales  and  manufacturing, 
western  jewelry,  clothing,  coats,  footwear, 
toys,  housewares,  hardware,  automotive, 
paint, plus  U. S. and international military 
surplus - all this in addition to the sixty acre 
yard which is  filled with a variety of U.S. 
and  international  military  surplus  …the 
"scrap" that started it all."

Proceeding south from Smith and Edwards,  numerous  commercial  and professional 
enterprises  greet  the  eye.   Quite  a  number  of  them  are  scattered  among  the  residential 
dwellings.  Then as one travels east on the 2700 North Street, he encounters a Maverick service 
station that is said to rank as number one in business volume for that service chain in Utah.  An 
enormous Associated Foods warehouse is  situated just  east  of the freeway,  besides several 
eating establishments; Farr West now boasts its first hotel, a Comfort Inn.

The year 1965 brought completion 
of  the  Willard  Bay  Canal  through  Farr 
West (see photo on left).   Connecting the 
Weber River with the huge Willard Bay 
water storage and recreational facility, the 
project, which was directed by the Bureau 
of  Reclamation,  brought  economic 
stimulus  to  the  town's  commercial 
enterprises.  It also brought a significant 
increase  in  vehicular  traffic  through the 
town  as  various-sized  boats  were 
transported along 2000 West Street to and 
from Willard Bay. 

In August 1958 Farr West obtained natural gas service; in that same year the Bona Vista 
Water  Improvement  District  brought  culinary water  into  the  community,  followed by Pine 
View Water Systems providing secondary water in 1982. January 4, 1968 heralded another 
significant  change  in  the  life  pattern  for  Farr  West  residents,  when  the  Farr  West  Sewer 
Improvement  District  was  established.   Joining  with  the  Plain  City  Sewer  Improvement 
District,  this  organization  facilitated  the  installation  of  a  sewer  system  that  served 
approximately 180 connections in the Farr West area.  (See photo below)

  The author recalls one very unpleasant experience with the sewer system early in its 
history.  It began when Allen Taylor turned off his irrigation ditch after finishing his turn on a 
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Saturday  night.   Someone  came 
along and removed the headgate for 
some strange reason.  The stream of 
irrigation water overflowed into the 
sewer  system,  filling  the  pipe  to 
capacity.   It  ran  southward  along 
2000 West  Street,  then crossed that 
street at 1800 North, continued west 
until  coming  to  a  lift  station  that 
usually  pumped  water  across  the 
large canal,   For the first time, this 
pump became clogged by an empty 
tin  can,  backing  up  the  irrigation 
water  in  the  sewer  system  so  it 
flooded  basements  all  along  the 
southern end of 2000 West Street in Farr West.  Occupants of the author's home were unaware 
of the problem until one of the daughters sleeping in a basement bedroom got out of bed and 
stepped into 2-4 inches of water!    House occupants sprang into action,  but they were so 
grateful to have a good neighbor (Gary Brown) bring a pump on the job and stay until the 
water was removed.  The family appreciated one thing:  nearly all the overflow was irrigation 
water, so  no odor lingered in the basement after cleanup was completed that Sunday morning.

 The earliest sewer arrangement continued until Farr West broke away from Plain City 
Sewer  Improvement  District  and  signed  a  contract  with  Central  Weber  Sewer  District  on 
December 6, 1978. A new sewer line was immediately planned to serve homes and businesses 
along the western boundary of the community from 1900 North Street too the Central Weber 
sewer plant in Slaterville-Marriott.

Town Celebrations

Periodically through the years some red-letter days have "quickened the pulse" of town 
residents and added new meaning to the privilege of living in Farr West and in America. One 
type of celebration that the author recalls with fondness was the ward reunions that were held 
annually from the 1930's through the 1950's.  Usually scheduled in the late winter season, these 
events  provided  an  excellent  opportunity  for  community  members  to  socialize;  too,  they 
usually attracted former residents of the community as well.  Years ago the event was a day-
long event with programs in the morning and afternoon, magnificent family-style banquets at 
noon and in the evening, and a spirited dance that often lasted until midnight.  In later years the 
increased tempo of living demanded that the celebration be confined to an evening event. Most 
recently the event included a  lovely dinner (most usually served cafeteria style),  an hour's 
program and a dance.  While the programs have had varying degrees of local participation, 
those which were most memorable involved local talent of varied ages.

In the early years of the community the highlight of the summer season was the July 
celebrations.  Shortly after 1900, according to early residents of the town, the celebration got 
underway in mid-morning with a program.  In the afternoon the young folk looked forward to 
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races for each age group.  An added attraction at times was three-legged races (two people who 
had their adjoining legs bound together as one) or sack races where the participants stepped 
into a burlap sack, held it up and hopped along the prescribed track.  Ice cream, candy and soda 
pop  were  sold  at  a  refreshment  stand  located  in  the  grove  of  trees  north  of  the  frame 
meetinghouse.  A baseball game in the afternoon often added excitement to the day's activities.

One  of  these  celebrations  rated 
special mention in recorded history.  On 
July  24,  1905  the  Farr  West  and 
Harrisville  wards  joined  together  under 
the  direction  of  the  two  Sunday School 
Superintendents  and  their  assistants.   A 
procession  formed  at  the  Harrisville 
meetinghouse,  led  by  John  Larkin  and 
William  Lowder,  marshals  of  the  day. 
Following them came the "wild Indians," 
then the handcart company "crossing the 
dreary plains in a desolate condition, also 
the ox teams, horse and cow team, poor 
animals. . .with their dilapidated vehicles 

and traveling utensils made a fine display."  The first 13 states of the union with the Goddess of 
Liberty were represented by 13 young ladies dressed in white, riding on a float decorated with 
the national colors,  followed by 48 small  girls  in  white dresses on another  beautiful float, 
representing the 48 states.  Many other fine floats followed the parade to the Farr West Ward 
grove. There a program occupied the forenoon.  The afternoon activities consisted of "races 
and amusements of all kinds." The day  was closed with a dance.

The year 1930 marked another red-letter 
day when Farr West "pulled out all of the stops" 
to  celebrate  July  24th  in  a  fitting  manner. 
Community members recalled pioneer days by 
staging an encounter between some pioneers and 
Indians.  Perhaps the most dramatic moments of 
the "attack" by the Indians was the stealing of a 
pioneer  girl  (Gwen Kimose)  by a  wild  Indian 
(Ether Taylor of Plain City) and the "scalping" 
of Amos Taylor from Harrisville  by a tomahawk-bearing red man.  To make the latter episode 
more realistic, one of the participants emptied a container of red beet juice over the head of Mr. 
Taylor (who did not have a hair on his head).  He really looked horrible as the worst casualty of 
the day.
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That same year a rodeo was staged 
on  the  ball  diamond  north  and  west  of  the 

yellow brick school.   Using some wild horses 
that Ether Taylor had herded in from the range, 
community members were given a real show.

  
An  annual  July  4th  celebration  was 

established  in  the  community  when  the  Farr 
West wards combined their efforts to make the 
day a red-letter one.  Each year since that time 
the day's activities have included a flag raising 
ceremony; a luscious breakfast of hotcakes, ham 
and scrambled eggs, and a beverage; a parade 
began later  in  the morning (this  writer  twice had the honor of serving as grand marshal).  
Concessions attracted many of the attendees throughout the day.  Afternoon activities included 

a softball game or two.  For 
a couple  of    years  a 

dunking  machine 
furnished  a  lot  of 
entertainment and proved 

to be a  good  fundraiser. 
However,  when  a 
particularly  accurate  eye 

led the ball-thrower to hit the 
bull's-eye, the person who 

was dunked in the water had a 
jarring experience.  After 

a few years the activity was 
labeled  inappropriate 
insofar  as  preserving  the 
dignity of ward leaders.

 
 The  Bicentennial  year 

1976  brought  a  gala celebration  on  Saturday, 
July 3rd,  that  will  be long remembered.  (See  photo, 
left) Chairman Jerry Barnett arranged an outstanding program for the day.  Before the main 
program of events started at  the community center,  members of the celebration committee 
drove around the town to observe which residents had their flags on display.  These "early bird 
patriots" were each given a dollar coupon to be spent at the celebration.

The flag-raising ceremony at the beginning of the day's festivities was conducted by the 
Boy Scouts from Troop 91 of the Ogden 48h Ward, dressed in elegant Minuteman uniforms of 
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blue  and white  (photo,  p.  68),  and displaying in  turn  a  number  of  flags  having historical 
significance, while a recorded flag ceremony of music and historically interesting words was 
being played.

After  enjoying  a  bounteous  breakfast  of  ham,  scrambled  eggs  and 
pancakes, preparations began for the biggest parade that the community 
had ever assembled.  The town committee, through arrangements that 
had been made by Secretary Robert A. Hunter, borrowed a large float 
that had been made for Ogden City and with a special sign was made to 
represent  the  town committee.   John A.  Chugg (left),  who had been 
appointed Grand Marshal of the parade, rode his horse and carried the U. 

S. flag.  Zola C. Davis was honored to ride in the parade as Weber County Mother of the Year. 
A lovely assortment of mini-floats, decorated wagons, tricycles and bicycles, and finally the 

town junior posse, altogether made quite an 
impressive parade.
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Following the parade, the crowds 

turned  to  the  midway,  partially  shaded  by  three 
huge,  colorful  parachutes.   A wind during  the  previous  night  had  worried  the  celebration 
committee; a  1987 parade float and the colorful booths almost encountered a disaster, but 
everything turned out well.  A variety of booths were in operation during the day.  Lowell and 
Marian McEntire had a booth to sell Bicentennial hats, flags and some bicentennial plaques 
that had been made by the Dennis Massengales.  A Bicentennial booklet had been prepared by 
Lorene M. Brown and printed for the day.  A basketball toss, fish pond. muzzle-loading booth, 
ring toss, baked goods sale, and others kept the crowd entertained.  One interesting note was 
recalled about the MIA Maids' hot scone booth.  When the facilities at the booth couldn't keep 
up with the demand, a "shuttle"operation was instituted between the Barnett home and the park 
to speed up service.  Other contests included a cake walk, coin scramble, baby contest, pie 
eating contest, cow milking contest, relay races, greased pig chase (Note:  the pig got out of the 
human circle and raced ahead of the pursuing children down o the south side of the park before 
it was captured), pole climbing contest (in which Robin Barnett finally reached the $5 bill at 
the top of the pole) and others.  One of the most interesting contests of the day was the use of 
two  4-wheel-steering  vehicles  provided  by  Roy  Johnston  and  George  Davila  for  the 
blindfolded driving contest.  Couples competed in this contest, the man being blindfolded for 
driving, and the woman giving verbal instructions on how to drive around the tortuous course 
without knocking over any of the pegs.  also, special rides were provided on ponies and carts 
and the 4-wheel-steering vehicles.  Trophies were given for several of the contests, including a 
trophy  to  E.  Lionel  Brady  for  being  the  winner  of  the  naming  contest  for  this  annual 
celebration (Farr West Freedom Festival).

The sizzling day caused the crowd to consume 40 gallons of punch, numerous cases of 
soda pop, and all the ice cream that was on hand.  The Jerry Jensens set up their camper at the  
north of the midway, where they sold Chinese food, while others sold hamburgers and hot dogs 
to the hungry throng.

The celebration attracted not only community members, but also quite a number of 
travelers along Interstate 15, who noticed the crowd, got off the freeway an joined the throngs 
in celebrating the great day.

In the afternoon a softball game involved quite a number of participants from the youth 
and adult members of the community.  Across the street in the LDS church the Kent Malans 
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and  Emeretta  Westergard  had  arranged  a  display  of  antiques  and  heirlooms,  including  a 
spinning wheel that was owned by Mary Gould.

In the evening a delicious barbecued pork dinner topped off the day's activities for a 
hungry crowd.  The celebration had been the biggest and best that the town had ever held, the 
kind that will linger in one's memory for years to come.  
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Farr West - the community with a Heart

16 Oct 1905 - On this evening a surprise party was held at the hall for the purpose of 
showing honor to Harvey Murdock as he was about to leave the ward.  A few speeches and 
songs were rendered, a picnic was enjoyed, and the younger folks enjoyed a short period of  
dancing.  Brother Murdock had lived on his farm for about 37 years.

During the last week in March 1906 ward members were very generous in donating 
their labor to move a small house and remodel it for Sarah C. Burnett, who was "in destitute 
circumstances."  It  was built  on Reuben L. Short's property.   With busy times rushing the 
brethren, the completion of the house was delayed a short time.

After the San Francisco quake on 18 Apr 1906, many of the cities of the country gave a 
helping hand.  Our ward was called upon to provide some provisions, a project which was done 
in haste to relieve the suffering.  Value of donations was $30.

2 Jul 1906 - Many of the brethren and boys turned out and gave their support in helping 
hoe the beets and haul the hay for Millie Taylor.   She was the widow of Bishop William A. 
Taylor and her son Riley was on a mission.  "A good day's work was done."

27 Dec 1932 - Many ward members went to the Farr West beet dump and hauled beets 
from the pile to load in railroad cars.  The Amalgamated Sugar Company paid 16 cents a ton 
for hauling the beets, so $64 was earned that day, which was given to N. Lee D. Brown, who 
was going on a mission to the Eastern States Jan. 9th.  The people of the ward also donated 
about $96 in cash.

On 16 and 17 Oct 1933 the people of the ward harvested about 6 acres of sugar beets 
for Charles F. Larkin, whose wife was very sick.

During the week of 22 Mar 1936 the High Priest Quorum helped Charles F. Larkin with 
his spring work and the Seventies helped Lemuel D. Brown, who was ill.  Charles Larkin was 
in the hospital.  During June the ward donated about 30 8-hour days to Joseph Stephenson and 
Charles Larkin in harvesting their first crop of hay.

During June 1937 the 60th Quorum of Seventy and other volunteers assisted George 
Davis in hoeing his sugar beets and harvesting the first crop of hay.  Even though they were 
busy themselves,  the men donated approximately 40 days'  work to George,  who had been 
badly injured when his horses ran away with him while hauling dirt with his wagon and dump 
boards.

Dec  1939  -  Several  days  were  spent  by  the  different  priesthood  quorums  helping 
Chester O. Garlick erect a basement home.

9 Mar 1940 - When the Joseph Stephenson home was destroyed by fire, the priesthood 
quorums joined in cleaning up the debris and helping the family to get settled in part of Arthur 
Crane's home. The Relief Society also collected $100, which was given the Stephensons.
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3 Jul  1940 -  Under  the  chairmanship  of  Charles  H.  Murdock,  the  sugar  beets  and 
potatoes of Herbert D. Brown were hoed, since he was ill and unable to work.

23 Apr 1941 - The Melchizedek Priesthood brethren hauled 125 loads of fertilizer, then 
plowed and harrowed 10 acres of round for Earl Thomas, who had been injured and was unable 
to do his spring work.

12 Jan 1949 - When fire partially destroyed the home of Richard Groberg, the ward 
came to the assistance of the family, donating $239 to help him begin rebuilding.

6 Dec 1949 - A work project was organized at the farm of Dee D. Brown, who had been 
ill for some time and was unable to take care of his work.

18 Sep 1958 - When Klee A. Taylor died while driving his auto along Hi-way 84, ward 
members helped his father Allen harvest his corn for silage.

5  Jun  1970  -  When  Bishop  Brian  L.  Taylor's  family  was  involved  in  a  horrific 
automobile accident  south of Cedar City,  both parents were hospitalized for approximately 
two months.  The five youngest of their children were accepted into the home of  the Harold A. 
Westergard.  Neighbors and friends assisted by bringing in food, taking the laundry, etc.  So 
much food was accumulating that after a few days the Relief Society was asked to designate 
which among the volunteers should bring in food each day.  A list of donations of food, money, 
and services  was kept until the Taylors were back in "running order," (just over two months 
later) at which time 182 entries had been made on the list.

28 Apr 1979 -  After Bishop Dale J.  Chugg's  $30,000 loss in a hay shed fire,  ward 
members donated $2,526 and assisted in rebuilding and painting the hay shed.

4-H Club Activities

One  primary  reason  has  led  to  devoting  a  special  section  of  this  history  to  4-H 
activities:  Farr West leads all communities in the State of Utah in the number of young people 
sent to the national 4-H conventions and contests at Chicago, Illinois.  Information for this 
section has been provided by Mary P. Kogianes and Utah Extension Service.

According to the records in the USU Extension Service Office, the first 4-H Club here 
was organized in 1928 with Nona E. Brown as a leader.  Six girls were enrolled in both the  
foods and clothing categories.

In  1933  Oretta  Chugg  organized  another  club  for  making  clothing  with  7  girls 
participating.

In 1939 Nathan Chugg and Allen E. Taylor wee leaders of a livestock club with six 
boys participating in dairy, beef and lamb projects.
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Other clubs were organized, continuing in various projects.  In 1940 John A. Chugg 
organized a diversified livestock club with 12 members.   This club with various members 
continued for 25 years.

The first joint community activity for  boys and girls was held in 1943.  This was a 
scrap drive.  The parents and leaders drove trucks throughout the community and asked the 
people to give them all their old scrap iron materials.  This was during World War II , when the 
nation needed all the metals they could get to further the war effort.  The activity had a two-
fold purpose:  first, it cleaned the yards of the community, and second, the scrap was sold for a 
handsome price, which financed judging tours and social events held by the 4-H participants.

In 1944 a paper drive was conducted.  Once again a parent drove a truck while the 
excess magazines and newspapers of the community were gathered and sold.  From these funds 
the members enjoyed a swimming party.

In 1959, 4-H leaders Delmar White, Norma White, Jack Gordon, Irene Groberg and 
Mary Kogianes started a community development project..   Having a community park was 
very essential since young people needed a place to play ball or have other outdoor recreation..  
Many meetings were held and activities planned to help earn money to establish this park.  A 
tract of land that once held the Farr West Schoolhouse was just lying idle in the center of town.  
It was rocky, weedy and unsightly.  Investigation revealed that this land had been deeded to the 
community in 1941 by the Weber County Board of Education.   Our first big problem was 
solved. We did have the land.  Now it must be improved.

The first fund raising event was held on January 15, 1959.  A Swiss steak dinner was 
served, which brought in a total of $166.09.  On March 3, 1959 the land was leveled by Dean 
McFarland at a cost of $309.00 (his price was for his cost of fuel only).  Upon learning that we 
had not  made enough money from the dinner  to  pay for  the  entire  cost  of  leveling,  Alex 
Papageorge picked up the rest  of the tab of $142.90 to reimburse Dean McFarland for his 
expenses.  

On April 24th of that same year an International Farm Youth Exchange student was 
invited to come and give an account of his experiences in Italy.  Refreshments were sold to a 
capacity crowd, bringing in a total of $148.73 profit.  (An interesting note:  the money came 
from selling root beer and popcorn only.  The committee hooked up a fan and blew the aroma 
of freshly popped popcorn into the crowd to increase sales.)

In June 1959 the County Extension staff was kind enough to let Farr West sponsor the 
annual Spring Fun Party--a county-wide event--with all proceeds going to the Farr West Park 
fund.  A total of $125.57 was derived from this party.  In November of 1959 a Little Buckaroo 
Rodeo was held at the coliseum with total proceeds of $60.00 going to the Farr West Park fund.

In the spring of 1960 a water right was obtained, and grain was planted on the park to 
make a little more profit. The Weber County Weed Department sprayed the grain for weeds 
that year in order to help eradicate the abundance of weeds.  After the grain was harvested, the 
4-H'ers met and picked up rocks to help get the ground clear for the planting of grass.  Again in 
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the spring of 1961 before the grass was planted, 4-H'ers once again picked up rocks.  In April 
1961 grass was planted.  The 4-H'ers helped prepare the ground.  A fine crop of grass began to 
show and everything looked very promising.  In November of 1961 $70.00 worth of bonds was 
turned over to the 4-H clubs of Farr West by Allen E. Taylor, Secretary of the 18-38 Club.  This 
group, who were not qualified for military service, wanted to have a memorial erected to their  
friends and neighbors who had gone into the service of our country.  The 4-H clubs agreed to 
make  arrangements  for  the  memorial  to  be  erected  on  the  community  for  World  War  II 
veterans.

In the spring of 1964 the right-of-way for Interstate 15 highway took the east end of the 
park.  For a time the park lay idle, since some members of the community felt that the park was 
too small for a ball diamond.  Then in 1971 Town Councilman Delmar White made the park a 
community project and organized a Community Park Committee.  Then the entire community 
united to finish the project.  A pavilion was built,  recreation equipment purchased, and the 4H 
clubs built a fireplace and erected the plaque in memory of the men who served in World Wars 
I and II.  Names of all the men who lived in Farr West and served in those wars appear on the 
plaque.

With the park's being finished, 4-H continued to flourish in Farr West.  Over the years 
the community has produced several champion citizens, who won trips to the National 4-H 
Club Congress in Chicago, as follows:

1942 - Stanley Groberg - Dairy demonstration
         - Kenneth Schoonmaker - Dairy demonstration
1947 - Dale Chugg - Electricity
1948 - Jimmie Papageorge - Safety
1950 - Jay Davis - Tractor
1951 - Denis Petersen - Tractor
1952  - Florence Papageorge - Gardening
1959 - Francine Markos - Breads
1966 - RaNae White - Clothing
1974 - Ann Kogianes - Dairy Foods
         - George Kogianes - Tractor (Petroleum Power)
1975 - Randy Howard - Tractor (Petroleum Power)
1976 - Alex Papageorge - Dairy
1977 - Christina Papageorge - Dairy Foods
1978 - Julie Petersen - Leadership
1979 - Tami Rauzi - Consumer Education

Two outstanding 4 H-ers represented the state of Utah at the 4-H Conference held in 
Washington, D.C.:

1969 - Eldon White
1974 - Denise Petersen

Scholarship winners included the following:
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1930 - Harold Dee Taylor - Union Pacific
         - Allen E. Taylor - Union Pacific (FFA)
1950 - Betty Best - Standard Oil Scholarship
1953 - Connie Jean Chugg - Union Pacific
1973 - Sally Chugg - Standard Oil Scholarship (Alternate)
1978 - Susan Chugg - Utah State University Scholarship

 Changes in Just a Century of Farr West Growth  

 In 1980 the compiler decided to conduct a study of the changes in the complexion of 
the heads of families during the previous century.  Of course, in 1880 Farr West was primarily 
a farming community.  A century later the compiler, in attempting to get information about the 
heads of families, obtained the following data (incomplete):

Category No
. 

Category       No. Category   No.

Retirees 48 Unemployed 3 Educators 8 

Widows 14 Truck drivers         6 Orthodontist 1

Federal Employees: Auto service 7 Medical researcher 1

  -Hill AFB 26 Tractor service 1 Nurses 2

  -  Defense Depot Ogd 14 Refrigeration 2 Accountants 3

  -Internal  Revenue 
Srvc.  

3 Custodial work 2 Salesmen 3

  -Others 2 Welders 3 Sales clerk 1

State,County 
employees

6 Electrician 1 Student 2

Full-time farmers 5 Sheet metal worker 1 Bank clerk 1

Self-employed 17 Machinist 1 Landscaper-contractor 1

Building trades 10 Manufacturing 1 Plumbers 3

Railroad employees 4 Ski resort work 1 Receptionist 2

Farm laborer 1 Babysitting at home 1 Salt miner 1

Other interesting facts:
Of 194 heads of families (excluding widows)      Of married couples--
  3 were widowers                                                 44 wives employed full time outside of home
  6 were single men                                                 4 wives employed part time outside of home
 18 were single women                                           2 wives had paying jobs in the home
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The majority of wage earners had vocations which were unheard of a century ago.  Here are a 
few:

Cartographer                    Production controller     Oil truck driver           Youth coordinator
Computer specialist         Electroplater                   State adjudicator         Youth probationer
Refrigeration specialist    Mobile home salesman   Missile electronics specialist 
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MEMBERS OF THE FIRST ELECTED TOWN COUNCIL
1980
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Memory's Miscellanea

When the Farr West Ward was organized on 30 Nov 1890, it belonged to the Weber 
Stake.  When the North Weber Stake was organized 2 Aug 1908, Farr West became part of that 
stake.  On 18 Jan 1942 Farr West was included in the new Farr West Stake.  It became part of  
the newly organized Plain City Stake 30 Oct 1977.  When that stake was divided in December 
2000, the name "Farr West Stake" was reassigned to the town of Farr West.  Then on 14 Jun 
2012 the Farr West Utah Poplar Stake was created  At that time the new stake and the Farr 
West Utah Stake both contained some Plain City members.

******
Prices of real estate have raised so much in recent years.  Going back to pioneer ties, 

earliest settlers bought land from the government for $1.25 per acre.  In 1978 some building 
lots  sold  for  $25,000 per  acre,   By 2013 some commercial  land  sites  had  been  priced  at 
$160,000 per acre!

******
Mary Louetta Rawson, daughter of Arthur M. Rawson (he was born in 1840), recalled, 

"Grandfather Rawson did not want any of the Rawson girls curling their hair, so Father was 
very strict about how we dressed and wore our hair.  I wanted to curl my hair as the other girls  
did,  so one evening I  put  my hair  in curlers.   It  was  time for family prayers  when I  had 
finished.  When I marched into the room with the curlers in my hair, Father said, "What's the 
matter with your hair, daughter?  March right into your room and take them out."  The family 
waited for me while I took the curlers out and combed my hair back the way it should be."

*****
In cases of illness the early settlers used such home remedies as warm onion syrup, 

flaxseed and honey, castor oil  and turpentine,  or kerosene and sugar.  It makes one wonder 
whether the treatment scared people into getting well.

*****
After her marriage on Nov. 1, 1875, Emma Jane Taylor Baird would churn butter and 

deliver it to her regular customers in Ogden.  Also, from them she would pick up their laundry, 
bring it home with her, wash it on the wash board, iron it by hand and take it back to her  
customers the next week when she delivered their butter.

******
In  1878  James  Henry Taylor  went  to  Montana  to  seek  employment.  He  got  a  job 

herding cattle.  He often thought of his family at home, for his mother's health had been poor 
and she had lost three children during the space of seven years.  James had lost touch with his 
family and friends while working in the Montana "wilderness."  Finally in the fall of 1881 he 
decided to return to his home in what is now Farr West. He got off the train in Harrisville and 
walked westward to his home.  Along the way he stopped to visit with the Arthur M. Rawson 
family.  They did not have the heart to tell him that his mother had been buried three months 
previously.  He did not learn of the sad event until he reached his old home.

******
Dora E. Taylor Bates (born 1885) stated, "We never put up our fruit like the people do 

today.  We dried all of our fruit in those days.  Our young people would meet together and the  
boys that had apple peelers would peel the fruit and us girls would have to core the fruit and 
get it ready to be dried, then the boys would put it out and dry it.  I can remember the first fruit 
that we ever bottled.  We would put it in the jars; we had little lids to go over them, and then  
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we'd heat wax and pour it over the bottle lids.  Then when we opened the bottle, we would 
have to break the wax to get it out."

******
About 1880 one of the few social activities of the young people in Farr West was to  

visit  houses  in  the  community  on  Christmas  Eve,  calling  out,  "Christmas  gift."   Silas  D. 
Rawson recalled how his Uncle William and Aunt Jane Rawson would throw peanuts on the 
floor of their general store and smile as they watched the children scramble for them.

******  
In the years before 1890 when the anti-polygamy crusade crashed down on the Daniel 

Rawson family,  both Daniel  and Mary Melvina were charged and fined.   Their  sons were 
determined to somehow raise the money to pay the fines.  Their son Silas asked some relatives 
for a loan but was refused.  Then he and his mother decided that Silas would have to sell his 
team of horses.  He had been offered $500 for them.  He loved his horses, so his heart was 
breaking at the thought of selling them.  In Ogden, Corey Brothers bought one horse for $175, 
but he would not buy the other, a mare,  Silas rode the mare home and then Mary Melvina sold 
six heifers for $150, which was only about half of what they were worth.  Even though this was 
a great sacrifice for the family, they did have the joy of seeing their dear father, who was then 
over 60 years old, come home from prison a free man.  He had been in prison for six months. 
They had shaved off his fine beard, his health was broken, and he never saw another well day 
before his death on 18 Feb. 1892.

******
At the conclusion of the Utah War in 1858, the settlers returned to their homes.  (This is 

reportedly the year that Farr West was first settled.)  That year the harvest was rather poor and 
food was scarce.  People lived mainly on roots and greens with what little wheat they had to 
eat.  When the wheat was gone, they used barley.  This made black, heavy cakes and bread, but 
even that tasted good to the hungry settlers.  When grain was ripe the next year, every head was 
gathered carefully.  Mary Melvina Taylor recalled that she and her sister Clarissa gleaned grain 
in the fields, following the men who cut the grain.  When the threshing was finished, the two 
girls were proud to learn that they had gleaned five bushels of the precious grain.

******
One day Daniel B. Rawson, district president, came to Joseph Allen Taylor and asked 

him to give the east five acres of his farm to a Wilson family that had just moved into the 
valley and had no home.  He hated to part with his best land, but did so.  Several years later he 
was able to buy the property back for $1,000.

******
Mary Melvina Taylor Rawson remembered the day when she had only one suit of 

underwear and one dress, and would have to wash them at night so they would be clean and 
ready to wear next morning.

******
An  example  from  the  life  of  James  Henry  Taylor  illustrates  how  the  community 

residents lived during the 1880s.  He brought his radiant bride into their lovely (by pioneer 
standards) home.  Jim and Millie planted a lovely garden every year, raised chickens and kept 
cows for obtaining milk to sell and to make butter for sale.  They also grew hay, grain and 
potatoes on their farm.  The family was almost self sustaining, also making cider and vinegar. 
They kept bees for honey, raised their own meat animals, curing and smoking the meat to 
preserve it.  They also made soap from the fat taken from the meat.
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******
Jethro D. Brown (born 1879) wrote "When I was 8 to 12 years old, I had my first job.  

It was sweeping the school for 5 cents a day. After the first year a new room was built on and 
my wages were raised to eight cents a day."

******
Niels Peter Lee, an early missionary of the new Farr West Ward, had departed for the 

Southern States 14 Sep 1891 and returned 27 Oct 1893.
******

Alta Lund (born 1890) stated that her mother had told her about her father freighting 
supplies to Canada from Utah.  At times he would be gone all summer on his business.

********
About the turn of the century Philomela Taylor took her eight-year old twins to Ogden 

with her when she took her daughters Eliza and Ida into town, where the older girls sewed for a 
lady in a dress shop during the winter.  The twins, Iriminda and Icivinda,  were fascinated to 
watch  a  man  with  a  horse  and  buggy  stop  at  each  street  light.    
Taking out his long ladder, he would climb up and light each coal oil street light in turn.

******
According to Iriminda T. Stephenson, a traveling dentist used to come through this area 

and  stop  at  the  homes  to  see  if  anyone  needed  his  services.   He  did  dental  work  for 
missionaries' wives and widows' families free of charge.  Some children got wise and hid when 
he made his appearance.

******
In reminiscing about the small stores that had been operated  in Farr West in the early 

1900s, Eli A. McEntire recalled the Littleton store that was located on Farr West Drive about a 
block east of the present chapel.  Eli could remember waiting for a hen to lay an egg so he  
could take it to the store to buy some licorice.  He also rememberedl buying kerosene by the 
quart for the lamps in their home.

******
On 1 June 1905 the Faust Creamery Company completed their skimming station "at the 

crossroads"  in  Farr  West,  ready to  open for  business.   A large  gathering  assembled  at  its 
opening, where refreshments were served to the invited guests.

******
Grant H. Williams, while reflecting upon early memories of Farr West, recalled that 

sometime after 1906 he could remember an adobe house east of the Williams farm.  The old 
home was said to have belonged to a family  named Pritchett.

       ******
The year 1907 was known as the big flood year.  Rain fell for five days.  This, along 

with twenty-two inches of snow already on the ground, proved a threat to all the homes in the 
entire valley.

******
William Van Komen, who migrated from his native Holland to Utah, came to Farr West 

about 1908.  Dutch was the common language spoken in the home.  When he was asked to  
pray or administer to the sacrament in church meetings, he willing responded, but spoke in 
Dutch.
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William Van  Komen was  a  very thrifty  person.   After  his  death  July 7,  1938,  his 
grandson, Mavous Dickamore, helped dig up a gallon bucket that was nearly filled with gold 
coins.  The grandfather had buried it beneath the nests in his chicken coop.  He had paid his 
tithes in gold and had saved gold, because those coins were smaller and worth more than other 
money.

******
In August and September 1934 Ernest L. Jensen supervised the digging of a well in 

back of the brick Farr West Church to use for watering the shrubs and lawn around the church. 
At that time a group of men also built a beautiful pipe fence with brick and concrete posts in 
front of the church.   All labor was furnished by members, mostly after dark with artificial 
lighting.

******
In September 1936 the Ward Budget System was inaugurated.  Tickets were printed and 

sold to ward members to raise operating funds for the ensuing year.
******

On 28 September 1938 the Farr West school grounds were purchased by the Farr West 
Ward from the Weber County School Board for $10 to be used for recreational purposes for the 
community.   Some time later  the  service  of  county equipment   was secured  by the  Ward 
Beautification Committee for planting trees and grass to begin  a community park.

******

******
In 1939 the Amalgamated Sugar Company donated the local beet dumping ground and 

scales to the Farr West Community.   The ground upon which the scales were located was 
retained for community use, but the remaining ground was sold to the highest bidder.

******
In March 1940 the Elders fenced and plowed part of the old school grounds and planted 

sugar beets for a welfare project.
******
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On 31  March  1940  in  the  Church  Welfare  Program of  the  ward,  the  Elders  were 
assigned potatoes, the Seventies sugar beets, and the High Priests peas.  The three quorums 
worked together to supply the designated amounts of produce, which were  donated by the 
various members from their own fields.

******
When truck loads of "fragrant" beet pulp traveled north along Highway 84 in winter or 

spring,  home owners along the highway could tell what had passed without even glancing 
toward the highway.

******
 Farr West residents remember Si Taylor's old swimming hole by the Plain City Canal 

in which many of the young folks learned how to swim..
******

Halloween Night used to bring a relocation of gates, carts, wagons, and of course much 
of he outdoor "plumbing" in Farr West.

******
Henry McEntire's orchard northeast of the Farr West School somehow tempted many 

elementary school students during recess time.
******

In bygone days in the Farr West Ward church service, the sacrament water was passed 
from one person to another in one large glass.  The young folks shuddered at the thought of 
sitting down the row from any mature male member who wore a mustache,.

******
Young folk used to joke about a very hunch-backed man who was so bent over that he 

had to remove a floorboard from his vehicle to see where he was going along the highway (just 
a little exaggerated, of course).

******
During Pioneer days parades in Ogden, Pearl Martin loved to ride side-saddle, wearing 

her long dress and plumed hat.
******

Neighbors of George B. Taylor occasionally were awakened at any hour of the night 
when he had a question about his irrigation water concerns on any of his three farms.

******
If anyone needed to be convinced of the dangers of imbibing alcoholic beverages, they 

need only recall the time when a Plain City man weaved eastward along 1800 North Street and 
left the road right at the location where Hugh Rawson was trying to help a man with a stalled 
car.  Poor Hugh lost a leg from his injuries.

******
One early-day farmer learned the dangers of taking a little extra water outside his 

regular turn.  When his neighbor caught him in the act, an argument ensued and the offender 
got thrown into the full irrigation ditch.
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The winter  of  1947 brought  near-record  snowfall  for  Farr  West.   Homeowners  got 
plenty of exercise plowing roadways and shoveling paths around their property.

******
On 29 August  1949,  ward residents  took a  definite  stand against  the  possibility of 

issuance  of  a  license  for  the  sale  of  intoxicants  in  Farr  West.   As a  result  of  this  action,  
approximately 90 people met with the county commissioners to protest such a possibility.  A 
few days later the application by a community member for such a permit was denied by the 
commissioners.

******
On 19 October 1950 58 tons of sugar beets were harvested from the ward welfare farm 

in one day.  On 18 October ward members harvested 200 bags of potatoes for the Church 
Welfare Plan.

******
On 19 October 1960  the potato harvest on the ward welfare farm resulted in an excess 

of  13,475 pounds of  potatoes  over  the  amount  assessed the  ward,  resulting  in  a  profit  of 
$303.78.  

******
On 8 Feb 1951 a special meeting was held to organize a committee to represent our 

community in relation to changes that might arise when the Interstate Freeway was to be routed 
through the town.

******
The year 1963 brought tragedy to two Farr West families.  On July 19th Roger Foster,  

son of Mr. and Mrs. H. Elon Foster, was drowned in the Blackfoot Reservoir in Idaho.  He had 
planned to be married on July 20th.  Some friends had persuaded him to go fishing, so they 
were on the reservoir when a wind arose and swamped the boat.  Roger could not swim, so he 
drowned.

Then on October 12th W. Lynn Jensen, son of Mr. and Mrs. Wilford A. Jensen, died of 
an accident at a private rodeo in Pleasant View.  Lynn had just finished a ride on a bucking 
steer and jumped off the animal just at the same instant that the animal swung his head around 
and pierced Lynn with its horn.

******
On 20 Aug 1968 a bond election was held for installation of a sewer system in the 

community.
******
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Residents along 1800 North Street frequently saw a very short woman from Plain City 
who had to look through the "spokes" of the steering wheel while driving her vehicle to and 
from Ogden.

******

The "grand opening" of the new restrooms at the community park was held Sunday, 1 
July 1973.  Following sacrament meeting in the Farr West 1st Ward, those who desired could 
inspect the new facility.

******
During September 1973 a  new telephone exchange was placed in  operation,  which 

caused Farr West residents west of the freeway to have a new 731- prefix instead of the 782-
prefix that characterized the North Ogden exchange.

******
The new Weber High School in Pleasant View was dedicated 28 March 1974.  The new 

Weber High Seminary building was dedicated 5 May 1974 by Elder Ezra Taft Benson.

Photo dated 2002
Five living generations in a family doesn't happen 

every day.  However, at the left   the Petersen Family 
captured a proud moment.  All of them called Farr 

West their home.  Left to right, (standing) Steven M. 
Petersen and Denis M. Petersen.  (seated) Cora A. 

Petersen (now deceased), Mikyla and Katie P. 
Hadley)

******
On 15 April 1975 full-time missionaries were assigned to the Farr West Stake.

******
The new flagpole erected near the city office building on 2000 West Street (materials 

donated by Jimmie Papageorge and Ernest L. Jensen and welded by Denis M. Petersen) was 
dedicated 4 July 1975.

******
Sally Chugg was chosen Weber County Dairy Princess on 11 April 1976.
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******
In a meeting held 6 June 1976 Ernest L. Jensen asked for donations of money or angle 

iron to build tables for use in the community park bowery.  The metal that was donated was 
taken to Denis Petersen's shop and with the help of several men, the tables were built and 
painted for use at the Bicentennial Celebration.

******
On 25 March 1977 the Utah Transit Authority started bus service to Farr West.  Fare 

was 15 cents. 
******

The  following  special  offering  from the  editor  will  likely  be  informative  to  some 
readers, but it will bring fond memories to the few survivors of  pre-1940 years.

The Saturday Night Bath

     A piercing shriek came from the family bathroom, followed by a mournful wail, "Mama! 
Anita splashed soap in my eye!"

     Under any other circumstances Jean or I would have rushed to the bathroom to settle the  
problem promptly, but in this case we chose to ignore the fuss.

     "That's rather cramped quarters for four kids in one tub," I laughed.  "Still, I guess there's 
more room by far than there would have been in the tub I had to use when I was growing up."  

     As I looked back a generation, I was grateful that we no longer had to use the old Number 3  
washtub each Saturday night.  That cleansing ritual was always preceded in the afternoon by 
loading down the old Monarch range with boiler, dishpan, teakettle and reservoir, all filled to 
capacity by carrying numerous bucketfuls of water from the distant old well, or, after about 
1926,  from  the  tap  just  outside  the  back  door  of  our  "pioneer"  home.   
Then as bedtime drew near,  the old galvanized washtub was brought  into the kitchen and 
placed in the warmest spot in the house--in front of the heavily laden stove.  Usually, we went 
up the line beginning with the youngest and finishing with my father after he had worn off the 
effects of a hard day's work by snoring away for a couple of hours in his favorite chair.

     It was no trick at all to go through the ritual while I was growing up, but eventually the day 
came when I found it to be disadvantageous to be four or five inches taller than all the others in 
my family.  At that point in time, it literally cramped my style to tie myself up in a knot to sit  
down inside the tub.  I finally decided that it was easier to perch precariously on the edge of the 
tub until time for the final rinse.  This way, I wasn't doubled up long enough to shut off my 
circulation.  However, I learned to my dismay that there were other dangers to avoid, for as I  
turned around one night, I give myself a neat little branding job on the hot coal stove.  Do you  
want proof?  Well, I could show you the scar!

--Brian L. Taylor
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Disasters

Fires:
Seth Painter's barn (struck by lightning) 3 October 1904
Henry T. McEntire's old home - Christmas Day 1914
George White's store - about 1917
Lorenzo Taylor's barn (struck by lightning) - About 1919
Jack Painter's brick home - About 1920
Lorenzo Taylor's chicken coops - 1932
Frank Painter's frame home - 1934
George B. Taylor's brick home - October 1936
Joseph Stephenson's frame home - 9 March 1940
Leonard Gould's brick home - June 1947
Farr West Amusement Hall - 13 February 1944
Dee Coy Garage - 11 May 1950
Henry T. McEntire's barn - 1952
Arthur C. Taylor's barn and 2 chicken coops - 2 August 1952
Keith B. Jackson's mobile home - 1 February 1968
Jay A. Davis' shed (lost 1 cow, 2 calves) - January 1974
Douglas Smiley's mobile home - January 1974
Stanley E. Jackson's frame home - 3 June 1978
Dale J. Chugg's barn and 300 tons of hay - 28 April 1978
Wilford W. Scott's brick home - 21 March 1980

Other Disasters:
On October 29, 1929, when the Wall Street crash caused a loss of $74 billion, the great 
depression that ensued affected the lives of all Americans.  People in the greater Ogden 
area were no exception to the tragedy.  When the Ogden State Bank closed, some of our 
community residents lost their savings.

*****
On 21 Oct 1906 no meetings were held on Sunday because of a terrible east 

wind or hurricane, which lasted about 36 hours, doing much damage.
******

The  day of  22  April  1931  brought  many unhappy memories  for  Farr  West 
residents.  An entry from the journal of Lola Taylor Wells:  "We had a terrible wind 
storm on the 22nd.  The wind blew harder than I have ever seen it.  It was bad for 36 
hours.  The sand was so bad it was cloudy all day.  It tore up trees everywhere.  Over a  
dozen barns were torn down in Farr West.  Telephone lines were snapped off.  Crops 
were blown out."
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  REAL PROPERTY OPWNERS IN FARR WEST
(1870-1950 - Township 7 North Range 2 West)

          COMPILER'S NOTE:  Patents  for  real  property were first  issued by the 
government to Farr West settlers in 1870.  Below is an alphabetical listing of 
property transfers as shown on county land records.  Research in those abstract 
books  of  land  records  has  been  a  learning  experience.   Some  difficulty  was 
encountered  in  determining  whether  certain  entries  pertained  to  Farr  West, 
because not  all  pioneer boundaries coincide with section lines.   The compiler 
excluded entries which appeared to be for the purpose of correcting surveys or to 
be adjustments within families; however, possible shortcomings are recognized in 
both the inclusions and exclusions.  Aside from the basic information which is 
included here, the personal acquaintance of the compiler with many of the land 
transactions brings many interesting recollections and fond memories.  Farr West 
has been a wonderful place in which to live! 

FARR WEST LAND TRANSACTIONS UP TO ABOUT 1940
OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Abbey, Emma B 19 Nov 1917  Dallas Costley, unmarried

Agren, Peter 20 Mar 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Allred, Reuben E. (Alvord?) 21 Sep 1920 Joseph H. Watkins, wf Lydia

Amalgamated Sugar Co 1 Jul 1916 Joseph Fisher, wf Alice M.

Anderson, Andrew J 18 Apr 1910 Harriet Johnson,  and others

Anderson, Jens 15 Nov 1888 Central Pacific Railroad Co.

Anderson, Jens 20 Feb 1899 Richard Hayes

Anderson, Porter L 9 Nov 1883 Hans C.S. Hegsted, wf Mary

Anderson, Porter L  22 Jul 1884 John P. Frantzen, wf Marie

Anderson, Sarah E 22 Oct 1888 Hans C.S. Hegsted, wf Mary

Anderson, Swen 11 Jan 1876 Samuel M. Hiatt

Andreasen, Anthon F 12 Jan 1914 Robert E. Randall, wf Amelia

Armstrong, H. H. 1 Feb 1923 Clarence W. Brooks, wf Mary

Aubry, Norma 19 Jul 1932 Reuben E. Alvord, wf Nettie

Bailey, Don C 7 Jul 1934 Robert W. Bailey, wf Annie E

Bailey, Grant L 7 Jul 1934 Robert W. Bailey,wf Annie E.
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Bailey, Grant L. and others 28 Sep 1936 Robert W. Bailey, deceased+

Bailey, Robert W 12 Nov 1920 David Stalker, widower

Baker, Elmer W., wf  Sarah 21 Mar 1950 Ronald Mark Green,wf Mabel

Balzhouser, Henry 15 May 1900 Fred Koch

Barnes, Allegra 28 Jan 1934 Joseph Fisher, wf Alice H

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Barratt, Charlotte S 1 Feb 1879 Richard Hayes

Barratt, Charlotte S. 3 Sep 1881 George Payne

Barrows, Elizabeth E 5 Oct 1909 Peter Frandson, wf Olga T.

Barrows, Harry M 15 Nov 1911 John Crezee, wf Mary

Barrows, M. R 12 May 1913 Silas D. Rawson, wf Mary

Barth, George F. 22 Sep 1913 Moroni Skeen, wf Lily

Barth, George F. 24 Nov 1915 Jesse Kemsley, wf  Rebecca

Bell, Herman 15 Sep 1915 Clark Montana Realty Co.

Bell, Herman 14 Oct 1919 Ira T. Short, wf Myrtle E.

Bell, Herman 8 Jun 1927 Rinskje Bell

Bell, Herman 27 Jan 1938 Charles C. Smith, single

Bell, Rinskje 16 Aug 1926 Herman Bell, wf Georgina

Bengtson, Carl E 15 Oct 1883 Levi L. Randall

Bertoldi, Mary 30 Jan 1935 Earl L. Williams, wf Lyle

Bidwell, Joseph 10 Feb 1912 Klass Van Komen, wf Truida

Blackey, John 12 Feb 1875 Thomas White, wf Loreny

Blackham, Benjamin L 4 Jun 1917 Lewis O. Gourley, wf Annie Pearl

Board of Education, Weber Co. 1 Oct 1927 Joseph Fisher, wf Alice M.

Booth, Herman M. 31 May 1921 Robert F. Williams and others

Booth, Herman M. 14 Mar 1923 Marvin A. Booth, deceased

Booth, Herman M   28 Jun 1923 Elizabeth  A.  Dahle,  husb 
Albert

Bowns, Henry 11 Jan 1879 P. Green Taylor

Bowns, Henry 31 Aug 1893 Henry Dixon, wf Amelia J.

Bramwell, George 21 Jan 1897 U.S.A. (Patent)
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Bramwell, George W., Jr. 17 Mar 1898 George W. Bramwell, wf Mary

Breeden, M. A. 17 Dec 1896 George A. White, wf Fannie

Brereton, Sarah P 8 Feb 1898 Harvey P. Randall

Brideson, Hans 30 Dec 1875 John Blackey

Brideson, Hans 26 Sep 1876 William F. McEntire

Brockmann, George J. 15 Jul 1922 George M. Webster

Brooks, Clarence W 19 Jun 1903 Chloe Ann Rawson Hancock,dec.

Brooks, Clarence W. 25 Jun 1903 Jens Anderson, wf Emeli

Brooks, Clarence W 13 Feb 1917 Walter R. Jude, wf Emma

Brooks, Clarence W. 5 Apr 1918 Alexander Ririe, wf  Elizaabeth J

Brooks, Mary 13 Mar 1913 Walter R. Jude, wf Emma

Brown, Almon D. 19 Dec 1908 Alexander Taylor, wf Sarah A.

Brown, Almon Dell D. 27 Jan 1917 John S. Painter, wf Godelia

Brown, Almon D. 23 Feb 1921 Harry D. Brown, wf Goria S.

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Brown, Almon D. 10 Jun 1922 Alexander Taylor

Brown,  Clarence  V.  D., 
others

3 Jul 1941 Arthur E. Crane

Brown, E. L. 13 Feb 1932 Harold L. Ferrin, wf Norma

Brown, E. L. 18 May 1925 J. Francis Fowles, wf Nettie W.

Brown, Harry D. (blank) Thomas  D.  Brown,  wf  Esther 
D.

Brown, Harry D. 28 May 1918 Sally E. Heninger, husb Jay B.

Brown, Jethro D. 2 Jul 1906 Thomas  D.  Brown,  wf  Esther 
D.

Brown, Jethro D. 22 Oct 1921 Joseph Stephenson and others

Brown, Jethro D. 1 Nov 1921 Ella Lee Lund and others

Brown, Lemuel D. 21 Mar 1913 John E. Larkins, wf Sarah

Brown, Lemuel D 5 Aug 1921 Jethro D. Brown and wife

Brown, Margaret E. 20 Nov 1918 Jesse  Kemsley,  wf  Rebecca 
Jane

Brown, Reuben 7 Mar 1918 James A. McEntire, wf Sarah O.
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Brown, Reuben  19 Mar 1918 Browning Brothers Co.

Brown, Thomas D. 20 Feb 1873 David Crowther, wf Josephine

Brown, Thomas D. 8 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wf Nancy

Brown, Thomas D. 4 Feb 1901 State of Utah (Patent)

Browning, Wm W., Jonathan E 8 Feb 1893 Loreny White

Browning, Wm W., Jonathan E 2 Jul 1894 Ephraim C. White

Browning,  William  and 
others

7 Sep 1894 Ephraim C. White

Burnett, David R. 31 Jul 1891 William R. Burnett, wf Sarah

Burnett, Sarah J. 2 Mar 1892 David R. Burnett

Burnett, Sarah J. 15 Mar 1902 William R. Burnett

Burnett, William R. 12 Feb 1875 Thomas White, wife Loreny

Burnett, William R. 23 Jan 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Burnett, William R. 21 Dec 1907 Sarah J. Burnett

Butcher,  Samuel  W.,  wf 
Gertie

30 Mar 1931 Hjalmar Johnson, wf Adelia J

California Packing Corp. 28 Feb 1935 Utah Packing Corp.

Carmack, Harold N. 26 Feb 1947 Herman Bell, wife Georgina

Central Pacific RR Co. 16 Sep 1884 U. S. A. (Patent)

Central Pacific RR Co. 16 Sep 1884 U. S. A. (Patent)

Central Pacific RR Co. 7 Aug 1894 U. S. A. (Patent)

Chase, Charles E. 13 Apr 1893 Dudley Chase, wf Samantha

Chase, Dudley 25 Apr 1870 Henry Dixon

Chase, Dudley 15 Jul 1870 U. S. A. (Patent)

Chase, Dudley 27 Sep 1872 William A. Taylor, wf Philomela

Chase, Dudley 26 Oct 1872 Thomas White, wife Leonora

Chase, Dudley 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wf Nancy

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Chase, Dudley 13 Oct 1873 Lyman Wilson

Chase, Dudley 11 Oct 1875 Henry Dixon, wife Amelia J.

Chase, Dudley 27 Jan 1876 Lyman Wilson
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Chase, Dudley 2 Apr 1883 Benjamin A Pearson, wf Eliza M.

Chase, Dudley 19 Apr 1888 Cajetain Ducheneau, unmarried

Chase, Dudley 10 Apr 1899 Hiram Christensen, wf Anna C. A.

Chase, Dudley and others   8 Jul 1899 Samantha Chase

Chase, George F. and Henry 30 Oct 1899 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Chase, Henry A. 25 Jul 1896 Jane A. Chase

Chase, Jane A., wife 12 Feb 1896 Charles E. Chase

Child, Luella C. 5 Jan 1895 Dudley Chase, wf Samantha

Child, Luella C. 23 Feb 1894 Riley G. Dixon, wife Mary, Alfred

Child, Luella C. 23 Feb 1894 James Martin, wife Lydia`

Child, Luella C. 8 Sep 1896 Daniel R. B. Shepherd, wf Adelia

Child, Warren G., Jr. 28 Mar 1893 Dudley Chase, wf Millie

Child, Warren G., Jr. 18 Feb 1904 Henry A. Chase

Christensen, Anna C. A. 16 Jan 1909 Pher Emil Rudegreen, wf

Christensen, Hiram, wf Anna 23 Apr 1898 Alfred W. Taylor, wf Ada

Christensen, Hiram 14 Jul 1921 Eddy Christensen and others

Christensen, Jens 10 May 1892 Central Pacific RR Co.

Christensen, Jens 28 Feb 1903 Jesse  Kemsley,  wf  Rebecca 
Jane

Chugg, Hannah 20 Jul 1895 John Chugg

Chugg, Hannah 15 May 1899 John Chugg

Chugg, John 30 Dec 1890 State of Utah (Patent)

Chugg, John A., wf Ella 13 Jan 1937 Moroni Chugg, wife Louisa

Chugg, John A., wf Ella 21 Mar 1947 Leonard V. Todd, wife Rhoda

Chugg, Joseph 11 Aug 1884 William F. Rawson

Chugg, Joseph 18 Feb 1908 William N. McEntire, wf Olive A.

Chugg, Joseph 18 Aug 1909 State of Utah, (Patent)

Chugg, Moroni 11 Aug 1902 Hannah Chugg

Chugg, Moroni 29 Dec 1917 Joseph Chugg, wf Zenia V.

Chugg, Nathan G. 5 Nov 1936 Zenia V. Chugg

Chugg, Nathan G. 27  May 1942 William R. McEntire, wf Rosene N.
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Chugg, Ray R. 18 May 1917 Orley J. Chugg, wf Margaret

Chugg, Victor 23 Jan 1915 Moroni Chugg, wf Ida

Chugg, Zenia W. 10 May 1913 Joseph Chugg

Clark Montana Realty Co. 31 Jul 1930 Cajetain Ducheneau, deceased

Condie, Alice R. 31 Oct 1916 Herman Bell, wife Abbie A

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Core, W. F. 21 Aug 1915 P. J. Larson, unmarried

Cottle, Thomas H. 5 Feb 1902 Joseph L. Skeen, wf Mary E.

Couch, William S. 13 Feb 1924 F. W. Mole and wife Rhoda

Cowan,  James  and  wife  Ellen 
M.

10 Dec 1931 Delwin Huthcins, wf Elizabeth

Coy, Albert J., wf Sarah E. 14 Jun 1941 Samuel W. Butcher, wf Gertie

Coy, Charles W., wf Grace L. 23 Jun 1941 Walter J. Coy, wf Sarah T.

Coy, Robert E. 11 Sep 1918 George F. Barth

Coy, Walter J., wife Sarah T. 14 Jun 1941 Samuel W. Butcher, wf Gertie A.

Crane, Arthur E 22 May 1920 Arthur J. Crane, single

Crane, Arthur J. 22 Mar 1890 Hans C. S. Hegsted, wf Mary

Crane, Arthur J. 22 Dec 1911 John A. Taylor, wife Hannah

Crane, Arthur J. 17 Jan 1912 Delilah Taylor, husb John H.

Crane, Joseph A. 21 Jan 1924 Albert White, wife Hannah

Crowther, David 8 Aug 1873 U. S. A. (Patent)

Cushnaham, Patrick 20 Apr 1888 Cajetain Ducheneau

Cutler, Mason 22 Aug 1872 John Mower

Cutler, Mason 6 Aug 1878 U. S. A. (Patent)

Dabb, Howard A. 1903 George F. Chase, wf Ella

Dabb, Howard A. 21 May 1909 Daniel P. Williams, widower

Dabb, Howard A.       30 Aug 1913 John Koch, wife Louisa M

Dabb, Howard A. 7 Feb 1919 Edward Peter Larson, wf Florence

Dabell, Alonzo 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wf Nancy

Dabell, Alonzo 8 Apr 1889 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Dahle, Elizabeth A. 12 Apr 1923 Charles Innes, single
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Davis, Edward J 3 Nov 1903 Sarah N. Rincker

Davis, Edward J 4 Mar 1931 James A. Davis, wf Zola

Davis, George, wife Luella 1 Oct 1924 Herman Booth

Davis, James A. 18 Mar 1927 Edward J. Davis

Deem, Janus R. 29 May 1923 Bakke Postma, wife Gertruda

Deem, Ludvy P. 16 Sep 1909 Samuel E. Jewkes, deceased

Deem, Ludvy P. 7 Jul 1919 Norma Anderson

Dickamore, Mavous, wf Lillian 28 Nov 1945 Reuben Brown, wf Jennie

Dickemore,  Clem,  wf 
Bernice     

2 Oct 1947 Efina Dickamore

Dickemore, Efina 20 Feb 1926 Henry Dickemore

Dickemore, Henry H. 3 Mar 1917 William Van Komen

Dickemore, Henry H. 30 Apr 1917 William Van Komen and others

Dinsdale, James R. 11 Feb 1882 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Dinsdale, James R. 11 Feb 1882 John Webster

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Dixon, Henry 20 Sep 1870 U. S. A. (Patent)

Doon, John 6 Oct 1885 Joseph A. Taylor, wife Mary

Doyle, Edith Mary 13 Jan 1923 Thomas G. Wheelwright, wf Agnes

Doyle, Edith Mary 9 Feb 1925 Vane L. Morgan and wife Clara

Ducheneau, Cajetain 14 Jul 1885 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Ducheneau, Cajetain 14 Apr 1888 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Ducheneau, Cajetain 11 Mar 1908 State of Utah (Patent)

Ducheneau, Charles 2 Jan 1915 Cajetain Ducheneau

Erickson, Hilmar Emanuel 16 Jan 1919 John E. Erickson, wife Ida M.

Erickson, Hilmar Emanuel 23 Oct 1926 John E. Erickson, unmarried

Erickson, John E. 5 Mar 1911  Carl G. Bengtson, deceeased

Erickson, John E. 9 Feb 1918 C. F. Larkins, wf Ann Elizabeth

Erickson, John E 2 Sep 1924 Hilmar E. Erickson, wf Mary L.

Erickson, John E. 14 Dec 1936 Carl G. Bengtson, deceased

Farr West Corp. Church of J.C. 22 Apr 1911 Joseph Orton, wife Clara V.
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Farr West Corp. Church of J.C. 20 Mar 1914 George A. White, wife Fannie

Farr West Corp. Church of J.C. 6 Mar 1941 Bard of Education, Weber Co.

Farr West Corp. Church of J.C. 17 May 1947 Donald M. Barnes, wife Allegra

Farr West Ecclesiastical Ward 10 Jun 1897 Weber County

Faust Creamery and Supply Co 7 Apr 1905 Philomela Taylor

Field, William 2 Jul 1884 Charles Jay

Fisher, Elizabeth 20 Mar 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Fisher, Elizabeth 15 Aug 1912 Robert Fisher, wf Ellen

Fisher, Elizabeth 15 Aug 1912 Robert Fisher, wf Ellen, others

Fisher, Elizabeth 2 Nov 1912 Leah O. Fisher and others

Fisher, Elizabeth 17 Dec 1912 Robert Fisher, deceased

Fisher, Henry 24 Apr 1900 Franklin A. Randall, wf Rosabell

Fisher, Howell 28 Jun 1934 Joseph Fisher, wife Alice M

Fisher, Joseph 17 May 1913 Elizabeth Fisher

Fisher, Leah O., admx 31 Oct 1912 Elizabeth Fisher

Fisher, Leah O. and others   17 Dec 1912 Lorenzo Fisher, deceased

Fisher, Lorenzo 1 Apr 1878 Robert Fisher, wf Elizabeth

Fisher, Lorenzo 24 Jun 1893 Robert Fisher, wf Elizabeth

Fisher, Lorenzo 30 Jan 1908 State of Utah (Patent)

Fisher, Molena 31 Mar 1897 Reuben L. Short, wf Axie

Fisher, Molena 3 Oct 1900 Henry Fisher

Fisher ,Robert 5 Jun 1871 U. S. A. (Patent)

Fisher, Robert 18 Mar 1873 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Fisher, Robert 18 Mar 1873 William A. Taylor, wife Millie

Fisher, Robert 12 Feb 1875 Thomas White, wife Loreny

Fisher, Robert 23 Jan 1879 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Fisher, Roy 21 Dec 1912 Leah O. Fisher and others

Fisher, Viola 21 Dec 1912 Leah O. Fisher

Fisher, Ward 7 Dec 1912 Elizabeth Fisher
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Fisher, Ward 21 Dec 1912 Leah O. Fisher and others

Fisher, Ward and wife Emma 4 Feb 1918 Roy Fisher and wife Ruth

Fisher, Ward and wife Emma 13 Mar 1920 Leah O. Fisher and others

Flint, Ruth 23 Sep 1893 Alexander Hunter, wife Elizabeth

Forrester, Louisa 12 Feb 1898 John A. Taylor and wife Mary H

Fowles, J. Francis 14 Mar 1924 William S. Couch, wf Alice

Foy, Fred L 17 Nov 1899 Weber County

Frandson, Peter 8 May 1908 William  Purdy  and  wife  Mary 
Ann

Frantzen, Elizabeth 4 Feb 1905 Elizabeth Byrne

Frantzen, John P., wf Maree 22 Jul 1884 James P. Dinsdale, wife Polly A

Frazier, Elizabeth E. 11 Jan 1904 Clarence W. Brooks, wf Mary

Frodsham, Mrs. Jennie 21 Dec 1898 Charles C. Randall, wife Harriett

Garlick, Elsbury 29 Apr 1909 Eliza Jane Rawson, widow

Garlick, Chester O, wf Lila 1938 Elsbury Garlick

Geddes, Robert C. 14 Jul 1892 Jens Christensen, wf Elizabeth

Gibby, Adrain R. 7 May 1946 Ann Elizabeth Rawson, deceased

Gibby, Adrain R. 10 May 1946 Emily Minnie Webster

Gould, Leonard A. 2 Mar 1928 William Gould, wf Ann Marie

Gould, Leonard and others   12 Dec 1942 William Gould, widower

Gould, William 1 Feb 1916 William R. Burnett, single

Gourley, Lewis O. 19 Feb 1917 Simon H. Slate, wf Christie G.

Grandin, Emma F. and others 15 Oct 1910 Harold N., Thomas Taylor, wives

Grandin, John E., and others 24 Mar 1906 Martha C. Taylor Grandin, deceased

Graves, Edward B., Receiver 12 Mar 1898 No. Amer Savings & Loan
Green, Ronald Mark, wf Mabel F. 26 Feb 1948 Ralph Taylor, wf Ruth

Groberg, Charles A. 14 Feb 1911 John Groberg

Groberg, Richard, wife Jean 25 Aug 1950 Chas.A.Groberg,wf Martha

Groberg, John 7 Dec 1889 JamesC.Westergard, widwr

Groberg, John 30 Jan 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Gunderson, Peter 2 Sep 1897 George A. White. wife Fannie
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Gunderson, Peter 4 Oct 1897 Lorainy White and others

Hadley, Thomas & wife Emma 27 Jul 1912 Geo.W.Bramwell,Jr.,wf Isabel

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Hancock, Charles B., Jr 26 Jun 1875  Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Hancock, Chloe Annie Rawson 26 Jun 1875 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Hancock, Chloe Annie Rawson 31 Mar 1882 Richard Hayes

Hancock, Melinda J. Rawson 20 Dec 1905  Urban Hugh Rawson
Hansen, August W. & wf Hazel E 8 May 1917 Henry  Loewenstein,  wf 

Caroline
Hanson, Neils 19 Mar 1901 Leonora Murdock

Harris, Daniel Dee 23 Mar 1936 Marie Watt

Hayes, Richard 29 Oct 1877 Samuel White

Hayes, Richard 22 Oct 1878 Henry Dixon and wf Amelia J.

Hayes, Richard 14 May 1881 Samuel White

Hayes, Richard 31 Mar 1882 Chloe Ann Rawson Hancock

Hegsted, Hans Christian S. 5 Apr 1880 Swen Anderson

Hegsted, Hans Christian S 14 Mar 1882 Harvey Murdock

Hiatt, David H 20 Nov 1877 Hans Bridesen

Hiatt, Samuel M. 20 Sep 1875 Harvey Murdock

Higley, Ervin 7 Jun 1917 William Higley, wife Catherine

Higley, Ervin 3 Feb 1921 William Higley, wife Catherine

Higley, Ervin 12 Jun 1937  William Higley

Higley, Ervin and wife Ada 14 Feb 1946 John Seth Painter, wf Godelia A

Higley, William 30 Oct 1917 John Maw and wife Annie C.

Hix, Rolla A 1 Jul 1889 Tyrus W. Hurd, wife Charlotte

Hobson, Jesse L 29 Jun 1912 Charles J. Shurtliff, wf Johanna

Holley, Henry 4 Nov 1876 Samuel White

Holley, Henry 6 Aug 1878 U. S. A. (Patent)

Holland, John 20 Oct 1890 John A. Taylor, wife Hannah

Homer, Joshua 1 Mar 1902 Dudley Chase, wife Millie May

Homer, Joshua 27 Apr 1903 John W. Chase, single
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Homer, Nels R. 30 Oct 1918 Joshua Homer and wife Olina J.

Homer, Olena J. 2 Apr 1917 Niels Jensen,  wife Johanna

Housley, George J. 4 Jun 1907 Mary E. Housley, husb Lewis

Huffman, F. Everett, wf Thelma 21 Nov 1950 Clifford L. Wilson, wife Lella

Hunter, Alexander 26 Aug 1893 John  J.  Hutchins,  adm  for 
James

Hunter, Lloyd E., wife Grace 31 Jul 1941 Allegra Barnes

Hurd, Charlotte, widow 28 Jun 1893 Tyrus Hurd, deceased

Hurd, Tyrus W. 8 Dec 1888 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Hutchins, Delwin 12 Jan 1925 John J. Hutchens, adm for James

Hutchins, James 9 May 1876 Samuel White

Hutchins, James 30 Apr 1881 James Martin, wife Lydia

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Hutchens, James 30 Dec 1884 U. S. A. (Patent)

Hutchens,  John  J.,  wf  Ellen 
S.        

24 Nov 1893 Ellen M. Hutchens

Hutchens, John J. 22 Nov 1897 Alexander Hunter, wf Elizabeth

Hutchens,  John  J.,  wf  Ellen 
S.         

17 Jan 1904 James McEwan

Innes, Charles 10 Apr 1923 Harold W. Booth, minor

Iverson, L. Moth 7 Apr 1917 W. F. Core and wife Nannie F.

Jensen,  Donald  R.,  wf  Norma 
M.

23 Jul 1948 Annie I. Jensen Wayment

Jensen, Ernest Lewis 27 Aug 1931 Annie I. Jensen

Jensen, Ernest Lewis 27 Jul 1938 Annie I. Jensen and Others

Jensen, LeRoy G. 27 Aug 1931 Annie I. Jensen, widow

Jensen, LeRoy G. 31 Aug 1938 Annie I. Jensen

Jensen, Lewis A 11  Sep 1916 Daniel  B.  Rawson,  wife  Mary 
L

Jensen, Nels 24 Nov 1902 Joshua Homer, wife Olina J.

Jensen, W. F   9 Jul 1908 Faust Creamery and Supply Co

Jensen, Wilford A., wf Melba 17 Apr 1940 Herman Bell, Wife Georgina

Johanson, Hjalmar 22 Mar 1929 Joseph H. Ogden
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Johnson, Benjamin A. 17 Aug 1898 Mary Melvina Taylor Rawson

Johnson, Harriet and Others 5 Sep 1908 Charles  Vicks  and  wf  Francis 
E.

Johnson, Napoleon B 1 Mar 1875     U. S. A. (Patent)

Jorgensen,  Rasmus,  wf. 
Thora

19 Feb 1918 August W. Hansen, wife Hazel E.

Jude, Walter R. 16 Sep 1910 John B. Koch, wf Louisa M.

Jude, Walter R. 28 Jan 1914 Aaron Jackson and wife Eliza J.

Kemp, E. E. 2 Feb 1925 Joseph A. Crane, wife Caroline D.

Kemsley, Jesse 5 Mar 1901 George W. Randall, wife Isabel

Kemsley, Jesse, wife Rebecca J. 28 Nov 1912 Moroni Skeen, wife Lily

Kiesel, Fred J. 11 Mar 1903 Archibald C. Milner

Kimose, Foren 12 Jan 1937  Fawn Markland

Koch, Fred 30 Apr 1897 John B. Koch, wife Louisa M.

Koch, John B. 4 Jun 1897 Daniel B. Rawson, Jr., wife Mary L.

Koch, John B. 21 May 1900 Frederick A. Miller, wf Geneva

Lane, Jonathan Ellis 30 Oct 1876 Leonidas  Pritchett,  wf 
Elizabeth

Larkins, Charles F. 6 May 1905 Elisha Thomas, wife Mary M.

Larkins, C. F., Erickson, J. E. 11 Dec 1915 Franklin A. Randall, wf Rosabell

Larkins, Charles F. 7 Oct 1916 Rufus  A.  Moore,  wife  Marjorie 
M.

Larkins,  Charles  F.,  wf 
Minnie

21 Apr 1941 Ernest L. Jensen, wife Viva

Larkins, John E. 5 Jun 1906 William J. Larkins, wife Sarah E.

Larkins, William J. 2 Dec 1876 Leonidas  Alfred  Pritchett,  wf 
Elizabeth

Larson, P. J. 27 Jul 1915 State of Utah (Patent)

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Larsson, Edward Peter 4 Feb 1918 Alice R. Condie, wf of Thomas A.

Larsson, Larry 3 Dec 1910 Andrew J  . Anderson, wife Cynthia

Laughlin, M. Henry 14 Jul 1919   William N. McEntire, wf Olive A.

Lee, Hyrum 26 Jan 1901 Peter  C.  Stephenson,  wife  Mary 
A.
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Lee, Niels Peter Nielsen 15 Feb 1886 Hans C. S. Hegsted and wf Mary

Lee, Thomas L. 11 Oct 1880 Jacob Thomas

Line, E. H. 21 Feb 1893 Mary Melvina Taylor Rawson

Littlewood, Charles 20 Mar 1902 State of Utah (Patent)

Littlewood, Sarah 19 Jul 1889 Seth Painter, wife Susan C.

Lombard, B. Jr. 26 Nov 1898 William H. Dale, Trustee

Lowell, John W. 21 Jan 1881  George W. Bramwell

Lund, Alvin M. 14 Jan 1909 John  J.  Hutchins,  adm  for 
James

Lund, Heber C., wife Alta M. 7 Aug 1931 Annie M. Smout, Phoebe M. Taylor

Lund, Heber C., wife Alta M. 23 Jan 1935 Edward P. Larson, wf Florence L

Lythgoe,  Joseph,  wife  Mary 
E.

3 Feb 1926 Lubin A. Welker, wife Laura B.

Markland, Fawn and others 28 Jun 1934 Joseph Fisher, wife Alice M.

Markland, Fawn 12 Jan 1937 Foren Kimose

Markland, Keith F., wife L. J. 22 Mar 1947 Donald M. Barnes, wife Allegra

Markos,  James  H.,  wife 
Beverly

12 Apr 1948 Anna M. Hayne

Marsh, George J. 18 Oct 1880 Jonathan Love

Martin, James 19 Mar 1873 Robert Fisher, wife Elizabeth

Martin, James 30 Jan 1880 Dudley Chase,wife Samantha

Martin, James 24 Sep 1880 Union Pacific RR Co.

Martin, James 6 Apr 1889 William N. McEntire, wf Olive

Martin, James, Jr. 8 Apr 1921 James Martin

Martin, James Jr., wife Pearl 7 Aug 1931 Annie Martin Smout, Phoebe M. Taylor

McCauley, C. A. H. 8 Jan 1884 Thomas  Spowart,  John  J. 
Jowett

McEntire, Eli A., wife Artell 26 Oct 1945 Henry T. McEntire, wife Rebecca

McEntire,  Gilbert  H.,  wf 
Clora

24 Nov 1945 Reuben D. Brown, wife Jennie

McEntire,  Gilbert  H.,  wf 
Clora

23 Jul 1949 Reuben D. Brown, wife Jennie

McEntire, Henry T. 11 Jun 1904 Sarah B. McEntire
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McEntire, Henry T. 18 Nov 1919 William A. Taylor, wife Annie E.

McEntire,  James  A.,  wf  Sarah 
O.

17 Jul 1911 Joseph Orton, wife Clara V.

McEntire, John S. 8 Mar 1892 William F. McEntire, wf Sarah B.

McEntire, Lowell A. 8 Nov 1950 Eli A. McEntire, wife Artell

McEntire, Ross H., wife Naomi 20 May 1949 Henry T. McEntire, wife Rebecca

McEntire, William F. 17 Apr 1876 Joseph C. Taylor, wf Sarah Jane

McEntire, William F. 23 Feb 1883 Thomas L. Lee

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

McEntire, William F. 16 Apr 1892 Eliza A. Taylor, widow

McEntire, William F. 16 Nov 1900 State of Utah (Patent)

McEntire, William J., wf Marie 10 Jan 1941 Jethro D. Brown, wife Emma

McEntire, William N. 15 Dec 1888 Dudley Chase, wf Samantha

McEntire, William N. 23 Jun 1915 C.Ducheneau and wife W. M.
McEntire, William N., Jos. Chugg 20 Feb 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Michaels, C. E. 27 Jun 1936 Weber County

Miller, Frederick A. 10 May 1893 Robert  C.  Miller,  wife 
Elizabeth

Miller, Hans 28 Apr 1902 Thomas H. Cottle, wife Ella

Miller, Robert C. 25 Jun 1892 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Milner, Archibald C. 6 Mar 1903 Cajetain Ducheneau

Mole, F. W., wife Rhoda 13 Nov 1919 Nels Homer, wife Tessie W.

Moore, Rufus A. 23 Sep 1916 Molena Fisher, husb Henry

Morgan, Vane L., wife Clara 9 May 1924 H. H. Armstrong, wife Clara

Mower, John 1  May 1872 U. S. A. (Patent)

Mower, Sarah Ann 4 Feb 1896 John Mower

Murdock, Bertha 20 Jan 1950 C. H. Murdock, deceased

Murdock, Charles 9 Jun 1922 Zenia Chugg

Murdock, Harvey 10 Feb 1883 U. S. A. (Patent)

Murdock, Harvey 16 May 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Murdock, Leonora M. 3 Oct 1899 Harvey Murdock
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Neal, John C., wife Jennie C. 26 Apr 1913 Louisa Neal

Nielsen, Jens and Marian 2 May 1887 John P. Frantzen, wife Marie

Nielsen, Niels P., Sr. 14 Mar 1882 Harvey Murdock

Nordin, Teresa 9 Apr 1918 Loui Nordin
Ogden  Logan  &  Idaho  Railway 
Co.

16 Jul 1916  Clarence W. Brooks, wife Mary

Ogden  Logan  &  Idaho  Railway 
Co.

18 Jul 1916 Edward J. Davis, wife Polly E.

Ogden Rapid Transit Co. 17 Aug 1910 Lorenzo Fisher, wife Leah O

Ogden Rapid Transit Co. 27 Oct 1910 Klass Van Komen, wife Truida

Ogden Rapid Transit Co. 4 Jun 1913 State of Utah (Patent)

Owen, Charles H. 7 Oct 1898 James Owen

Owen, James 1 Oct 1872 Wm. A. Taylor, wife Philomela

Owen, James 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Nancy

Owen, James 18 Mar 1873 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane

Owen, James 19 Mar 1873 Robert Fisher, wife Elizabeth

Owen, James 20 Aug 1885 William F. Owen

Owen, John F. 15 Jul 1912 Jesse L. Hobson, unmarried

Owen, William F. 4 Mar 1882 James Owen

OWNER (BUYER)  OBTAINED FROM

Painter, James F. 4 Oct 1916       L. P. Deem, wife Ida

Painter, James F. 6 Oct 1916 Charles F. Larkin, wife Ann E.

Painter, John S, wife Godelia 25 Sep 1937 Arthur C. Taylor, wife Claudia

Painter, John S 14 Oct 1916  George S. Thomas, wife Clara

Painter, Seth 5 Jun 1871 U. S. A. (Patent)

Painter, Seth 1 Oct 1885 David H. Hiatt

Papageorge, Alex D. 8 Apr 1940 Jethro D. Brown, wife Emma

Papageorge, Alex D. 30 Jul 1940 Lenore S. Laughlin

Papageorge, Alex D. 10 May 1943 George B. Taylor, wife Elizabeth

Papageorge, Alex D. 13 Apr 1949 James F. Painter, wife Verna

Parker, William and wife Atalia 4 Sep 1929 Arthur C. Taylor

Parker, William and wife Atalia 13 Nov 1931 Hilmar E. Erickson, wife Mary L.
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Payne, George 9 May 1876 Samuel White

Payne, Mary 18 Mar 1889 Thomas B. Guthrie, wife Emma

Pearson, Benjamin A 10 Oct 1881 Charles B. Hancock, Jr.

Peery, David H. 18 Mar 1882 Hans C. S. Hegsted, wife Mary

Petersen, Merrill L., wf Cora 31 Oct 1946  George B. Taylor, wife Elizabeth

Polson, Charles F., wife Lois 21 Mar 1947 Ward Fisher, wife Emma

Pritchett, John D. 15 Jul 1876 William D. Pritchett

Pritchett, John D. 31 Jan 1880 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Pritchett, Leonidas A. 1 Mar 1875 U. S. A. (Patent)

Pritchett, William D. 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Nancy

Purdy, William 7 Apr 1903   Henry Balzhouser, wife Mary

Randall, Alford J. 5 Jun 1871 U. S. A. (Patent)

Randall, Charles F 20 Sep 1870 U. S. A. (Patent)

Randall, Charles F 28 Mar 1873 Seth Painter, wife Susan C.

Randall, Charles F 23 Aug 1876 U. S. A. (Patent)

Randall, Charles F 21 Dec 1876 Napoleon B. Johnson        

Randall, Charles C/ 24 Oct 1896 Charles F. Randall, wife Sarah

Randall, Franklin A. 24 Oct 1896 Charles F. Randall, wife Sarah 

Randall, Harvey 20 Dec 1894 Charles F. Randall, wife Sarah

Randall, Harvey P. 18 Mar 1897 John A. Randall, wife Esther

Randall, Harvey P. 19 Jan 1901 Sarah P.  Brereton

Randall, Homer A.  20 Dec 1894 Charles F. Randall

Randall, J. Walter 25 Aug 1936 Grant L. Bailey and others

Randall, J. Walter 8 Oct 1936  William Parker, wife Amelia

Randall, J. Walter 14 Jan 1939 Minnie I. Randall

Randall, J. Walter 28 Jan 1939 Homer A. Randall and others

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Randall, John A. 11 Nov 1896 Harvey P. Randall

Randall, Joseph B and others 6 Jan 1914 William J. Randall and others

Randall, Levi J. 4 Sep 1876 Charles F. Randall
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Randall, Minnie I. 18 Dec 1923 Harvey P. Randall

Randall,  William  J.  and 
others

28 Dec 1910 Sarah A. Randall, widow

Rawson, Arthur M. 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Nancy

Rawson, Arthur M. 26 Jul 1922 Mary M. Rawson and others

'Rawson, Daniel B. 5 Jun 1871 U. S. A. (Patent)

'Rawson, Daniel B. 18 Mar 1873 William A. Taylor, wife Millie

'Rawson, Daniel B. 21 Mar 1913 John F. Larkins, wife Sarah A

Rawson,  Daniel  B.,  Jr,  David 
W.

3 Dec 1892 Daniel B. Rawson, deceased

Rawson,  Daniel  B.,  wife 
Mary

18 Mar 1932 E. L. Brown, wife Dora

Rawson, David W. 12 Oct 1895 Mary Melvina Taylor Rawson

Rawson, David W. 31 Mar 1896 Mary Melvina Taylor Rawson

Rawson, Horace F. 30 Jan 1889 Arthur M. Rawson, wife Margaret

Rawson, Horace F. 20 Apr 1889 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Mary

Rawson,  Mary  Melvina 
Taylor

20 Jan 1888 Daniel B. Rawson

Rawson, Silas D. 24 Oct 1908 Charles Littlewood, wife Sarah

Rawson, Silas D. 29 May 1915 Henry T. McEntire, wf Rebecca

Rawson, Urban H. 7 Dec 1905  Clairissia E. Rawson Spiers, et al

Rawson, Urban H. 8 Jul 1922 Myrtle J. Rawson Hall

Rawson, Urban H. 24 Nov 1922 Melinda J. Rawson Hancock

Rawson, William C. 2 Mar 1881 John D. Pritchett

Rawson, William C. 28 Oct 1882 Chloe Ann Rawson Hancock

Rawson, William C. 15 Sep 1888 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Mary M.

Rawson, William C. 10 Nov 1888 Dudley Chase, wife Samantha

Rawson, William M 28 Jun 1892 John P. Frantzen, wife Marie

Rawson, William M 21 Jan 1895 Cajetain Duchenuau

Read, W.S. 14 Apr 1911 Clark Montana Realty Co.

Reynolds, A. D. F. 4 Jan 1897 M. A. Breeden, wife Annie M.

Richards, Lorenzo M. 1 Mar 1881 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane
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Richardson, Walter T. wf Estel. 24 Aug 1949 Leonard V. Todd, wife Rhoda

Rincker, Sarah N. 25 Oct 1899  Benjamin A. Johnson, wf Augusta

Ririe, Alexander 21 Jun 1918 Clarence W. Brooks, wife Mary 

Robinson, Brigham M. 25 Sep 1912 John F. Owens, wife Emma

Robinson, Mary Jane 3 Jan 1911 A. C. Call, wife Charlotte L.

Root, Mary E 3 Jan 1883 Robert Wilson
Rudigreen,  Pher  Emil,  wf 
Charlotte       

14 Jun 1897 Rolla A. Hicks, wife Zella

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Schaerger, Mrs. Carrie 6 Jan 1893    John P. Frantzen, wife Marie

Schoonmaker, Fred 25Sep 1924 Clarence Stephenson, wf Iriminda

Schoonmaker,  C.  Lester,  wife 
Clara               

1944  Fred Schoonmaker

Sellemert, Lewis C. 22 Nov 1913 Samuel Tomlinson, wife Sarah

Shaver, I. H. 26 Jul 1895 Weber County

Shepherd, Daniel R. B. 8 Mar 1894 Warren G. Child, Jr., wf Luella C.

Short, Ira T. 19 Mar 1918 Margaret Short

Short, Ira T. 8 May 1918 Temple and Margaret Short

Short, Margaret 15 Oct 1897 Reuben L. Short, wife Axie

Short, Reuben L. 29 Dec 1894 Temple  Short  and  wife 
Margaret

Short, Reuben L. 4 Aug 1897 Laura J. Stanley

Short, Reuben L. 3 Nov 1897   John T. McEntire, wf Josephine

Short, Temple 6 Nov 1876 William R. Burnett

Short, Temple 19 Sep 1887 U. S. A. Receivers

Short, Temple 5 Apr 1887 Frank Short and wife Endora

Short, Temple 21 May 1888 William J. Larkins, wf Eliza C.

Short, Temple 11 May 1888 James C. Westergard, wife Maria

Short, Temple 23 Dec 1890 U. S. A. (Patent)

Short, William Temple 21 Jan 1918 Reuben L. Short, wife Axie  

Skeen, Joseph L. 4 Apr 1900 William H. Taylor, wf Melissie

Skeen, Moroni 17 Sep 1912 Thomas Hadley, wife Emma C. 

108



Slate, Simon H. 15 Nov 1911 Harry  M.  Barrows,  wf 
Elizabeth

Slater, John 26 Nov 1881 Charlotte S. Barratt

Slater, Thomas 29 Oct 1892 John  J.  Hutchins,  adm  for 
James

Smit, Wilke 7 Jan 1913 William Van Komen

Smith, Asahel T.    14 Apr 1932 Weber County         

Smith, Charles C. 14 Mar 1918 Myrtle Murdock and others

Smith, Charles C. 27 Jul 1938 Ernest L. Jensen

Smith, William G. 12 Feb 1881 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane

Smout, Annie Martin 6 Aug 1931 James Martin, deceased

Smout, Edwin W. 9 May 1876 Samuel White

Smout, Edwin W. 5 Apr 1877 U. S. A. (Patent)

Smout, Felix 13 Feb 1892 James Martin, wife Lydia

Smout, Parley ------ William G. Stonehouse

Smout, William 5 Feb 1884 Union Pacific RR Co.

Smout, William 1 Aug 1892 John  J.  Hutchins,  adm  for 
James

Snider, H. C. 18 May 1904 John P. Frantzen, wife Marie

Stalker, David 16 Sep 1920 Anthon F. Andreasen, wife Lola

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Stanger, John and Ellen 25 Mar 1913 Joseph  Stephenson,  wf 
Dorothea

Stanley, Edward B. 7 Nov 1888 Temple Short, wife Margaret

Starkey, Martha M. 25 Aug 1916 Emma Grandin and others

Starkey, Oral L. 5 Apr 1926 Milton and Hattie Starkey

Stephens,  James  M.  Walter 
C.

3 Nov 1932 Ernest E. West, wife Cora

Stephens, Pearl Ann 17 Jun 1933 James M. Stephens, others

Stephenson, Alberta 30 Apr 1913 Peter C. Stephenson

Stephenson, Clarence 19 Jan 1918 Joseph  Stephenson,  wf 
Dorothea

Stephenson, Joseph 12 Mar 1889 Peter C. Stephenson, wf Mary A.
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Stephenson, Joseph 6 Sep 1906 Alberta Stephenson

Stephenson, Joseph 18 Jan 1902 Niels N. P. Lee,, wife Helene

Stephenson, Joseph 20 Jan 1912 Alvin M. Lund, wife Ella

Stephenson, Peter C. 5 Apr 1880 Swen Anderson

Stephenson, Peter C. 15 Feb 1886 Hans C. S. Hegsted, wife Mary

Stephenson, Peter C. 15 May 1890 Central Pacific Railroad Co.

Stonehouse, Joseph P. 23 Apr 1877 Harvey G. Taylor

Stonehouse, William G. 1 Jul 1876 Samuel White

Swanson, Charles 11 Aug 1899 Reese B. Wampler, wf Josephine

Taylor, Alexander 25 May 1908 Pleasant G. Taylor

Taylor, Alfred W. 24 Apr 1890 Central Pacific RR Co.

Taylor, Alfred W. 10 Aug 1891 Charlotte Hurd, widow

Taylor, Allen E. 9 Mar 1938 William A. Taylor, wf Sarah F.

Taylor, Allen E. wife  Nona 23 Nov 1938 John S. Painter, wf  Godelia

Taylor, Allen E. wife  Nona 19 Jul 1945 Arthur C. Taylor

Taylor, Allen E. wife  Nona 2 Oct 1945 John F. Painter

Taylor, Arthur C. 3 Sep 1929 George A. White, deceased

Taylor, Arthur C. Sep 1929 William Parker, wife Atelia

Taylor, Arthur C. 16 Jul 1935 John S. Painter, wife Godelia A.

Taylor, Arthur C. 9 Nov 1935 Reuben Brown, wife Frances

Taylor, Eliza, wife 7 Jun 1906 Heber C. Taylor

Taylor,  Eliza A 22 Jun 1891 Loreny White

Taylor, Ezra D 1 Apr 1932 Eliza Taylor

Taylor, Floyd 17 Nov 1917 Alexander Taylor, wf Sarah A.

Taylor, Floyd 10 Jul 1920 Robert E. Coy

Taylor, Floyd 10 Jun 1922 Almon D. Brown, wife Eva

Taylor, Floyd, son Carl L. -----    Elvin H. Maw, wife Olive

Taylor, George B. 24 May 1906 Charles W. Owen, wf Mary J.

Taylor, George B. 12 Jul 1911 Jed Taylor, wife Maggie

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM
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Taylor, George B., wf Elizabeth 17 Apr 1917 Warren G. Child, wife Hannah

Taylor, George B. 21 May 1917 Dallas Costley, wf  Myrtle

Taylor, George B. 1 Oct 1919 Emma B. Abbey

Taylor, George B. 13 Jan 1941 Lorenzo Taylor

Taylor, George B. 10 May 1943 Alex D. Papageorge, Anastasia

Taylor, Glen A. Nov 1940      Allegra Barnes

Taylor, Harold N. 30 Nov 1910 Emma Grandin and others

Taylor, Harold N 19 Dec 1910 Thomas G. Taylor, wife May

Taylor, Harold N., Thomas G 26 Mar 1906 Martha C. Taylor Grandin, dec.

Taylor, Harvey 21 Mar 1876 Samuel White

Taylor, Heber C., wife Eliza 2 May 1899 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane

Taylor, James G., wife Erma 12 Apr 1946 James E. Thomas

Taylor, James G., wife Erma 26 Jan 1950 Leonard V. Todd, wife

Taylor, James H. 21 Apr 1884 William G. Smith

Taylor, James H. 26 Aug 1888 Joseph A. Taylor, wife Mary

Taylor, James Henry 4 Oct 1889 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane
Taylor, James Rawson, wf Mamie 23 Mar 1918 Sarah E. Larkins

Taylor, Jed 18 Feb 1911 James Henry Taylor, deceased

Taylor, John 19 Nov 1889 Central Pacific RR Co.      

Taylor, John 12 Nov 1894 Arthur C. Past, wife Mable A.

Taylor, John 12 Nov 1894 J. Henry Taylor, wf Eveline

Taylor, John A. 24 Apr 1890 Central Pacific RR Co.

Taylor, John A. 11 May 1899 John Taylor, deceased

Taylor, John A. 6 Oct 1897 John Henry Taylor, wf Eveline C.

Taylor, John A. 22 Nov 1904 B. Lombard, Jr. ,wife Rose M

Taylor, John D., wife Bertha 24 Jun 1916 John  Henry  Taylor,  wife 
Delilah

Taylor, John D. 24 Jan 1929 Joseph Lythgoe, wife Mary E.

Taylor, John Henry 15 Jan 1890 John Taylor and wife Eleanor

Taylor, John Henry 18 Jan 1891 Peter C. Stephenson, wf Mary A.

Taylor, John Henry 14 Oct 1892 Arthur C. Past, wife Mable
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Taylor, John S., wife Gladys 25 Jan 1946 Ward Fisher, wife Emma

Taylor, Joseph 1 Oct 1870 U. S. A. (Patent)

Taylor, Joseph 19 Mar 1873 Robert Fisher, wife Elizabeth

Taylor, Joseph & William A 25 Sep 1886 Joseph A. Taylor, wife Mary

Taylor, Joseph 25 Sep 1886 William A. Taylor, wf Philomela

Taylor, Joseph A. 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Nancy

Taylor, Joseph A. 24 Jan 1903 John Dial, wife Persis M.

Taylor, Joseph A. 30 Nov 1912 Leah O. Fisher

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Taylor, Joseph C.(?) Trustee 19 Feb 1875 Thomas White, wife Loreny

Taylor, Josiah 15 Jul 1916 George B. Taylor, wf Elizabeth

Taylor, Josiah 20 Aug 1927 George B. Taylor, wf Elizabeth

Taylor, Lawrence C. 7 Oct 1931  George B. Taylor, wf Elizabeth

Taylor, Lorenzo 17 Jul 1909 Farr West Corp, Church of J.C. Taylor, Lorenzo

Taylor, Lorenzo 13 Dec 1909 Joseph A. Taylor

Taylor, Lorenzo 16 Mar 1945 George B. Taylor

Taylor, Lorenzo & George B. 30 Dec 1918 Clarence W. Brooks, dec.

Taylor, Lorenzo & George B. 12 Jan 1921 Gustaf V. Anderson and wife

Taylor, Martha C, Mary E. 15 Jun 1891 Thomas Taylor, deceased

Taylor, Martha C. and others 13 Jul 1891 Thomas Taylor, deceased

Taylor, Newell W. 2 Nov 1881 Sarah T. Taylor

Taylor, P. G. 14 Dec 1876 Peter Later

Taylor, P. G. 23 Jun 1893 Alfred W.Taylor, wife Ada

Taylor, P. G. 6 Apr 1905 Samuel Thomas

Taylor, P. G. 12 Apr 1905 Delia T. Hansen, husb Carl

Taylor, P. Green 18 Mar 1873 William A. Taylor, wf Philomela

Taylor, P. Green 21 Mar 1876 Samuel White

Taylor, Parley P. 28 Aug 1935 Arthur E. Crane, single

Taylor, Philomela 15 Dec 1910 William A. Taylor, wife Annie

Taylor, Ralph 26 Feb 1936 Floyd Taylor, wife Martha
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Taylor, Riley E. 28 Jan 1911 Philomela Taylor

Taylor, Riley E 4 Mar 1913 W. F. Jensen, wife Matilda

Taylor, Sarah T., Newel T. 7 Apr 1877 Martin  Taylor,  David  Hiatt,  et 
al

Taylor, Sarah T. 3 Apr 1889 Thomas Taylor, deceased

Taylor, Thomas 19 Mar 1873 Robert Fisher, wife Elizabeth

Taylor, Thomas G. 30 Nov 1910 Emma Grandin and others

Taylor, Thomas G. 21 Dec 1910 Harold N. Taylor, wife Ida

Taylor, Ursel and Floyd 26 Jan 1920 Sarah Ann Taylor, deceased

Taylor, William 7 Dec 1876 Jonathan E. Lane

Taylor, William, wife Eliza 20 Jun 1891 Thomas White, deceased

Taylor, William A. 1 Nov 1870 U. S. A. (Patent)

Taylor, William A. 18 Mar 1873 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane

Taylor, William A. 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wf Nancy

Taylor, William A. 12 Feb 1875 Thomas White, wife Loreny

Taylor, William A. 1 Nov 1870 U. S. A. (Patent)

Taylor, William A. 18 Mar 1873 Joseph Taylor, wife Jane

Taylor, William A. 18 Mar 1873 Daniel B. Rawson, wf Nancy

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Taylor, William A 12 Feb 1875 Thomas White, wife Loreny

Taylor, William A 25 Sep 1886 Joseph A. Taylor, wife Mary

Taylor, William A 24 Oct 1891 Mary E. Root, widow

Taylor, William A 28 Dec 1891 Joseph A.T aylor, wife Mary

Taylor, William A  (Jr.) 7 Nov 1895 Eliza A. Taylor Marler

Taylor, William A 16 Mar 1896 John Dial, wife Persis M. Warner

Taylor, William A 22 Jun 1899  Thomas J. White, deceased

Taylor, William A. 20 Mar 1902 William Weaver, Jr., wife Medora

Taylor, William A. 30 Mar 1904 State of Utah (Patent)

Taylor, William A. 13 Jul 1914 George J. Housley, deceased

Taylor, William A. 18 Nov 1919 William Temple Short, wf Lois

Taylor, William A. 3 Dec 1919 L. Moth Iverson, wife Elise M
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Taylor, William H. 19 Dec 1898 Alexander M. Clement, wf Sarah

Taylor, William H. 19 Dec 1898 Phebe Thomas

Taylor, William H 25 Oct 1899 Melissa Taylor

Thomas, Albert Levi 18 Dec 1902 Abraham Maw, wife Eliza

Thomas, Albert Levi 4 Feb 1903 George Musgrave, wf Victoreen

Thomas, Elisha 10 Apr 1882 U. S. A. (Patent)

Thomas, Elisha 27 Apr 1905 Chauncy Thomas

Thomas, Elizabeth Lee 28 Apr 1874 Elisha Thomas

Thomas, Elizabeth Lee 3 Jan 1883 Elisha Thomas

Thomas, Emery J. 18 Jan 1921 Jacob Thomas and wife

Thomas, Jacob 22 Oct 1875 William R. Burnett

Thomas, Jacob 27 Sep 1877 Leonidas A. Pritchett, wf Eliz.

Thomas, Jacob 17 Aug 1892 Temple Short, wife Margaret

Thomas, Jacob 30 Jan 1903 State of Utah (Patent)

Thomas, Jacob 25 Nov 1893 Isaac Webster, wife Catherine

Thomas, Jacob 25 May 1903 Harvey Murdock, wife Catherine

Thomas, James E. 30 Jul 1918 Susie S. Barlow

Thomas, Joseph Earl 18 Nov 1936 Mary Ann Thomas

Thomas, Joseph Earl 10 May 1946 Horace E. Rawson, administrator

Thomas, Mary Ann 6 Apr 1929 Jacob Thomas, deceased

Thompson, Theo L., wf Wanda 7 Dec 1927 Reuben D. Brown, wife Jennie

William Thompson 15 Sep 1873 Lyman Wilson

Thorsted, Peter J. 4 Feb 1893 Temple Short, wife Margaret

Todd, Leonard V., wf Rhoda 13 Apr 1936 Charles F. Larkin, wf Minnie

Todd, Leonard V., wf Rhoda 17 Mar 1947 Jethro D. Brown, wife Emma

Tomlinson, Samuel 4 Aug 1906 Marian Nielsen

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Tomlinson, Samuel 3 Jan 1914 John E. Erickson, wife Ida M.

Tunnicliff, Damon G 10 Feb 1897 Charles A. Zitting, wf Sophia W.

Union Pacific Railroad Co. 24 Feb 1877 U. S. A. (Patent)
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Union Pacific Railroad Co. 17 Jun 1901 U. S. A. (Patent)

Utah Packing Corporation 26 Apr 1922 Zenia V. Chugg

Utah Packing Corporation 26 Dec 1928 Zenia V. Chugg

Utah Northern Railway Co. 18 Nov 1879 Mason Cutler

Utah Northern Railway Co. 29 Nov 1879 John Mower

Van Komen, William and Elidia 3 Mar 1903 Hyrum Lee and wife Eliza

Vause, Ralph O. 28 Dec 1931 Oscar Vernon Williams

Vause, Ralph O., wife Clara 2 Mar 1948 Ephraim O. Williams

Vause, Ralph O., wife Clara 9 Sep 1948 Marjorie R. Williams Peel

Vick, Charles 6 Sep 1905 Charles W. Swanson, wife Annie F

Wallace, John T. Robert D 23 Jul 1890 Mason Cutler, wife Margaret

Wampler, Reese B. 1 Mar 1897 Luella C. Child

Wampler, Reese B. 11 Mar 1899 Daniel R. B.  Shepherd, wf Adelia

Warner, Persis, wife 18 Mar 1893 Samuel B. Warner

Warner, Samuel B. 20 Sep 1887 Thomas R. White, wife Annie B.

Watkins, Joseph H. 28 Jul 1919 Joshua Homer, wife Olivia J.

Watkins, Joseph H. 14 Oct 1919 Nels Homer, wife Tessie W.

Weaver, William, Jr. 2 Sep 1897 Samuel B. Warner

Webb, Albert 15 Apr 1897 Jane Webb

Webb, Albert 27 Nov 1903 Brigham J. Webb

Webb, Jane 15 Jul 1910 Edgar Webb and wife Mary

Webb, Jane Jul 1910 Albert Webb and wife Elizabeth

Webster, Emily Minnie 7 Feb 1946 Albert  Levi  Thomas,  wf  Nora 
L.

Webster, George M 4 Feb 1919 Wilke Smit, wife Yantje

Webster, John 3 Oct 1878 Stephen F. Wilson

West, David E. 3 Feb 1906 Elizabeth E. Frazier

West, Ernest E. 3 Mar 1910 David E. West, wife Martha

Westergard, Annie F 24 Mar 1928 H. C. Westergard

Westergard, Hans C. 11 May 1888 James C. Westergard, wf Maria

Westergard, Hans C. 7 Jan 1890 John Groberg
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Westergard, Hans C. 22 Apr 1913 John F. Westergard, single

Westergard, Harold A. 1 Aug 1944 Anna F. Westergard

Westergard, Harold A. 15 Sep 1948 Anna F. Westergard

Westergard, James C. 28 Aug 1874 William Thompson

Westergard, James C. 1 May 1886 Leonidas A. Pritchett, wf Eliz.

OWNER (BUYER) OBTAINED FROM

Westergard, James C. 24 Jun 1893 Alfred W. Taylor, wife Ada

Wheelwright, Thomas G. 9 Jan 1923 Rasmus Jorgensen, wife Thora

White, Albert 26 Feb 1923 George J. Brockmann, wf  Alma L

White, D. N. 20 Dec 1934 Lucinda Patterson

White, George A. 9 Oct 1912 Browning Brothers Co.

White, Samuel 25 Apr 1870 Henry Dixon, wife Amelia J.

White, Samuel 15Jun 1875 U. S. A. (Patent)

White, Samuel 14 May 1880 Richard Hayes

White, Thomas 27 Sep 1872 William A. Taylor, wf Philomela

White, Thomas 7 Dec 1872 Alford J. Randall

Wilcox, Walter A. 18 May 1912 William C. Wilcox

Wilcox, William C. 6 May 1911 Jens. Christensen, wf Elizabeth

Wilkinson, Alex 1 Mar 1919 Sally E. Heninger

Williams, Ann E. 8 Apr 1889 Alonzo Dabell, wf Harriet

Williams, Ann Elizabeth 11 Apr 1903 Weber County

Williams, Daniel P. 16 Jan 1891 Daniel B. Rawson, wife Mary M.

Williams, Eliza Ann 1 May 1903 Eliza Jane Rawson, widow et al

Williams, Ezra G. 30 Sep 1871 U. S. A. (Patent)

Williams, Grant Hirst 2 Mar 1948 Ephraim O,. Williams

Williams, Jesse M. 26 May 1923 Ephraim O. Williams

Williams, Jesse M. 2 Mar 1948 Ephraim O. Williams

Williams, Marjorie Rose 2 Mar 1948 Ephraim O. Williams

Williams, Oscar Vernon 17 Feb 1911 Joseph W Saunders, wf Ella Louise

Williams, Oscar Vernon 10 Apr 1923 Ephraim O. Williams
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Williams, Pearl A. 11 Feb 1948 Mable Inman and Others

Williams, Victor Terry 2 Mar 1948 Ephraim O. Williams

Wilson, Clifford L., wf Lella 28 Apr 1943 Laura Ann Brown, widow

Wilson, Lyman 15 Sep 1873 Leonidas  A.  Pritchett,  wf 
Elizabeth

Wilson, Lyman 13 Oct 1873 Dudley Chase, wife Millie May

Wilson, Stephen F. 19 Nov 1874 Duidley Chase, wife Samantha

Wood, Hiram S.   9 Sep 1892 James H. Wood, wf Hannah

Wood, James H. 4 Mar 1889 Joseph  Stone  (former. 
Stonehouse)

Wright, Edgar H. 22 Sep 1884 Joseph A. Taylor, wife Mary

Zitting, Charles A. 20 Jan 1876 U. S. A. (Patent)

THE FOLLOWING THREE SECTIONS OF THIS HISTORY 

CONTAIN COPIES OF THE ORIGINAL  U. S. CENSUS RECORDS 

FOR FARR WEST FOR 1900 - 1920

1900 -- Colored Yellow

1910 -- Colored  Pink

1920 -- Colored Green

These records are included with this historical record in the hopes that 
people with Farr West roots might learn more about their relatives to 

share with other family members.
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The reader of this section should keep in mind that it may contain 
errors, because it was created by human beings.  However, used 
properly, it may be a significant tool in compiling family history.

(Permission obtained 16 Sep 13 from "Gracie" at Ancestry.com to use 
the census data w/o charge--from phone 801-731-1924.)

The Compiler
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